


















1 | P a g e

CUYAMA JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Thursday, May 9, 2019, 6:00 P.M. 
Board Room, Cuyama Elementary School 

2300 Highway 166, Cuyama, CA 
Minutes 

I. The meeting was called to order by Board President, José Valenzuela, at 6:06 p.m.

ROLL CALL: Trudi Callaway  _P_ Stephen Bluestein Ed. D.     _Y_ 
Whitney Goller _P_ Superintendent 
Heather Lomax _P_ 
Michael Mann  _P_ 
José Valenzuela _P_ Chris Rahe      _A_ 

Chief Business Official  

FLAG SALUTE: Led by Tierney Ballard 
II. PUBLIC FORUM/HEARING:
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board of Education.  Following recognition by
the president, each speaker may have the floor for five minutes.  Persons addressing the Board are
requested to give name, address, and the group or organization they represent, if any, in order that an
accurate record can be made in the minutes.  Items not appearing on the agenda cannot, by law, be the
subject of Board action.  Such items may be placed on future agendas for full discussion and/or action.

III. REPORT/INFORMATION ITEM(S): N/A
IV. HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT BODY REPORT(S):

A. High School ASB Report – Provided by Mr. Michael Newman and Presented by Miss Jocelyn
Mora

B. High School Athletics Report – Provided by Mr. Michael Wilson
C. High School FFA Report – Presented by Mr. Kevin Lebsack

V. ELEMENTARY SCHOOL STUDENT BODY REPORT(S):

A. Elementary School ASB Report – Provided by Mr. Russ Barnes
B. After School Education & Safety (ASES) – Provided by Mrs. Debbie Hedlund Page 1 

VI. MAINTENANCE AND TRANSPORTATION REPORT: - Presented by Mr. Richard Ray

VII. BOARD REPORT(S):

VIII. PRINCIPAL’S REPORT: - Presented by Mrs. Rachel Leyland
IX. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT: - Presented by Dr. Stephen Bluestein
X. FINANCIAL REPORT(S):

A. Expenditure Report
B. Payroll Report



2 | P a g e  
 

XI. EXCLUSIVE REPRESENTATION: N/A 
XII. CONSENT AGENDA:   
All items listed are considered to be routine and non-controversial.  Consent items will be considered 
first and may be approved by one motion if no member of the CJUSD Board or audience wishes to 
comment or ask questions.  If comment or discussion is desired by anyone, the item will be removed 
from the consent agenda and will be considered in the listed sequence with an opportunity for any 
member of the public to address the CJUSD Board concerning the item before action is taken. 
  
A.  Minutes of April 11, 2019 Regular Board Meeting    02-05                            
B.  Warrant Listing #2019-31 $16,561.66 Pulled by Mr. Michael Mann            06-11 
C.  Warrant Listing #2019-32 $61,110.30      12-20 
D. Warrant Listing #2019-33 $54,533.96      21-27 
E. Warrant Listing #2019-34 $74,979.78 Pulled by Mrs. Trudi Callaway 28-32 
F. Warrant Listing #2019-35 $15,448.41                   33-36 
G.  Student Field Trip Requests       37-38      
H.  Facilities Use Requests   Pulled by Mr. Jose Valenzuela 39    
I. Vehicle Requests          40-41  
J. Williams/Valenzuela Quarterly Report      42-43 
K. Conference Attendance Request  Pulled by Mrs. Whitney Goller 44-50 
L. Acknowledgement of Donation       51-52 
M. Receipt of Continuing Disclosure Annual Report from Isom Advisors connected with the General 
Obligation Bonds of 2016 and 2019       53-61 
     

Moved By:Heather Lomax 2nd By: Whitney Goller 
Roll Call Vote:  
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 
 
XIV. ACTION ITEM/DICUSSION ITEM(S): 
 

A. BOARD POLICY/ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS UPDATES: The Board to consider approving the 
second reading and adoption of the following Board Policies and Administrative Regulations.  

1. BP 3350 – Travel Expenses – Removed until further notice pending development 
of AR 3350.        62-63 

2. BP 4300 – Administrative and Supervisory Personnel   64-65 
3. AR 4300 – Administrative and Supervisory Personnel   66 
4. BP 4222 – Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals    67-68 
5. AR 4222 – Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals    69-70 
6. BP 4331 – Staff Development      71-73 
7. BP 4156.3, 4256.3, 4356.3 – Employee Property Reimbursement  74-75 
8. BP 4157, 4257, 4357 – Employee Safety     76-78 
9. AR 4157, 4257, 4357 – Employee Safety     79-83 
10. BP 4144, 4244, 4344 – Complaints     84-85 
11. AR 4144, 4244, 4344 - Complaints              86-88 

 
Moved By: Michael Mann 2nd By: Heather Lomax 

Roll Call Vote:  
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 



3 | P a g e  
 

 
B. Consideration to approve as the apparent low bidder and award the Pool Pump House and Covered 

Walkway Asbestos Abatement at the high school to Asbestos Services, Inc. (ASI, Inc.), from 
Bakersfield, in the amount of $39,000 and to subsequently enter into an Agreement for 
Construction.   89-104 
 

Moved by:Jose Valenzuela   2nd by:Whitney Goller 
Roll Call Vote: 
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 
 

C. Consideration of approval of the revised Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators. 105-
115  

 
Moved by:Michael Mann  2nd by: Heather Lomax 

Roll Call Vote: 
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 

D. Consideration to authorize Superintendent to issue notice of termination and other 
documents regarding termination of real property rental agreement for 4814 Morales Street, 
New Cuyama, California no later than June 30, 2019 
 
Moved By: Whitney Goller 2nd By: Heather Lomax 

Roll Call Vote: 

Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 

E. ITEMS PULLED FROM CONSENT AGENDA: 
1. Warrant Listing #2019-31 $16,561.66 

 
Moved By:Michael Mann  2nd By: Whitney Goller 

Roll Call Vote:  
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 

2. Warrant Listing #2019-34 $74,979.78 

Moved By:Trudi Callaway  2nd By: Heather Lomax 
Roll Call Vote:  
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 

3. Facilities Use Requests 

Moved By:Michael Mann 2nd By: Trudi Callaway 
Roll Call Vote:  
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 

4. Conference Attendance Requests 



4 | P a g e  
 

 

**This item was tabled without motions due to the meeting in question being canceled.** 

XV. CLOSED SESSION: 

 NOTE: The Brown Act permits the Board to consider certain matters in closed session, in limited 
circumstances. The Board will consider and may act upon any of the items described below in closed 
session. The Brown Act requires that the Board report out certain actions taken in closed session, which 
will be announced following the closed session. WITH LIMITED EXCEPTIONS, THE LAW REQUIRES THAT 
INFORMATION DISCLOSED IN CLOSED SESSION REMAIN CONFIDENTIAL. 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Board of Education concerning the closed session 
items. Persons addressing the Board are requested to give name, address, and the group or organization 
they represent, if any, in order that an accurate record can be made in the minutes. If you wish to address 
the Board, please plan to complete a Speaker Form prior to the start of the meeting. 

The Board will adjourn into closed session at7:28 p.m. 

The Board returned to open session at: 9:17 p.m. 
 

XVI. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION: 
 

A. Certificated and Classified Personnel Changes, California Government Code §54957, review and approval 
a number of transfers, reassignments, promotions, evaluations, terminations, resignations and hiring 
reported by the Superintendent. 

B. Superintendent Evaluation. 
 

The Special Board meeting for LCAP public hearing is scheduled for June 12, 2019. 
The next regularly scheduled Board meeting is June 13, 2019. 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT:  The Regular Board Meeting will adjourn at 9:17 p.m. 

Moved By: 2nd By: _______________ 
Roll Call Vote: 
Trudi Callaway _Y_    Whitney Goller_Y_     Heather Lomax _Y_   Michael Mann _Y_   José Valenzuela_Y_ 
 
Materials prepared in connection with an item on the regular session agenda may be reviewed in the 
Superintendent’s Office 72 hours in advance of the meeting and will be available for public inspection at 
the meeting. An individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications, including 
auxiliary aids and services, in order to participate in the Board meeting should contact the 
Superintendent or designee. (Government Code 54954.2) 
 

































































































































BP 4331 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Board Policy 
Staff Development 
BP 4331 
Personnel  
 
The Governing Board recognizes that professional development enhances employee 
effectiveness and contributes to personal growth. Staff development for administrative and 
supervisory personnel shall be designed to guide institutional improvement, build leadership 
skills, and enhance overall management efficiency. 
 
(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 
 
Note: Education Code 52060-52077, as added by AB 97 (Ch. 47, Statutes of 2013), require 
districts to develop a local control and accountability plan (LCAP) which includes goals aligned 
with state and local priorities, specific actions aligned to meet those goals, and a budget aligned 
to fund those specific actions; see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan. The 
district's staff development program should be aligned with its priorities and goals as outlined in 
the LCAP and other applicable district and school plans. 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan for administrator support and development 
activities that is based on a systematic assessment of the needs of district students and staff and is 
aligned to the district's vision, goals, local control and accountability plan, and other 
comprehensive plans. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44517, the state's Administrator Training Program self-
repealed on January 1, 2013. Funding for that program has been redirected into the local control 
funding formula pursuant to AB 97 (Ch. 47, Statutes of 2013). Thus, the content of the district's 
staff development program for administrators may be adapted to meet district needs. Items #1-10 
below are optional. 
The district's staff development program for district and school administrators may include, but 
is not limited to, the following topics: 
 

1. Personnel management, including best practices on hiring, recruitment, assignment, and 
retention of staff 

 
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 
(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 
 
2. Effective fiscal management and accountability practices 
 



BP 4331 

Page 2 of 3 
 

(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
3. Academic standards and standards-aligned curriculum and instructional materials 
 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 
4. Leadership training to improve the academic achievement of all students, including capacity 
building in pedagogies of learning, instructional strategies that meet the varied learning needs of 
students, and student motivation 
 
5. The use of student assessments, including analysis of disaggregated 
assessment results to identify needs and progress of student subgroups 
 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
6. The use of technology to improve student performance and district operations 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
 
7. Creation of safe and inclusive school environments 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
 
8. Parental involvement and community collaboration 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
9. Employee relations 
 
10. Effective school and district planning processes 
 
The district's staff evaluation process may be used to recommend additional staff development 
for individual employees. 
 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall evaluate the benefit to staff and students of professional 
development activities. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 



BP 4331 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
44681-44689.2 Administrator training and evaluation 
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 
 
Management Resources: 
WESTED AND ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS 
PUBLICATIONS 
California Professional Standards for Educational Leaders, 2001 
 
WEB SITES 
Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California School Leadership Academy: http://www.csla.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
WestEd: http://www.wested.org 
 
(10/98 11/01) 12/13 



BP 4112.9, 4212.9, 4312.9 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Board Policy 
Employee Notifications 
  
BP 4112.9, 4212.9, 4312.9 
Personnel 
  

The Governing Board believes that providing clear communications to staff is essential to 
establishing a professional, positive work environment and enhancing their job performance. The 
Superintendent or designee shall provide district employees all notifications required by law and 
any other notifications he/she believes will promote staff knowledge of the district's policies, 
programs, activities, and operations. 

 

When required by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation, district employees shall be 
asked to sign an acknowledgment indicating receipt of the notification. Such acknowledgments 
shall be retained in each employee's personnel file. 

(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
231.5 Sexual harassment policy 
17612 Notification of pesticide use 
22455.5 STRS information to potential members 
22461 Postretirement compensation limitation 
35031 Nonreelection of superintendent, assistant superintendent, or manager of classified 
services 
35171 Notice of regulations pertaining to certificated employee evaluations 
37616 Notice of public hearing on year-round schedule 
44031 Personnel file contents, inspection 
44663-44664 Evaluation of certificated employees 
44842 Reemployment notices, certificated employees 
44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position 
44916 Written statement of employment status 
44929.21 Reelection or nonreelection of probationary employee after second year 
44934 Notice of disciplinary action for cause 
44938 Notice of unprofessional conduct and opportunity to correct 
44940.5-44941 Notification of suspension and intent to dismiss 
44948.3-44948.5 Dismissal of probationary employees 
44949 Cause, notice and right to hearing 
44951 Continuation in position unless notified, administrative or supervisory personnel 
44954 Nonreelection of temporary employees 
44955 Reduction in number of employees 



BP 4112.9, 4212.9, 4312.9 

Page 2 of 3 
 

45113 Notification of charges, classified employees 
45117 Notice of layoff, classified employees 
45169 Employee salary data, classified employees 
45192 Industrial and accident leave 
45195 Additional leave 
46162 Notice of public hearing on block schedule 
49013 Complaints regarding student fees 
49079 Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts re: grounds suspension or 
expulsion 
49414 Epinephrine auto-injectors 
49414.3 Administration of opioid antagonist 
 
CIVIL CODE 
1798.29 District records, breach of security 
 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1126 Incompatible activities of employees 
21029 Retirement credit for period of military service 
3100-3109 Oath or affirmation of allegiance 
8355 Certification of drug-free workplace, including notification 
12950 Sexual harassment 
54957 Complaints against employees; right to open session 
54963 Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
1797.196 Automated external defibrillators; notification of use and locations 
104420 Tobacco-free schools 
120875 Information on AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B 
120880 Notification to employees re AIDS, AIDS-related conditions, and hepatitis B 
 
LABOR CODE 
2800.2 Notification of availability of continuation health coverage 
3550-3553 Notifications re: workers' compensation benefits 
5401 Workers' compensation; claim form and notice of potential eligibility 
 
PENAL CODE 
11165.7 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act; notification requirement 
11166.5 Employment; statement of knowledge of duty to report child abuse or neglect 
 
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE CODE 
2613 Disability insurance; notice of rights and benefits 
 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11023 Nondiscrimination in employment 
11024 Sexual harassment 
11049 Notice of right to request pregnancy disability leave or transfer 



BP 4112.9, 4212.9, 4312.9 

Page 3 of 3 
 

11091 California Family Rights Act, designation notice 
11096 Notice of right to request family care leave 
 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4622 Uniform complaint procedures 
80303 Reports of change in employment status, alleged misconduct 
 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
3204 Employees exposed to bloodborne pathogens, access to exposure and medical records 
5191 Chemical hygiene plan 
5193 California bloodborne pathogens standard 
5194 Hazard communication program 
 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 
1234 Reports regarding school buses and bus drivers 
2480 Vehicle idling, limitations 
 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 38 
4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act, notice requirement 
 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 41 
8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act 
 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.300 Family and Medical Leave Act; notice requirement 
 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
84.205-84.210 Drug-free workplace statement 
104.8 Nondiscrimination 
106.9 Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 
763.84 Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 
763.93 Asbestos management plans 
 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 49 
382.601 Controlled substance and alcohol use and testing notifications 
 
(6/94 2/95) 7/12 



BP 4132, 4232, 4332 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Board Policy  
Publication or Creation of Materials 
BP 4132, 4232, 4332  
Personnel  
 
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of creating a work environment that encourages 
employee innovation in creating and developing high-quality materials to improve student 
achievement and the efficiency of district operations. 
 
(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 
(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of instructional materials, 
computer programs, and other copyrightable materials by employees, independent contractors, 
and consultants. An employee, independent contractor, or consultant shall notify the 
Superintendent or designee of his/her intent to publish or register a work developed in whole or 
in part within the scope of his/her employment. 
 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
 
Note: Education Code 60076 authorizes the district to claim royalties or other compensation for 
instructional materials when the materials were written or prepared during the normal school day 
during which the employee was required to be on duty. 
Instructional materials, computer programs, and other copyrightable materials developed by an 
employee within the scope of his/her employment shall be the property of the district. 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 
(cf. 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 - Civil and Legal Rights) 
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 
 
If an employee has developed copyrightable material during both work and non-working hours, 
and the work was within the scope of his/her employment, the Superintendent or designee shall 
negotiate a contract with the employee to protect the district's right as to the ownership or partial 
ownership of the copyright. 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 
Note: Courts have held that materials created by independent contractors or consultants are not a 
"work for hire" within the definition of 17 USC 201. Thus, whenever a district contracts with a 
consultant to prepare any type of material, it is recommended that a written contract be 
developed outlining the respective rights of the parties with regard to the copyright of the 
materials. 



BP 4132, 4232, 4332 

Page 2 of 2 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any contract with an independent contractor or 
consultant contains a provision specifying the district's right to ownership of the copyright of any 
work produced by the contractor or consultant for the district. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may secure copyrights in the name of the district for all 
copyrightable works developed by the district. All royalties or revenues from these copyrights 
shall be used for the benefit of the district. (Education Code 35170) 
 
Legal Reference: 
 
EDUCATION CODE 
32360 Copyrights; use of funds 
32361 Copyrights; use of employee work time 
35170 Authority to secure copyrights 
35182 Marketing or licensing noneducational mainframe electronic data-processing software 
60076 Royalties or other compensation 
 
LABOR CODE 
2870-2872 Inventions made by an employee 
 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 17 
101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright 
201 Copyright ownership and transfer 
 
COURT DECISIONS 
Community for Creative Non-Violence v. Reid, (1989) 490 U.S. 730 
 
Management Resources: 
 
WEB SITES 
Copyright Clearance Center: http://www.copyright.com 
Copyright Society of the USA: http://www.csusa.org 
U.S. Copyright Office: http://www.copyright.gov 
 
(1/85 12/89) 7/08 



BP 4161, 4261, 4361 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Board Policy 
Leaves  
BP 4161, 4261, 4361  
 
The Governing Board shall provide for paid and unpaid leaves of absence for employees in 
accordance with law, Board policy, administrative regulation, collective bargaining agreements, 
and merit system rules, as applicable. 
 
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement) 
(cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program) 
 
Note: Items #1-10 below reflect categories of leave which are described in more detail in the 
cited cross-referenced policies or administrative regulations. In addition, Education Code 44963 
and 45198 allow the Board to grant leaves with or without pay to certificated and classified staff 
for any purpose or period of time, as long as no employee is deprived of any leave to which 
he/she is legally entitled. Any additional types of leaves so granted by the Board may be added to 
the following list. 
The Board recognizes the following justifiable reasons for employee absence: 
 

1. Personal illness or injury 
(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
 
2. Industrial accident or illness 
(cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
 
3. Family care and medical leave 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
4. Military service 
(cf. 4161.5/4261.5/4361.5 - Military Leave) 
 
5. Personal necessity and personal emergencies 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 
 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44986, the Board may grant to any certificated employee who 
has applied for disability benefits a leave of absence, not to exceed 30 days beyond final 
determination of the employee's eligibility for disability benefits by the State Teachers' 
Retirement System. If the employee is determined to be eligible, that leave must be extended for 
the term of the disability, up to 39 months. 
6. Disability leave for certificated employees in accordance with Education Code 44986 
 
7. Vacations for classified staff and certificated management staff, as applicable 
 



BP 4161, 4261, 4361 

Page 2 of 3 
 

8. Sabbaticals for purposes of study or training related to the employee's job duties 
 
(cf. 4161.3 - Professional Leaves) 
 
(cf. 4261.3 - Professional Leaves) 
 
9. Attendance at work-related meetings and staff development opportunities 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
10. Compulsory leave 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
Long-Term Leaves 
 
With Board approval, an employee may receive a leave of absence, without pay and without 
accruing seniority or service credit, for a period of up to one school year. Applications for long-
term leave shall be made in writing and shall state the purpose for which leave is requested. All 
long-term leave agreements shall be in writing and shall state the terms and conditions of the 
leave, including the conditions governing the employee's return. 
 
At the end of a long-term leave, the employee shall be reinstated to a similar position as that held 
at the time leave was granted, unless otherwise agreed upon. 
 
The Board shall consider any written request by an employee to return to work prior to the 
expiration date of the leave. 
 
Administrative and Supervisory Personnel 
 
Classified administrative and supervisory employees who are not subject to the district's 
bargaining agreement for classified employees shall generally be entitled to those leave 
provisions provided in the bargaining agreement for other classified employees unless otherwise 
specified in individual contract, memoranda of understanding, Board policy, administrative 
regulation, or law. 
 
(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
 



BP 4161, 4261, 4361 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Legal Reference: 
 
EDUCATION CODE 
22850-22856 Pension benefits, STRS members on military leave 
44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty 
44036-44037 Leaves of absence for judicial and official appearances 
44043.5 Catastrophic leave 
44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees 
44842 Failure to provide notice or to report to work 
44940 Sex offenses and narcotic offenses; compulsory leave of absence 
44962-44988 Leaves of absence (certificated) 
45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty, computation of salary 
45190-45210 Leaves of absence (classified) 
FAMILY CODE 
297-297.5 Registered domestic partner rights, protections and benefits 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3543.1 Release time for representatives of employee organizations 
3543.2 Scope of representation 
12945.1-12945.2 California Family Rights Act 
20990-21013 Pension benefits, PERS members on military leave 
LABOR CODE 
230-230.2 Leaves for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or specified felonies 
230.3 Leave for emergency personnel 
230.4 Leave for volunteer firefighters 
230.8 Leave to visit child's school 
233 Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner 
MILITARY AND VETERANS CODE 
395-395.9 Military leave 
395.10 Leave when spouse on leave from military deployment 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654 Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 38 
4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 
(12/88 10/98) 7/08 



BP 4313.2 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Board Policy 
Demotion / Reassignment   
BP 4313.2  
Personnel  
 
The Governing Board may authorize the demotion or reassignment of any administrative or 
supervisory employee upon the recommendation of the Superintendent or designee and when 
such action is determined to be in the best interest of the district. 
 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
(cf. 4314 - Transfers) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district complies with all applicable 
statutory deadlines and due process procedures when an employee is to be demoted or 
reassigned. 
 
Legal Reference: 
 
EDUCATION CODE 
 
35031 Senior management employee in the classified service: nonreelection 
44660-44665 Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees 
44850.1 No tenure in administrative or supervisory positions 
44896 Transfer of administrator or supervisor to teaching position 
44897 Classification of administrator or supervisor to a teaching position 
44951 Continuation in position unless notified 
45101 Definitions (including disciplinary action, cause) 
45113 Rules for classified service in districts not incorporating the merit system 
 
COURT DECISIONS 
Jefferson v. Compton Unified School District, (1993) 14 Cal. App. 4th 32 
Schultz v. Regents of the University of California, (1984) 160 Cal. App. 3d 768 
Ellerbroek v. Saddleback Valley Unified School District, (1981) 125 Cal. App 3d 348 
Skelly v. California Personnel Board, (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194 
Hentschke v. Sink, (1973) 34 Cal. App. 3d 19 
 
(7/86 10/94) 3/07 



AR 4313.2 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Administrative Regulation 
Personnel 
 
AR 4313.2 
Demotion/Reassignment 
 
Certificated Administrative Employees 
 
Note: The courts have found that certificated administrative employees do not possess a statutory 
right to their positions and, as a result, have no tenure in their administrative positions. However, 
pursuant to Education Code 44893, 44894, and 44956.5, certificated administrators earn 
seniority as certificated employees of the district and thus are subject to the same procedures as 
other certificated employees in the event of a layoff. 
Note: If an administrator is a certificated probationary employee, and the Board determines to 
not reemploy him/her for the following year, then the district must send a notice of nonreelection 
pursuant to Education Code 44929.21; see AR 4117.6 - Decision to Not Rehire. 
Permanent certificated management staff are not entitled to seniority rights in their 
administrative positions. However, such staff shall earn and/or retain any seniority earned in 
service as a classroom teacher or site administrator pursuant to Education Code 44893, 44894, or 
44956.5. 
 
(cf. 4117.3 - Personnel Reduction) 
(cf. 4117.6 - Decision Not to Rehire) 
 
End of Year Release/Reassignment of Certificated Administrators 
 
Note: In Ellerbroek v. Saddleback Valley School District, the court held that, if notice of 
release/reassignment is not given by March 15 for the following year, a change in assignment 
may only occur "for cause" and the employee must be provided due process (i.e., notice, reasons, 
documentation, and the right to respond). 
By March 15, an employee shall be notified by either registered mail or in person that he/she 
may be released or reassigned from his/her position for the following school year. If the notice is 
presented to the employee in person, the district shall obtain his/her signature acknowledging 
receipt of the notice on the district's copy of the written notice. (Education Code 44951) 
 
Note: The following paragraph is based on the court's decision in Ellerbroek v. Saddleback 
Valley School District. If the district's March 15 notice indicates that the release/reassignment is 
only a possibility, but the district does not send another notice indicating definite 
release/reassignment by the end of the school year, the employee will remain in the current 
assignment. 
If the March 15 notice indicates that release or reassignment is only a possibility, the Governing 
Board shall take additional action to release/reassign the employee before the new school year 
and shall send the employee a second notice by June 30 indicating that he/she has been released 
or reassigned. 



AR 4313.2 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Note: In Hentschke v. Sink, the court held that an administrator serves at the pleasure of the 
Board and may be removed for any reason satisfactory to the Board. 
If the employee is to be released or reassigned to a teaching position, the Board shall give the 
employee, upon his/her request, a written statement of the reasons for the release/reassignment. 
If the reasons include incompetence as an administrator or supervisor, the district shall have 
completed an evaluation of the employee within the 60-day period immediately preceding the 
notice date. (Education Code 44896) 
 
(7/86 10/94) 3/07 



AR 4161, 4261, 4361 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Administrative Regulation 
Personnel 
 
AR 4161, 4261, 4361 
Leaves 
 
Failure to Return to Service After Leave 
 
Note: Education Code 44842(c) addresses the return to service of a certificated employee at the 
beginning of the school year following a leave of absence after April 30 of the previous school 
year and authorizes termination of the employee if specified circumstances exist. As described in 
item #1 below, one of the circumstances is the employee's failure to report for duty, without 
good cause, after having notified the Governing Board of his/her intent to remain in service. See 
AR 4112.1 - Contracts for provisions of Education Code 44842 pertaining to the duty of all 
certificated employees to notify the district of their intention to remain in service if the district 
has issued a written re-employment notice requesting employees to provide such notice. 
In the case of a certificated employee who was on leave of absence for 20 or more consecutive 
working days after April 30 of the previous school year, the district may terminate the 
employment of such an employee if all of the following circumstances exist: (Education Code 
44842) 
 
1. The employee fails to report for duty, without good cause, at the beginning of the school 
year after having notified the Governing Board of his/her intention to remain in service with the 
district in accordance with Education Code 44842. 
 
2. The district had specifically notified the employee, at least five days in advance, of the 
time and place at which the employee was to report to work. 
 
3. The employee did not request or was not granted a leave of absence authorized by the 
Board. 
 
(cf. 4112.1 - Contracts) 
 
In any such case, the district may terminate the employee's employment on the day following 20 
consecutive days of absence. (Education Code 44842) 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
Use of Leaves by Classified Employees 
 
Note: Education Code 45200 authorizes the Board to allow classified employees to switch from 
vacation leave to another type of leave as provided below. The following optional section is for 
use by districts that choose to offer such an option to classified employees and may be used by 
districts that have adopted the merit system. 



AR 4161, 4261, 4361 

Page 2 of 2 

 

A classified employee may interrupt or terminate vacation leave in order to begin another type of 
paid leave without a return to active service, as long as the employee provides adequate notice 
and relevant supporting information regarding the basis for such interruption or termination. 
(Education Code 45200) 
 
(12/88 10/98) 7/08 



BP 4127, 4227, 4327 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Board Policy  
Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
BP 4127, 4227, 4327  
Personnel  
 
The Governing Board desires to employ highly qualified coaches for the district's sports and 
interscholastic athletic programs in order to enhance the knowledge, skills, motivation, and 
safety of student athletes. 
 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may hire a certificated or noncertificated employee, other than a 
substitute employee, to supervise or instruct interscholastic athletic activities as a temporary 
employee in a limited assignment capacity. (5 CCR 5590) 
 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 
 
Note: When hiring a temporary athletic team coach, Education Code 44919 requires districts to 
first make the position available to a credentialed teacher presently employed by the district. In 
CTA v. Rialto Unified School District, the California Supreme Court held that the law is 
intended to grant a current certificated employee a limited advantage in the hiring process over a 
noncertificated employee or a nonemployee, provided that the applicant applies for the position 
and meets qualification criteria established by the district. 
When hiring a person to fill a position as a temporary athletic team coach, the position shall first 
be made available to qualified certificated teachers currently employed by the district. 
(Education Code 44919) 
 
Note: 5 CCR 5596 specifies a code of ethical conduct for athletic coaches; see the accompanying 
administrative regulation. In addition, the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) has adopted 
a set of principles to guide the conduct of coaches and other participants in interscholastic 
athletic competitions; see BP 6145.2 - Athletic Competition. 
All coaches shall be subject to Board policies, administrative regulations, and California 
Interscholastic Federation bylaws and codes of ethical conduct. 
 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
Noncertificated coaches shall have no authority to assign grades to students. (5 CCR 5591) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
 
Qualifications and Training 



BP 4127, 4227, 4327 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Note: 5 CCR 5593 establishes the minimum qualifications for employees serving as temporary 
athletic team coaches; see the accompanying administrative regulation. 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish qualification criteria for all athletic coaches in 
accordance with law and district standards. These criteria shall ensure that coaches possess an 
appropriate level of competence, knowledge, and skill. 
 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 49024, any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works 
with students in a district-sponsored student activity program, such as an interscholastic athletic 
program, is required to obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC) from the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing, unless the district requires the candidate to clear a 
Department of Justice (DOJ) and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) criminal background 
check. See BP/AR 1240 - Volunteer Assistance and AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record 
Check. Thus, the Governing Board may (1) choose to require a temporary athletic team coach to 
obtain the ASCC or a DOJ/FBI criminal background check; (2) permit an individual, at his/her 
discretion, to obtain either the ASCC or DOJ/FBI check; or (3) apply different requirements to 
different positions in the district (e.g., head coaches vs. assistant coaches; employees vs. 
volunteers). The following paragraph should be modified to reflect district practice. 
Note: In addition, Education Code 45125.01 allows multiple districts within a county or within 
contiguous counties to share criminal record information of noncertificated employees and 
volunteers working in a student activity program. 
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with students in a district-sponsored 
interscholastic athletic program shall, prior to beginning his/her duties, submit to the 
Superintendent or designee either an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate issued by the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing or a Department of Justice and Federal Bureau of 
Investigation criminal background clearance. (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 
 
Following the selection of a temporary athletic team coach, the Superintendent or designee shall 
certify to the Board, at the next regular Board meeting or within 30 days, whichever is sooner, 
that the coach meets the qualifications and competencies required by 5 CCR 5593. By April 1 of 
each year, the Board shall certify to the State Board of Education that the provisions of 5 CCR 
5593 have been met. (5 CCR 5594) 
 
Note: Education Code 49032 requires that all high school coaches complete a district or CIF-
developed coaching education program that meets the guidelines of Education Code 35179.1 and 
includes training on the signs, symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions. Additionally, 
Education Code 33479.6, as added by AB 1639 (Ch. 792, Statutes of 2016), requires coaches, 
beginning July 1, 2017, to complete a training course related to the nature and warning signs of 
sudden cardiac arrest and to retake such a course every two years thereafter. See the 
accompanying administrative regulation. 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the 
extent to which the district's coaches have completed the trainings required by law, including 
those required pursuant to Education Code 33479.6 and 49032, and by district policy. 



BP 4127, 4227, 4327 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Legal Reference: 
 
EDUCATION CODE 
 
35179-35179.7 Interscholastic athletics 
33479-33479.9 The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
44010 Sex offense 
44011 Controlled substance offense 
44332-44332.5 Temporary certificates 
44424 Conviction of a crime 
44808 Liability when students are not on school property 
44916 Written statement indicating employment status 
44919 Classification of temporary employees 
45125.01 Interagency agreements for criminal record information 
45347 Instructional aides subject to requirements for classified staff 
45349 Use of volunteers to supervise or instruct students 
49024 Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
49030-49034 Performance-enhancing substances 
49406 Examination for tuberculosis 
 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
5531 Supervision of extracurricular activities 
5590-5596 Duties of temporary athletic team coaches 
 
COURT DECISIONS 
Neily v. Manhattan Beach Unified School District, (2011) 192 Cal. App. 4th 187 
Kavanaugh v. West Sonoma County Union High School District, (2003) 29 Cal. 4th 911 
CTA v. Rialto Unified School District, (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 627San Jose Teachers Association, 
CTA, NEA v. Barozzi, (1991) 230 Cal.App.3d 1376 
 
Management Resources: 
 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Steroids and Students: What Boards Need to Know, Policy Brief, July 2005 
 
CALIFORNIA INTERSCHOLASTIC FEDERATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Interscholastic Federation Constitution and Bylaws 
Pursuing Victory with Honor, 1999 
 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE 
10-11 Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance 
Certificate (ASCC), July 20, 2010 
 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 



BP 4127, 4227, 4327 

Page 4 of 4 
 

California Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.ca-at.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Interscholastic Federation: http://www.cifstate.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
National Athletic Trainers' Association: http://www.nata.org 
 
(3/10 7/10) 5/17 



AR 4127, 4227, 4327 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Administrative Regulation 
Personnel 
 
AR 4127, 4227, 4327 
Temporary Athletic Team Coaches   
 
Qualifications 
 
Note: 5 CCR 5593 establishes minimum qualifications for certificated and noncertificated 
employees assigned as temporary athletic team coaches. Pursuant to 5 CCR 5593, the 
Superintendent or designee is required to certify to the Governing Board that each newly hired 
coach meets the requirements of 5 CCR 5593; see the accompanying Board policy. 
Note: The district should modify the following section to reflect any additional criteria. Districts 
may consider developing specific criteria for each coaching position. 
Minimum qualifications for temporary athletic team coaches shall include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, competencies in the following areas: (5 CCR 5593) 
 
1. Care and prevention of athletic injuries, basic sports injury first aid, and emergency 
procedures, as evidenced by one or more of the following: 
 
a. Completion of a college-level course in the care and prevention of athletic injuries and 
possession of a valid cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card 
 
b. A valid sports injury certificate or first aid card, and a valid CPR card 
 
c. A valid Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) I or II card 
 
d. A valid trainer's certification issued by the National or California Athletic Trainers' 
Association (NATA/CATA) 
 
e. Possession of both valid CPR and first aid cards and practical experience under the 
supervision of an athletic coach or trainer or experience assisting in team athletic training and 
conditioning 
 
2. Coaching theory and techniques in the sport or game being coached, as evidenced by one 
or more of the following: 
 
a. Completion of a college course in coaching theory and techniques 
 
b. Completion of inservice programs arranged by a school district or county office of 
education 
 
c. Prior service as a student coach or assistant athletic coach in the sport or game being 



AR 4127, 4227, 4327 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 

coached 
 
d. Prior coaching in community youth athletic programs in the sport being coached 
 
e. Prior participation in organized competitive athletics at the high school level or above in 
the sport being coached 
 
3. Knowledge of the rules and regulations pertaining to the sport or game being coached, 
the league rules, and, at the high school level, regulations of the California Interscholastic 
Federation (CIF) 
 
4. Knowledge of child or adolescent psychology, as appropriate, as it relates to sport 
participation, as evidenced by one or more of the following: 
 
a. Completion of a college-level course in child psychology for elementary school positions 
and adolescent or sports psychology for secondary school positions 
 
b. Completion of a seminar or workshop on human growth and development of youth 
 
c. Prior active involvement with youth in school or community sports program 
 
The Superintendent or designee may waive competency requirements for persons enrolled in 
appropriate training courses leading to acquisition of the competency, provided such persons 
serve under the direct supervision of a fully qualified coach until the competencies are met. (5 
CCR 5593) 
 
Note: The qualifications required by 5 CCR 5593 for employees serving as temporary athletic 
team coaches do not apply to volunteer coaches. The following optional paragraph is for use by 
districts that require volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program to meet those same 
qualifications. 
Volunteers who supervise or direct an athletic program shall meet the qualification criteria 
specified in 5 CCR 5593 required for temporary athletic team coaches employed by the district. 
Any volunteer who does not meet such criteria shall serve only under the supervision of a fully 
qualified coach and shall not be given charge of an athletic program. 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
 
Additional Qualifications of Noncertificated Personnel and Volunteers 
 
In addition to the qualifications listed above, any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned 
as a temporary athletic team coach shall: (5 CCR 5592) 
 
1. Be free from tuberculosis and any other contagious disease that would prohibit 
certificated teachers from teaching, as verified by a written statement, renewable every four 
years, from a licensed physician or other person approved by the district 



AR 4127, 4227, 4327 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
 
2. Not have been convicted of any offense referred to in Education Code 44010, 44011, or 
44424, or any offense involving moral turpitude or evidencing unfitness to associate with 
children 
 
Note: Education Code 49024 requires any noncertificated employee or volunteer who works with 
students in a district-sponsored interscholastic athletic program to obtain an Activity Supervisor 
Clearance Certificate from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing or to clear a Department of 
Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal background check prior to beginning his/her 
duties. See the accompanying Board policy. 
Any noncertificated employee or volunteer assigned as a temporary athletic team coach shall 
obtain an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate or a criminal background check in 
accordance with Board policy. (Education Code 49024) 
 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
 
Training 
 
Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools. Education Code 
49032 requires that all high school coaches complete a coaching education program developed 
by the district or the California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) that meets the guidelines listed 
in Education Code 35179.1 and includes training on the signs, symptoms, and appropriate 
response to concussions. Districts that wish to set their own standards for the coaching education 
program instead of using the standards developed by the CIF should modify the following 
paragraph accordingly. 
Each employee or volunteer high school athletic team coach shall complete, at his/her expense, a 
coaching education program that meets the standards developed by the CIF and includes, but is 
not limited to, training in regard to sport psychology, sport pedagogy, sport physiology, sport 
management, statewide and school regulations, and CPR and first aid, including the signs, 
symptoms, and appropriate response to concussions. A high school coach who has completed the 
education program in another California school district shall be deemed to have met the 
requirement for this district. An individual who has not completed the education program may be 
assigned as a coach for no longer than one season of interscholastic competition. (Education 
Code 35179.1, 49032) 
 
Note: Education Code 33479.6, as added by AB 1639 (Ch. 792, Statutes of 2016), requires the 
coach of an athletic activity, beginning July 1, 2017, to complete, and retake every two years 
thereafter, a training course related to the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac arrest, 
including the risks associated with continuing to play or practice after experiencing fainting or 
seizures during exercise, unexplained shortness of breath, chest pain, dizziness, racing heart rate, 
or extreme fatigue. Pursuant to Education Code 33479.7, as added by AB 1639, on or after July 
1, 2019 a coach who does not complete the required sudden cardiac arrest training is subject to 
suspension from coaching any athletic activity until the required training is completed. 



AR 4127, 4227, 4327 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Note: Online training fulfilling this requirement is available on the CIF's web site. Furthermore, 
Education Code 33479.2, as added by AB 1639, requires the California Department of Education 
to post related information on its web site. 
In addition, prior to coaching an athletic activity and every two years thereafter, athletic coaches 
shall complete an approved training course on the nature and warning signs of sudden cardiac 
arrest. (Education Code 33479.2, 33479.6, 33479.7) 
 
Code of Ethical Conduct 
 
Employees providing supervisory or instructional services in interscholastic athletic programs 
and activities shall: (5 CCR 5596) 
 
1. Show respect for players, officials, and other coaches 
 
2. Respect the integrity and judgment of game officials 
 
3. Establish and model fair play, sportsmanship, and proper conduct 
 
4. Establish player safety and welfare as the highest priority 
 
5. Provide proper supervision of students at all times 
 
6. Use discretion when providing constructive criticism and when reprimanding players 
 
7. Maintain consistency in requiring all players to adhere to the established rules and 
standards of the game 
 
8. Properly instruct players in the safe use of equipment 
 
9. Avoid exerting undue influence on a student's decision to enroll in an athletic program at 
any public or private postsecondary educational institution 
 
10. Avoid exerting undue influence on students to take lighter academic course(s) in order to 
be eligible to participate in athletics 
 
11. Avoid suggesting, providing, or encouraging any athlete to use nonprescription drugs, 
anabolic steroids, or any substance to increase physical development or performance that is not 
approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, U.S. Surgeon General, or the American 
Medical Association 
 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
 
12. Avoid recruitment of athletes from other schools 
 
13. Follow the rules of behavior and the procedures for crowd control as established by the 



AR 4127, 4227, 4327 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 

district and the league in which the district participates 
 
(3/10 7/10) 5/17 



BP 4135, 4235, 4335 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 
Board Policy 
Soliciting and Selling 
BP 4135, 4235, 4335 
Personnel  
 
Employees shall not solicit district staff, students or their families with the intent to sell general 
merchandise, books, equipment or services for their own personal profit or benefit. Solicitation 
of students and staff on behalf of the school or other charitable organizations shall be conducted 
in accordance with applicable Board policy and administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 
(cf. 4136/4236/4336 - Nonschool Employment) 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
 
Staff members shall respect the confidentiality of district employees and students and shall not 
use their status as district employees to secure information such as names, addresses, e-mail 
addresses, and telephone numbers for solicitations or use in personal profit-making or beneficial 
ventures. 
 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
 
Educational tours may be promoted on school premises only if they are sponsored by the district. 
Employees engaged in planning, organizing or leading tours as private, non-district-sponsored 
businesses shall make it clear that they do not represent the school or district. All activities 
related to such tours must be carried on outside of school hours and off school premises. 
 
(cf. 3312.2 - Educational Travel Program Contracts) 
 
Staff participation in "flower funds," "anniversary funds" or other similar funds shall be 
voluntary. 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
51520 Prohibited solicitations on school premises 
 
(9/88) 7/03 



19-20 Provisional Stipend list
XTR

A D
U

TY
6/11/2019

2019-2020

C
U

Y
A

M
A

 JO
IN

T U
N

IFIED
 SC

H
O

O
L D

ISTR
IC

T

PO
SITIO

N
Em

ployee
Step

%
 PA

Y
EX

TR
A

 C
O

M
PEN

SA
TIO

N
 SC

H
ED

U
LE

A
SB

/A
C

TIV
ITIES D

IR
EC

TO
R

 (ES)
B

arnes
R

uss
C

 2
FU

LL
A

SB
/A

C
TIV

ITIES D
IR

EC
TO

R
 (H

S)
N

ew
m

an
M

ichael
A

 1
FU

LL
EX

TR
A

 D
U

TY
 SC

H
ED

U
LE

A
TH

LETIC
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

B
osm

a
C

harlie
C

 2
FU

LL
A

N
N

U
A

L A
M

O
U

N
T

B
A

SEB
A

LL - V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
C

arpenter
Troy

n/a
FU

LL
PO

SITIO
N

A
 1

A
 2

B
 1

B
 2

C
 1

C
 2

B
A

SEB
A

LL - V
A

R
SITY

 A
SST. C

O
A

C
H

V
acant

V
acant

n/a
n/p

V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
IN

G
2

1030
1030

1236
1236

1442
1442

B
A

SEB
A

LL - A
SST. C

O
A

C
H

V
acant

V
acant

n/a
n/p

JU
N

IO
R

 V
A

R
SITY

3
773

773
876

876
979

979
B

A
SK

ETB
A

LL, B
O

Y
S - JR

 V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
W

ilson
M

ichael
n/a

n/p
A

SSISTA
N

T
4

515
515

592
592

670
670

B
A

SK
ETB

A
LL, B

O
Y

S - JV
 A

SST. C
O

A
C

H
V

acant
V

acant
n/a

n/p
A

TH
LETIC

 D
IR

EC
TO

R
5

2400
2400

2400
2400

2400
2400

B
A

SK
ETB

A
LL, B

O
Y

S - V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
W

ilson
M

ichael
n/a

FU
LL

C
H

EER
LEA

D
ER

 A
D

V
ISO

R
6

773
773

876
876

979
979

B
A

SK
ETB

A
LL, B

O
Y

S - A
SST. C

O
A

C
H

V
acant

V
acant

n/a
n/p

TEA
C

H
ER

 IN
 C

H
A

R
G

E
7

1000
1000

1100
1100

1210
1210

B
A

SK
ETB

A
LL, G

IR
LS - JR

 V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
V

acant
V

acant
n/a

n/p
H

IG
H

 SC
H

O
O

L C
LA

SS A
D

V
ISO

R
8

550
550

550
550

550
550

B
A

SK
ETB

A
LL, G

IR
LS - JV

 A
SST. C

O
A

C
H

V
acant

V
acant

n/a
n/p

B
ILIN

G
U

A
L PR

O
G

R
A

M
 A

D
V

ISO
R

9
1000

1000
1100

1100
1210

1210
B

A
SK

ETB
A

LL, G
IR

LS - V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
W

ilson 
M

ichael
n/a

FU
LL

FU
TU

R
E FA

R
M

ER
S A

M
ER

IC
A

 A
D

V
10

2400
2400

2400
2400

2400
2400

B
A

SK
ETB

A
LL, G

IR
LS - V

A
R

ISTY
 A

SST C
O

A
C

H
V

acant
V

acant
n/a

n/p
SC

IEN
C

E FA
IR

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
11

258
258

283
283

309
309

C
H

EER
LEA

D
ER

 A
D

V
ISO

R
V

acant
V

acant
n/a

FU
LL

EIG
H

TH
 G

R
A

D
E TR

IP
12

400
400

400
400

400
400

FO
O

TB
A

LL - JR
 V

A
R

SITY
 C

O
A

C
H

V
acant

V
acant

n/a
n/p

A
SB

 A
D

V
ISO

R
 - H

S
14

1500
1500

1750
1750

2000
2000

FO
O

TB
A

LL - JV
 A

SST C
O

A
C

H
V

acant
V

acant
n/a

n/p
A

SB
 A

D
V

ISO
R

 - ES
15

550
550

550
550

550
550

FO
O

TB
A

LL - V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
B

osm
a

C
harlie

C
 2

FU
LL

SC
IEN

C
E C

A
M

P C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
16

400
400

400
400

400
400

FO
O

TB
A

LL - V
A

R
SITY

 A
SST C

O
A

C
H

 
C

harlton
B

iff
n/a

n/p
B

ILIN
G

U
A

L A
ID

17
550

550
550

550
550

550
FO

O
TB

A
LL - A

SST C
O

A
C

H
R

odriguez
R

udy
n/a

n/p
Y

earbook A
dvisor

18
550

550
550

550
550

550
FO

O
TB

A
LL - A

SST C
O

A
C

H
V

acant
V

acant
n/a

n/p
STEP A

D
V

A
N

C
EM

EN
T O

C
C

U
R

S W
ITH

 EA
C

H
 TW

O
(2) Y

EA
R

S O
F EX

PER
IEN

C
E A

T
SO

FTB
A

LL - V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
V

acant
V

acant
n/a

n/p
LEV

EL IN
 SPO

R
T O

R
 A

C
TIV

ITY
 A

N
D

 IN
C

LU
D

IN
G

 C
O

M
PLIA

N
C

E TO
 A

D
O

PTED
SO

FTB
A

LL - A
SST. C

O
A

C
H

V
acant

V
acant

n/a
n/p

PO
SITIO

N
 R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS.  TH

E N
U

M
B

ER
 O

F PO
SITIO

N
S TO

 B
E FILLED

 FO
R

V
O

LLEY
B

A
LL - JR

 V
A

R
SITY

 C
O

A
C

H
Fetterm

an
K

endy
n/a

n/p
EA

C
H

 A
C

TIV
ITY

 IS A
T G

O
V

ER
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
 D

ISC
R

ETIO
N

.
V

O
LLEY

B
A

LL - JR
 V

A
R

SITY
 A

SST C
O

A
C

H
Sw

ader
Linda

n/a
n/p

V
O

LLEY
B

A
LL - V

A
R

SITY
 C

O
A

C
H

Fetterm
an

K
endy

C
 2

FU
LL

V
O

LLEY
B

A
LL - V

A
R

SITY
 A

SST C
O

A
C

H
Sw

ader
Linda

n/a
n/p

FU
TU

R
E FA

R
M

ER
S A

M
ER

IC
A

 A
D

V
Lebsack

K
evin

B
 1

FU
LL

H
IG

H
 SC

H
O

O
L C

LA
SS A

D
V

ISO
R

 (9TH
)

N
ew

m
an

M
ichael

A
 2

FU
LL

H
IG

H
 SC

H
O

O
L C

LA
SS A

D
V

ISO
R

 (10TH
)

Panchi
A

lberto
B

 2
FU

LL
H

IG
H

 SC
H

O
O

L C
LA

SS A
D

V
ISO

R
 (11TH

)
Stancliff

Jennifer
A

 1
FU

LL
H

IG
H

 SC
H

O
O

L C
LA

SS A
D

V
ISO

R
 (12TH

)
Erro

Theresa
A

 1
FU

LL
EIG

H
TH

 G
R

A
D

E FIELD
 TR

IP
B

arnes
R

uss
C

 2
FU

LL
SC

IEN
C

E FA
IR

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
 

Furstenfeld
N

icole
C

 2
FU

LL
TEA

C
H

ER
-IN

-C
H

A
R

G
E (ES)

B
arnes

R
uss

C
 2

FU
LL

TEA
C

H
ER

-IN
-C

H
A

R
G

E (H
S)

Lebsack
K

evin
B

 2
FU

LL
B

ILIN
G

U
A

L A
ID

E
V

acant
V

acant
C

 2
FU

LL
Y

EA
R

B
O

O
K

 A
D

V
ISO

R
 (ES)

H
aslam

D
ori

C
2

FU
LL

Y
EA

R
B

O
O

K
 A

D
V

ISO
R

 (H
S)

B
allard

Tierney
A

 2
FU

LL

2019 - 2020
EX

TRA
 D

U
TY

 SCH
ED

U
LE &

 STIPEN
D

 LIST

CU
Y

A
M

A
 JO

IN
T U

N
IFIED

 SCH
O

O
L D

ISTRICT

==============================



Financial and Operational 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Between  

Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public Schools  

for California Connections Academy Central Coast  

Effective July 1, 2019 

 

1.  RECITALS 

 

The governing Board of Cuyama Joint Unified School District (hereinafter referred to as 

“District”) granted a charter to California Online Public Schools, a non-profit corporation 

(hereinafter referred to as “Corporation”) for California Connections Academy Central Coast, a 

charter school, (hereinafter referred to as “School”) on September 13, 2018, pursuant to the 

Charter Schools Act of 1992, as amended.  This charter, among other matters, calls for the 

Corporation, acting on behalf of the school, and the District to enter into a mutually agreeable 

Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU” or “Agreement”) that describes funding entitlements of 

the School, operation and oversight arrangements, and other matters of mutual interest. To the 

extent this MOU contains terms that are inconsistent with the terms of the approved charter, the 

terms of the Charter shall control. 

 

2. PURPOSE OF THIS MEMORANDUM 

 

 Define funding entitlements of the School and the terms under which the District will make 

funds available to the School 

 Define fees to be paid from the School to the District 

 Define services that the District will provide to the School 

 Clarify the responsibilities of each party. 

 

3. TERM 

 

The term of this MOU shall be from July 1, 2019 and will continue in full force and effect until 

such time the School is no longer chartered by the District, unless the MOU is terminated 

pursuant to Section 21.3.  Both parties agree to review this MOU annually and update this MOU 

as necessary.  

 

4. STATUS OF CHARTER SCHOOL 

 

The following characteristics describe the School and its relationship to the District for purposes 

of this MOU: 

 

 Legal status   ___Dependent on District __X_Non-profit Corporation 

 Employer for Collective 

  Bargaining   ___District   __X__School 

 Special Education  ___Provided By District __X__Provided By School 

 Legal Status of Special Ed _ __Public School of District __X__LEA in SELPA        

(School has been accepted by El Dorado Charter SELPA) 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 2 of 16 

 

 

5.  FUNDING SOURCES 
 

5.1 Direct Funding.  The School shall receive direct state funding in accordance with Ed. 

Code Section 47633.  The School will be responsible for providing the State Department 

of Education and/or the District with all data required for direct funding.  The School 

shall receive funding from new or “one-time” funding sources available to schools or 

school districts provided by the State of California to the extent that the Charter School 

and its Students generate such entitlements.  The District will cooperate with the School, 

as necessary, to procure such additional funds.   

 

5.2 Property Taxes.  The District shall distribute the funds known as “in lieu of property 

taxes” to the School as described in Ed. Code Section 47635, and as outlined in this 

agreement (See Section 6.1).  In the case where distribution of property tax to the school 

in accordance with the schedule laid out in Ed. Code Section 47635(b) creates a financial 

hardship for the District, or as otherwise agreed to by both parties, the School and District 

will work out an alternative payment plan. 

 

5.3 State and Federal Funds.  The District and/or County Treasurer shall distribute funds to 

the School from state and federal sources in a manner and timeline similar to other public 

schools. 

 

5.4 Special Education Funds.  The El Dorado Charter Special Education Local Plan Area 

(SELPA) and the School will maintain a separate arrangement for Special Education 

funding. However, if the District receives any of the Special Education funding for 

School students, the District shall immediately transfer such funds.  The parties recognize 

the funds received for special education purposes from federal and state resources are 

currently inadequate, and that additional funds are required.  It is the intent of the parties 

that, outside of the above-mentioned funding received from the SELPA and/or the 

District, the School will bear financial responsibility for the provision of special 

education services. The School, as a Local Educational Agency (LEA) in the SELPA, 

will be required to pay for all excess costs related to the provision of special education 

services to its Students.  The School may participate in any risk pooling arrangements of 

the SELPA in the same manner as any other LEA of the SELPA.  The School retains the 

right to join another SELPA and in which case, the parties will amend the MOU to reflect 

the name of the new SELPA. 

 

5.5 Non-governmental Funds.  The School retains the right to apply for and receive private 

grant money and/or private donations on its own, and to engage in other fund-raising and 

service providing activities. The School shall retain all such funds for its use consistent 

with the terms of such grants or activities.  Any such monies received shall not reduce the 

annual apportionment received from the District. 

 

 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 3 of 16 

6.  CASH FLOW AND TRANSFER 

 

6.1 Payments From District to School.   The District agrees to pay the School “in lieu of 

property taxes” according to a schedule agreed upon annually. The schedule will be 

developed annually and agreed upon in writing by both Parties no later than August 1 of 

each fiscal year.  The payments will be based initially on the most recent funding rates 

from the state and on the ADA projected in the school’s adopted budget. The amount due 

to the School may then be re-calculated based on the P1 certified property tax rates, and 

then modified again after the P2 certification occurs. At the end of the fiscal year, the 

final amounts of payments will be made, which may also include any calculations for 

prior year adjustments to property tax, as certified by the state. The District will make 

payments based on   the agreed upon schedule within 30 days of the beginning of each 

month.  Details of the amounts due from the District to the School may be updated as 

often as three times per year: prior to the commencement of school, after P1certification 

and after P2 certification. This payment plan may be adjusted by mutual agreement 

pursuant to the adjustment and reconciliation process described in Section 7 below. Both 

parties agree to re-negotiate this section, as mentioned in Section 5.2 above, if the state 

schedule of payments creates a financial hardship for the District, or if otherwise 

desirable to both parties. 

 

6.2 Payments From School to District.  The School shall pay funds due to the District 

according to a schedule agreed upon annually by the Parties. The schedule will be 

developed annually and agreed upon in writing by both Parties no later than August 1 of 

each fiscal year. The schedule will contain details of ongoing funds due and is to be 

updated at least twice annually: prior to the commencement of the school year, based on 

the adopted budget, and then again after the P2 reporting period has ended, as soon as 

possible after certification of P2 by the state.  The District will send invoice(s) to the 

School based on the agreed upon schedule, and the School shall pay the District as soon 

as possible and no later than sixty (60) days after the receipt of an invoice.   

 Oversight fees are described in Section 8.3 of this Agreement. The schedule of 

payments may be adjusted by mutual agreement pursuant to the adjustment and 

reconciliation process described in Section 7 below. 

 Administrative service fees are described in Section 12 and will be adjusted 

annually. 

 

6.3 Other Services.  The estimates of costs for other services provided by the District to the 

School are based on mutual agreement and are discussed in Section 12 of this MOU.  

Other services shall be agreed upon and recorded in separate agreements.  Payments may 

be incorporated herein with mutual written consent of parties. 

 

7.  ADJUSTMENTS AND RECONCILIATION 

 

The amounts initially included in the payment schedules are estimates of amounts due to be 

transferred between the District and the School based on the current best information available.  

These amounts are estimated based on the projected enrollment of the School, the budget 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 4 of 16 

adopted by the School’s Board of Directors (“Board”), estimates of state and local funding rates, 

and the guidelines of the CDE School Fiscal Services Division. 

 

Either party may request, at any time, a meeting to discuss adjustments to, or reconciliation of, 

these figures whenever there is reason to believe that these estimates are not reflective of the 

actual amounts owing.  Payments to the School will be adjusted following P2 adjustments to 

revenues made by the state, and reconciled annually during the fiscal close out of the prior fiscal 

year.  Payments to the School shall also be subject to adjustment based on any adjustments to 

student counts as a result of an audit by the state of California. 

 

Financial adjustments may be made in subsequent fiscal years between the School and the 

District that result from apportionment changes, audit adjustments, and/or other legally required 

adjustments. 

 

 

8. SUPERVISORIAL OVERSIGHT 

 

The School, the Corporation, and the District agree that the “supervisorial oversight” as used in 

Ed. Code sec. 47613 shall include the following: 

1. All activities related to the charter revocation, renewal and amendment processes, as 

described in Ed. Code sec. 47607 and of the School Charter. 

2. Activities related to monitoring the performance and compliance of the Charter School with 

respect to the terms of its Charter, related agreements and applicable laws. 

3. Review of and timely response, if applicable, to any school performance reports, including 

LCAP (Charter, Section VIII.A.) and related processes as outlined in the School’s Charter. 

4. Participating in the dispute resolution process as described in Section V. E. of the Charter. 

5. Development and updating of this MOU to clarify and interpret the charter and the 

operational relationship of the District and the School. 

6. Completion of the following duties required under Education Code Section 47604.32: 

a. Identify at least one (1) District staff member as a contact person for the School. 

b. Visit the School at least annually. If the school does not have a physical location 

within the District, the School and District may meet at the District office as part of 

the annual oversight process. 

c. Ensure that the School complies with all reports required of charter schools by law. 

d. Monitor the fiscal condition of the School, including review of annual fiscal audit of 

the School. 

e. Provide timely notification to the California Department of Education if any of the 

following circumstances occur:  Renewal of the charter is granted or denied; the 

charter is revoked; or, the School ceases operation for any reason. 

7.  Inspection of teacher credentials, as per EC 47605 (l). The District will attempt to provide one 

business days’ notice of any inspection of credentials it wishes to conduct.  The School will 

provide the name and state ID number for credentialed teachers annually upon request of the 

District.  



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 5 of 16 

8.  Communication between the School and District staff that relates to these oversight and 

monitoring activities will not be considered “other services” as defined in Section 12 of this 

MOU. 

 

8.1 Local Control Accountability Plan.  In addition to an annual audit and in accordance with 

Education Code Section 47606.5, the School shall deliver to the District by July 1 of each 

year, a report which provides an analysis of academic performance of Students during the 

prior school year as required by the state and as further described in the Charter Section 

VIII. A.  The report shall include performance required in the state’s accountability 

system, applicable requirements under the Every Student Succeeds Act, or equivalent 

federal requirements, and any other required elements. 

 

8.2 Monitoring Activities by District.  The District shall provide at least 24-hour advance 

notice prior to an official visit for the purpose of monitoring the School and shall make an 

effort not to disrupt instruction during any visit.  After the 24-hour notice, the 

superintendent reserves the right to visit the school.  This provision however, shall not 

impede the District’s ability to visit the school without advance notice should the District 

have reason to believe that a severe and imminent threat to the health or safety of pupils 

exists at the school. 

 

8.3 Oversight Fees.  The Parties agree that the District will incur costs in connection with its 

performance of supervisory oversight of the School as required by law, and that it is not 

in the best interests of either Party to require a mechanical assessment, accounting, billing 

and payment process to compensate the District for such costs.   The Parties further agree 

that the District is not providing the School with substantially rent-free facilities as 

referenced by Education Code section 47613(b).  Therefore, the Parties agree that the 

cost of the District’s supervisory oversight of the School is one percent (1%) of the 

School’s Local Control Funding Formula general purpose revenues, as defined in 

Education Code section 47613, subd. (f).  The annual amount owed for the Oversight 

Fees will be adjusted at least once annually following the state’s certification at P2 of the 

amount of revenue owed to the school as defined above. Subsequent adjustments may 

also be made during the following fiscal year if necessitated by adjustments to the 

school’s revenue by the state. 

 

9.  DATA REPORTING 

 

9.1 Average Daily Attendance (ADA).  The School will develop an attendance reporting 

calendar and maintain a system to record and account for ADA.  The School will report 

the ADA figures to the District, the Santa Barbara County Office of Education , and/or 

the California Department of Education, as required by law, on a timely basis for the P1, 

P2 and annual reporting periods.  When requested, the School shall report ADA to the 

District on a more frequent basis.  The School and District will review and agree on the 

procedures to be used for attendance accounting when updating this MOU, including 

review of the school’s attendance calendar.  

 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 6 of 16 

9.2 California Pupil Longitudinal Achievement Data System (CALPADS).  The School shall 

complete and submit enrollment and other necessary demographic information to 

CALPADS and obtain State Student Identification Numbers from CALPADS, as 

necessary, on its own behalf. The School and District may negotiate for the District to 

provide support for CALPADS reporting on a fee for service basis, but only if such a 

service is mutually agreeable to both parties. 

 

9.3 Other Data.  The District and the School shall work cooperatively to supply any other 

information necessary to enable the School and District to calculate entitlement to all 

available funding sources and to comply with any other state reporting requirements.   

 

9.4 Information Systems Package.  The School has elected to purchase its own software for 

Information Systems and will maintain the software so that ADA and other data reporting 

may be done in a timely and accurate manner in accordance with state guidelines. 

 

10.  BUDGET AND FINANCE 

 

On behalf of the School, the Corporation shall annually provide the following financial 

information to the District: 

 

a) A proposed budget, approved by the Corporation’s Board for the School, for the 

upcoming fiscal year.  The budget will show estimated revenue and expenditures based 

on identified and reasonable assumptions.  The approved budget will be available on or 

before July 1 of the fiscal year. 

b) Following final budget revisions at the State level, if the Corporation has revised the 

School’s budget, the Corporation will provide the School’s revised operational budget 

effective as of October 31.  The revised Budget would be provided as part of the first 

interim financial report due on December 15 each year. The Corporation will notify the 

District prior to that date if the School becomes aware of any substantial budget changes. 

c) Monthly financial reports will be available to the District in the format used to present the 

reports to Corporation’s Board. 

d) In accordance with Education Code Section 447604.33, mid-year financial reports 

displaying the financial status of the School as of October 31st, and January 31st, will be 

provided to the District and County Office of Education no later than December 15thand 

March 15th, respectively.  Financial information will be provided in a format mutually 

agreed upon by the Corporation and District. The Corporation will provide the District 

and the County Office of Education with unaudited actual reports for the School for the 

full prior year no later than September 15, as required by Education Code Section 

47604.33. The charter school alternative format provided annually by the CDE will be 

the format used unless otherwise mutually agreed upon by the School and District. 

e) The District reserves the right to request additional School financial information and 

inspect School financial records if District officials deem such information necessary to 

perform State required financial oversight responsibilities. Such requests would be made 

in writing and reasonable timeframes would be established to allow the Corporation to 

produce such additional financial information. 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 7 of 16 

 

 

11.  FISCAL AUDIT 

 

The Corporation shall cause to be prepared an annual audit of the financial transactions of the 

School each year pursuant to the terms specified in the charter.  The Corporation shall retain an 

auditor certified to audit public schools.  This audit will include School attendance records (as 

described in the Charter). The Corporation shall forward a copy of the audit to the 

Superintendent of the District, as well as to other parties required by law, after review by the 

Corporation’s Board of the final audit findings.  An annual audit will be completed by December 

15th following the close of the school year.  Any negative findings or exceptions shall be 

resolved pursuant to the terms of the Charter and the relevant provisions of the Education Code.  

 

12. OTHER SERVICES 

 

12.1 Facility and Mail Services. The District will provide the School with office and/or storage 

and/or testing facility space on District property, and the use of the District’s office 

equipment, for a monthly fee of $500 (five hundred dollars). The District will provide 

mail services to the School for a monthly fee of $250 (two hundred and fifty dollars). The 

School will pay for these services within 60 (sixty) days of receipt of an invoice from the 

District. Both parties agree services may be paid in advance.   

 

12.2    Administrative Support Services. The Parties understand and agree that, in addition to its 

supervisorial oversight obligations, as set forth in Section 8, the District will provide 

certain general administrative support and assistance falling outside of the District’s 

supervisorial oversight responsibilities (“Administrative Support Services”) as listed 

below, at a blended rate for all time spent by the District on Administrative Support 

Services of $100 (one hundred dollars) per hour. During the first year of operation the 

District estimates the hours needed will be 30 (thirty), therefore, the School agrees to pay 

$3,000 (three thousand dollars) divided into two installments, to be paid within 60 (sixty) 

days of receipt of an invoice from the District. However, if the District’s service hours 

exceed this estimate, then the District’s invoices shall include the number of extra hours, 

which may be billed in ½ hour increments, per category of Administrative Support 

Services for the billing period.  In light of financial constraints, the School’s obligation to 

pay for, and the District’s obligation to provide the Administrative Support Services 

pursuant to this Agreement shall be subject to a maximum cap of $5,000 (five thousand 

dollars) for fees incurred in Year One of this Agreement (“Year One Maximum Cap”) 

Estimated hours for the second year of the Agreement and beyond will be agreed upon by 

both parties in writing no later than August 1 of each fiscal year. Administrative Support 

Services include, but are not limited to, the following, to the extent they are not required 

oversight obligations: 

  a)  Responding to communications from third parties regarding the School, 

  b)  Professional development or technical support provided to the School, 

 c)  Providing information to the surrounding community and region regarding the 

School, and  



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 8 of 16 

 d)  Meetings and communications with the School and/or with other parties, legal 

counsel or support organizations in order to provide support to the School. 
 

12.3 Additional Services.  The Parties may, by separate written agreement, mutually agree on 

additional services (“Additional Services”) the District will provide to the School, and the 

fees to be charged to the School for the provision of such Additional Services. 
 

 
 

12.4 Termination of Services.  If either the District or the School (or the Corporation on behalf 

of the School) decide to terminate provision of ongoing services being provided, that 

party must give the other at least sixty (60) days’ notice of its determination to terminate 

services being provided. The remaining provisions of this Agreement shall survive a 

termination pursuant to this section. 

 

 

13. SPECIAL EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES 

 

The School has elected to be a Local Educational Agency for special education purposes 

pursuant to Education Code 47641.  For purposes of this agreement, the SELPA shall provide the 

state and federal Special Education funding to the School and the School shall provide all 

services to the School’s Students and shall be financially responsible for the provision of those 

services as further described below.  This MOU constitutes written verifiable assurances that the 

School will provide special education services in compliance with all applicable laws and 

regulations. The information below provides additional information about how the School will 

provide Special Education Services to enrolled students in compliance with applicable laws. 

 

13.1 Section 504 and the ADA.  Absent agreement of the parties to the contrary, the School 

shall be solely responsible, at its own expense, for compliance with Section 504 and the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) with respect to eligible Students. 

 

13.2 Interpretation of Agreement.  Nothing in this MOU is intended to supersede any term or 

condition of the charter granted to the School. 

 

13.3 Identification and Referral of Students.  The School has the initial responsibility to make 

referrals for identification and assessments of any Students who are enrolled in the 

School who are believed to be eligible for special education assessment and/or services.  

Prior to making any referral, the School shall convene a Student study team, if at all 

possible (given a parent’s right to refuse such an option) to determine if alternative 

interventions are appropriate.  All referrals shall immediately be provided to the School 

Special Education staff and/or the School’s contracted service provider for consultation, 

identification and assessment. 

 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 9 of 16 

13.4 Assessment of Special Education Students.  The School will determine what assessments, 

if any, are necessary and arrange for such assessments for all referred Students, for 

annual assessments, and for tri-annual assessments. 

 

13.5 Individualized Education Program.  The School shall be initially responsible for 

arranging the necessary Individualized Education Program (IEP) meetings.  The School 

shall be responsible for providing adequate meeting arrangements, having the designated 

representative of the School participate in the IEP meeting, in addition to representatives 

who are knowledgeable about the regular education program at the School.  Further, the 

School responsibilities shall include documentation of the IEP meeting and the provision 

of parent rights. 

 

13.6 Eligibility and Placement.  Decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program 

placement and exit from special education shall be the decision of the IEP team.  Team 

membership shall be in compliance with federal law and shall include the designated 

representative of the School.  Services and placement shall be provided to all eligible 

School Students in accordance with the IDEA and the policies, procedures and 

requirements of the SELPA.   

 

13.7 Interim Placement.  For Students who enroll in the School with a current IEP where the 

IEP team determined that Independent Study is appropriate, it is the responsibility of the 

School to implement the existing IEP to the extent possible at the School.  The School 

will also require, as part of its admissions process, that prospective Students consent to 

acquisition of their cumulative files, including all special education files from their prior 

school.  For Students who were previously enrolled in the District, the District agrees to 

forward the student’s cumulative file, including all special education files to the School 

within ten (10) days of written notification. 

 

13.8 Special Educational Services and Programs.  The School can contract all or part of its 

above responsibilities for the provision of special needs services to a third party provider. 

To the extent that the agreed upon IEP requires educational or related services to be 

delivered by staff other than the School staff, the School shall provide such services 

through a contract with a third party special education provider(s).  All services required 

by the IEP will be provided by the School and its contractor(s). 

 

13.9 Parent/Guardian Concerns.  Parent/Guardian concerns regarding special education 

services shall be directed to the School.  The School shall address the Parent/Guardian 

concerns.  The School shall distribute with its admissions material information pertaining 

to the provision of special education services. 

 

13.10 Complaints.  The School shall address, respond, investigate, and take any and all 

necessary action to respond to all complaints received under, among other things, the 

uniform complaint procedure, involving special education and IDEA compliance. 

 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 10 of 16 

13.11 Due Process Hearing.  The  School may initiate a due process hearing on behalf of the 

Student enrolled in the School as the  School determines is legally necessary to meet its 

responsibilities under federal law.   

 

13.12 SELPA Activities and Meetings.  The School shall participate in SELPA meetings and 

activities to the extent allowable under SELPA policies. To the extent that the District 

and/or SELPA provide training opportunities and/or information regarding special 

education to site staff, such opportunities/information shall be made available to the 

School and its staff.   

 

13.13. Supervisorial Oversight.  The District will have “supervisorial oversight”, as that term is 

defined in Ed. Code § 47613, over the School providing Special Education Services.  The 

parties acknowledge that School has responsibility for following the policies and 

procedures of the SELPA, of which it is a member.  In the event the District receives or 

initiates a complaint or inquiry regarding School's discharge of its responsibilities, it shall 

forward such complaint or inquiry to School and  School shall be solely responsible for 

responding to such complaint or inquiry. In the event of a dispute between the parties 

arising out of such complaint or inquiry that the parties are unable or unwilling to resolve, 

such dispute shall be subject to the dispute resolution process set forth in the MOU.  The 

parties agree that a representative of the SELPA shall be entitled to participate in any 

dispute resolution proceeding that relates to the School’s responsibilities under this 

Section and/or the District’s oversight responsibilities referenced in this Section, and the 

parties waive any right to object to such participation by SELPA.   The oversight services 

performed by the District referenced in this section, together with the oversight services 

to be provided by the District pursuant to Section 8,  will be subject to the oversight fee 

provided for in Section 8.3. 

 

13.14 Special Education Funding.  The SELPA shall provide the School all state or federal 

revenues that are generated by Students attending the School that are distributed to the 

SELPA by the state and in accordance with SELPA policies.  The parties recognize the 

funds received for special education purposes from federal and state resources are 

currently inadequate, and that additional funds are required.  It is the intent of the parties 

that, outside of the above-mentioned funding received by the SELPA, the School will 

bear financial responsibility for the provision of special education services.  The School 

will be required to pay for all excess costs related to special education services to School 

Students.   

 

 

14.  STANDARDIZED TESTING 

 

14.1 State Standardized Testing. The School will administer the California State standardized 

testing as required by law.  Arrangements for ordering, administering, and obtaining 

reimbursement for the state tests will be done by the School independently from the 

District. The School is responsible to ensure the School’s test scores and data are reported 

accurately according to law.  Upon request, District may provide one (1) testing site for 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 11 of 16 

test administration. The District’s fee for providing such a testing site is included in 

Section 12.  The School will provide staff to administer the assessments. 

  

14.2 English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC).  The School will 

administer the ELPAC or its successors as required by law.  Arrangements for ordering, 

administering, and being reimbursed for the state tests will be done by the School. The 

School will insure the School’s test scores and data are compiled and reported accurately 

and on time.  In addition, the School will work to identify and designate the status of 

English Language Learners enrolled at the school. Upon request, District may provide 

one (1) testing site for test administration and annual training for schools’ test 

administrators.  The District’s fee for providing such a testing site is included in Section 

12. 

14.3 Staff Development.  The School and District agree to communicate regarding District’s 

staff development and training sessions that apply to either administration or 

interpretation of State tests, and District agrees that if requested by the School, 

representatives from School staff may choose to attend.   If such training is requested by 

the School or the District offers other training sessions that the School staff may wish to 

attend, the District will provide an estimate in advance of the anticipated cost of such 

training sessions, or may provide such training at no cost to the School.  

 

15.  DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE TO GOVERNING BOARD 

 

15.1 District Representative. The District has the option of appointing a representative to the 

Corporation’s Board under Education Code 47604.  Until and unless changed in writing by the 

District, the District elects at this time not to appoint a representative to the Corporation’s Board. 

The District may also designate at any time a liaison to the Board who will not be a member but 

who may attend meetings and receive public board agendas, minutes, and materials. The District 

Superintendent, or designee, shall initially serve as liaison. The District may appoint a member 

to the Corporation’s Board or change the designated liaison at any time by notifying the School 

in writing. 

 

16.  NOTIFICATIONS TO SCHOOL PARENTS 

 

16.1 Notification of Transferability of High School Courses: The School will notify parents of 

the transferability of School courses to other high schools and colleges as part of the School 

Handbook.  

 

17.  SCHOOL RECORDS 

 

17.1 School Records. The School will be responsible for keeping and maintaining accurate 

and legal records regarding its business, including, but not limited to, student and personnel 

records.  On behalf of the school, the Corporation will implement policies and procedures 

regarding content and responsibility for these records and will comply with applicable law 

regarding retention, confidentiality, and destruction of school records.  The District will be 

provided with a copy of this policy for review upon request. The Corporation and School agree 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 12 of 16 

to cooperate with the District regarding input on this policy.  The School and District agree to 

provide any applicable student or personnel records to the other in a timely way.  The School or 

District may charge for the actual cost of providing such records (e.g. copying and mailing). The 

School and District shall cooperate on maintaining long-term student records. The School and 

District also agree to cooperate with each other if further assistance beyond student records is 

needed following a student transfer. 

 

18.  PERSONNEL AGREEMENT 

 

18.1  Personnel Agreement.  As stated in the Charter in Section V.C., Rights of School District 

Employees, if an employee leaves District employment, from either the sponsoring District or 

any other district, to work at the charter school, the collective bargaining agreements and District 

Board policies of that district shall govern the return rights of such employees. The District and 

the Corporation are separate employers.   

 

Upon request, the School shall provide the District proof of employment of appropriately 

credentialed teachers at the School for that school year consistent with the qualification 

requirements for “Teachers” set forth in the Charter.  The District reserves the right to review 

School staffing lists to ensure compliance with applicable law and to determine whether a 

teacher is deemed to be appropriately credentialed.  Flexibility will be given to teachers hired by 

the School for non-core, non-college preparatory courses as permitted by Education Code 

Section 47605(l). 

 

19. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

19.1.1 General liability.  The Corporation on behalf of the School shall maintain in force during 

the term of this Agreement, general and public liability coverage in amounts of not less 

than One Million ($1,000,000) Dollars primary and Five Million ($5,000,000) Dollars 

excess. The insurance or self-insurance program will name the District as an additional 

insured or the equivalent thereof, and certificates of insurance will be provided upon 

request.  

 

19.1.2 Workers’ Compensation.  The Corporation on behalf of the School agrees to carry 

workers’ compensation insurance to protect its employees at a limit determined by the 

Labor Code of the State of California and Employers’ Liability insurance in the amount 

of One Million ($1,000,000) Dollars or its current limit of each, whichever is greater. 

Proof of such coverage will be furnished to the District upon request. 

 

19.2 Property Insurance. The School shall have the sole responsibility for insuring its personal 

property and securing property insurance for its facility and/or property.  

 

19.3 Indemnification.  The District agrees to indemnify and hold the Corporation and the School 

and their officers, directors, employees, and agents harmless and free from all claims, 

actions, audits, losses, liabilities or expenses arising under this agreement that are the 

responsibility of the District that may arise as a result of the District’s acts or omissions in 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 13 of 16 

the performance of this agreement except such loss or damage caused solely by the 

negligence or willful misconduct of the Corporation. 

 

The Corporation and the School agree to indemnify and hold the District and its officers, 

directors, employees, and agents harmless and free from all claims, actions, audits, losses, 

liabilities or expenses arising under this agreement that are the responsibility of the School 

that may arise as a result of the School’s acts or omissions in the performance of this 

agreement, except such loss or damage caused solely by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of the District. 

 

19.4 Evidence of Coverage.  The Corporation on behalf of the School will provide the District 

evidence of insurance coverage upon request. 

 

 

20. FACILITIES USE AGREEMENT 

 

20.1 Facilities Use Agreement. Aside from the provision of facilities under Sections 12 and 

14, if the School has a need to use any District facilities, and the District agrees to 

provide such facilities, the School and District will prepare and approve a Facilities Use 

Agreement in addition to this MOU.  This Agreement will contain the details of the 

arrangements, including fees, between the District and School for the use of a District 

facility. The school will use the District office address to report a physical location for 

compliance purposes. The District will arrange to forward mail received at that address 

intended for the school. Fees for this service will be arranged annually.  

 

20.2 Proposition 39 Waiver. The District shall have no responsibility to construct, fund, 

improve, or modernize the School’s facility, except to the extent that the facility may be 

property of the District.  The District has no obligation to provide facilities to the School 

pursuant to Education Code section 47614 throughout the term of its Charter. 

 

21. CONSTRUCTION AND SEVERABILITY 

 

21.1 Amendments.  This agreement may be amended or modified, in whole or in part, only by 

an agreement in writing developed in the same manner as this agreement, mutually 

agreed upon and executed by the parties. 

 

21.2 Severability.  If any provision or any part of this agreement is for any reason held to be 

invalid and/or unenforceable or contrary to public policy, law, statute, and/or ordinance, 

the remainder of this agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall remain valid and 

fully enforceable. 

 

21.2 Dispute Resolution.  To the extent consistent with the Charter, in the event of a dispute 

between the School and the District regarding the terms of the Charter or any other issue 

regarding the School and District relationship, both parties agree to apprise the other, in 

writing, of the specific disputed issue(s). In the event the initiating party believes the 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 14 of 16 

dispute relates to an issue that could potentially lead to revocation of the Charter, this 

shall be specifically noted in the written dispute statement. Within 30 days of sending 

written correspondence, or longer, if both parties agree, the principal of the School and 

the District superintendent, or their designees, shall meet and confer in an attempt to 

resolve the dispute. The designees must be identified and confirmed in writing. If this 

joint meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the School representative and the District 

representative shall meet again within 15 days, or longer if both parties agree, to identify 

a neutral, third party mediator to assist in dispute resolution. Unless jointly agreed, the 

process involving assistance of a third party mediator shall conclude within 45 days. 

 

All mediation costs and all other costs associated with dispute resolution shall be shared 

equally by the School and the District, provided that each party shall be solely 

responsible for its own attorney’s fees. The School is entitled to receive funds throughout 

the term of the Charter. In the event of a dispute between the School and the District, the 

District shall not be permitted to withhold, as a remedy or otherwise, any funds received 

on behalf of the School. 

 

In the event the third party mediation process does not result in resolution of the dispute, 

both parties agree to continue good faith negotiations. If the District indicates in writing 

that the violation constitutes a severe and imminent threat to the health and safety of the 

School’s students, the District is not required to be referred to mediation, but reserves the 

right to take any action it deems appropriate to insure the safety of students. The School 

reserves the right to seek legal redress for any such actions under the law. 

 

In addition to the processes above, the   Board will develop, adopt and maintain updated 

policies and procedures for resolving internal and external disputes and grievances. These 

procedures will be included in the School and Employee Handbooks.  

 

The District agrees to refer all complaints regarding the School’s operations to the School 

staff and/or the Board for resolution in accordance with the School’s adopted policies, 

except for a complaint related to a severe or imminent threat to the health and safety of 

the students. 

 

21.3 Termination. Except as otherwise provided in Section 12 of this MOU pursuant to which 

either party may separately terminate the provision of one or more services upon no less 

than 60 days’ notice to the other party, the remaining provisions of this MOU may not be 

terminated except: 

 

 a)   In the event of a material breach of the MOU by a party and in that event only 

after the non-breaching party provides written notice to the breaching party 

specifically identifying the breach and a minimum of sixty (60) days opportunity 

to cure the specified breach in order to avoid termination; or 

 

 b) In the event a party provides notification to the other party of its intent to 

terminate the MOU no less than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 15 of 16 

existing charter term.  Termination of this MOU under this subsection 21.3.b shall 

occur on the date the existing charter term ends. 

 

In the event of termination, any amounts owed as of the date of termination shall be paid 

within sixty (60) days of such date. The parties’ indemnity obligations and rights with 

respect to any liabilities and claims for damages, death, sickness or injury to persons or 

property from acts and/or omissions during the term of this Agreement shall survive the 

termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 

21.4 Charter School Governance.  The Corporation is incorporated as a California non-profit 

public benefit corporation.  The School will be governed by the Board of Directors 

pursuant to its bylaws.     

 

The Board will adhere to all applicable laws for non-profit public benefit corporations 

operating a charter school, including but not limited to the laws regarding interested 

parties and conflict of interest. In addition, the Board agrees to conduct its business in 

compliance with all applicable sections of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Open Meeting 

Laws).  The Board will adopt and regularly update a Conflict of Interest Code under the 

Political Reform Act.  The Board will also adhere to any additional statutes or 

requirements regarding charter school governance that set in place that are specifically 

applicable to California charter schools. 

 

21.5 Notifications.  All notices, requests and other communications (collectively “Notices”) 

under this agreement given to or by the parties shall be in writing.  Notices shall be 

deemed to have been duly given on the date of service if personally served on the party to 

whom the Notice is to be given, or seventy two (72) hours after mailing by United States 

first class mail, registered or certified mail, postage pre-paid, and addressed to the party 

to whom Notice is to be given at the proper addresses as follows: 

 

 To the District at: 

Cuyama Joint Unified School District 

Attn: Superintendent 

2300 Highway 166  

New Cuyama, CA 93254 

 

To the Corporation and the School at: 

California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

Procopio, Cory, Hargreaves & Savitch LLP 

525 B Street, Suite 2200  

San Diego, CA  92101 

Attn: Board President, c/o Greg Moser 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this agreement have duly executed it on the day 

and year set forth below. 

 



Memorandum of Understanding between Cuyama Joint Unified School District and California Online Public 

Schools for California Connections Academy Central Coast Charter School 

 

Page 16 of 16 

On behalf of the Cuyama Joint Unified School District: 

 

 

By__________________________________________________ Date:_______________ 

 Stephen Bluestein, Superintendent  

 

 

On behalf of California Online Public Schools for California Connections Academy Central 

Coast Charter School: 

 

 

 

By___________________________________________________ Date:_______________  

Elaine Pavlich, President, California Online Public Schools 



 
 

www.CharterSELPA.org  
Inspire – Educate – Empower 

May 14, 2019 
 

Richard Savage 
California Online Public Schools 
33272 Valle Rd.  
San Juan Capistrano, CA 92675 
rsavage@calca.connectionsacademy.org  

 
 

Sent via Email   
 
Dear Mr. Savage, 
 
This letter is to confirm that the application for California Connections Academy Central Coast 
and California Connections Academy Monterey Bay have been reviewed and are approved for 
admission in the El Dorado Charter SELPA.  To complete this process please submit a Letter of 
Intent, signed by the CEO, confirming your intent to join for the 2019‐20 school year by, May 
28, 2019.   
 

You will receive an email with registration details for the upcoming New Partner Induction 
Meetings taking place this month.  As soon as you receive the email, please choose the 
location/date that works best for you and register right away.  
 

We look forward to our partnership.  Please contact Kelly Carnahan at kcarnahan@edcoe.org, 
or (530) 295‐2452, if you have any questions.   
 

Sincerely, 

 
David M. Toston 
Associate Superintendent 
 

DMT:kc 
 

cc:   
  Ed Manansala, Ed.D., El Dorado County Office of Education, Superintendent of Schools 
  Stephen Bluestein, Cuyama Joint Unified, Charter Authorizer   
  Jarice Butterfield, Santa Barbara County, Current/Geographic SELPA 
  Tanya Krause, Scotts Valley Unified, Charter Authorizer  
  Jessica Little, N Santa Cruz County, Current/Geographic SELPA 
  Faris Sabbah, Santa Cruz County Office of Education, Administrative Unit 
  Franci Sassin, California Online Public Schools, Director of Business



 

 1 

 
DRAFT – FOR BOARD REVIEW JUNE 18, 2019 

California Online Public Schools (CalOPS) 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

GOVERNING BOARD for: 
CalCA North Bay 

CalCA Central 
CalCA Central Coast 
CalCA Monterey Bay 

CalCA Ripon 
CalCA Southern California/Capistrano Connections Academy (CapoCA) 

 
Friday, May 31, 2019 at 7:00 a.m. PT 

 
Held at the following locations and via teleconference:  

CalCAR School Site: 580 N. Wilma Avenue, Suite G, Ripon, CA  95366 
CapoCA School Site: 33272 Valle Road, San Juan Capistrano, CA  92675 

23091 Arden Street, Lake Forest, CA  92630 
2142 E. Yosemite, Merced, CA  95340 

25858 Tanforan Drive, Madera, CA  93638 
1081 W. Manning Avenue, Reedley, CA  93654 

2277 Fair Oaks Blvd. Ste. 150, Sacramento, CA  95825 
8803 Cardinal Avenue, Fountain Valley, CA  92615 

8422 Madison Avenue, Fair Oaks, CA  95628 
44304 Copper Moon Lane, Lancaster, CA  93536 

 

 
I. Call to Order 
 
In Ms. Pavlich’s absence, Mr. Henjum called the meeting to order at 7:10 a.m. when all participants were present and 
able to hear each other.  The meeting and school sites were open to the public to attend.   
 
 
II. Roll Call 
 
Board Members Present at Roll Call:  Mike Henjum, Diana Rivas, Veronica Schreiver, Brooke Watkins and 
Adam Pulsipher (all via phone);  
 
Board Members Absent:  Elaine Pavlich, Dave Souza and Paul Hedrick; 
 
Guests Present: Franci Sassin, School staff (in person at CapoCA Office); Richard Savage, Executive Director; 
Marcus White, CenCA Site Administrator; Heather Tamayo, CapoCA Site Administrator; Ritchie Ramero, School 
staff; Brian Rosta, Jay W. Ragley, Eileen Sigmund, Donna Kozub, Kinjal Bhatt and Laura Coleman, Pearson Online 
& Blended Learning (POBL) staff (all via phone). 
 
 
III. Public Comment 
 
There were no public comments at this time. 
 
 
  



 

 2 

IV. Routine Business 
 

a. Approval of Agenda 
 

Mr. Henjum asked the Board to review the Agenda distributed prior to the meeting, and posted by May 30, 
2019 in compliance with the Brown Act requirements. In consideration of time, the Board requested that the 
Consent Agenda and Action Items are moved up on the Agenda immediately following the Approval of the 
Agenda.  There being no further changes noted, the following motion was made and seconded as follows: 

 
RESOLVED, that the Agenda for the May 31, 2019 Special Board Meeting, as presented, is hereby 
approved.  

 
The motion was approved unanimously. 

 
Consent Agenda  

 
Mr. Henjum asked Board Members whether there were any items from the Consent Items that they wished to have 
moved to Action Items for discussion, or tabled.  There being no changes noted, a motion was made and seconded 
as follows: 
 
RESOLVED, the Consent Items:   
 

a. Approval of Minutes from the April 23, 2019 Board Meeting;   
b. Approval of Staffing Report;  
c. Approval of Connections Education Invoice(s);  
d. Approval of Health & Safety Policies;  
e. Approval of Federal Funding Documentation: Budgets;  
f. Approval of Annual Charter School Information Surveys;  
g. Approval of Renewal of OCDE STRS Agreement on Behalf of CalCA Schools; and  
h. Ratification of CalCA Southern California Charter Renewal; are hereby approved.  

 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

Action Items 
 

a. Approval of Statement of Agreement (SOA) with Pearson Online & Blended Learning  
 

Mr. Ragley reviewed the process completed to date regarding the Statement of Agreement (SOA) with 
Pearson Online & Blended Learning (POBL), including negotiations with school leadership, Board Counsel, 
POBL support staff and POBL Counsel.  He further reviewed the timeline and process expected for 
consideration at a future Board meeting.  There being no further discussion, this item was tabled.   

 
 

b. Approval of CalCA Central Coast Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)  
 

Dr. Sassin reviewed with the Board the CalCA Central Coast Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), as 
included in the Board meeting materials.  She further reviewed the timeline and last steps necessary for the 
new school opening in Fall 2019.  There being no further discussion, a motion was made and seconded as 
follows: 

 
RESOLVED, that the CalCA Central Coast Memorandum of Understanding, as presented, is hereby 
approved. 

 
The motion passed unanimously.  

stephenbluestein
Rectangle

stephenbluestein
Line



 

 3 

 
 

c. Approval of Capistrano Connections Academy/CalCA Southern California Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) 

 
Dr. Sassin reviewed with the Board the Capistrano Connections Academy/CalCA Southern California 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), as included in the Board meeting materials.  She further reviewed 
the timeline and final reviews by Board Counsel requiring a Board Designee be appointed to finalize the 
MOU.  The Board discussed the best candidate(s) to act in this capacity, and nominated Board President, 
Elaine Pavlich, to be the Board Designee.  There being no further discussion, a motion was made and 
seconded as follows: 

 
RESOLVED, that the Capistrano Connections Academy/CalCA Southern California Memorandum of 
Understanding and Board President as Board Designee to Negotiate, Finalize and Execute the Final MOU, 
as presented and discussed, is hereby approved. 

 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

d. Approval of Merit Increase Target for the 2019-2020 School Year 
 

Dr. Savage advised the Board that a proposed merit increase target would be included in the final budget at 
a future meeting for the Board’s consideration.  There being no further discussion, this item was tabled.   

 
 

e. Approval of Capistrano Connections Academy (CapoCA/CalCA Southern California) Lease 
Renewal 

 
Dr. Sassin reviewed the Capistrano Connections Academy (CapoCA/CalCA Southern California) lease 
renewal, as included in the Board meeting materials.  Dr. Sassin reviewed the financial terms of the lease, 
ongoing negotiations with the property owner, and timeline for a final lease for the Board’s consideration.  
There being no further discussion, a motion was made and seconded as follows:  

 
RESOLVED, that the Capistrano Connections Academy (CapoCA/CalCA Southern California) Lease 
Renewal, as presented and discussed, is hereby approved.  

 
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
[Mr. Bhatt left the meeting at 7:26 a.m.] 
 
 

f. Approval of Aeries SIS Student Information Database System 
 

Dr. Sassin reviewed with the Board the Aeries SIS Student Information Database System contract, as 
included in the Board meeting materials.  She further reviewed the fees and services, including cloud 
hosting services. There being no further discussion, a motion was made and seconded as follows:  

 
RESOLVED, that the Aeries SIS Student Information Database System, as presented, is hereby approved.  

 
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
 
  



 

 4 

g. Approval of Educator Declaration of Need 
 

Dr. Sassin reviewed with the Board the Educator Declaration of Need, as included in the Board meeting 
materials.  She further reviewed the necessity of the item surrounding potential legislative and authorizer 
regulations.  There being no further discussion, a motion was made and seconded as follows:  

 
RESOLVED, that the Educator Declaration of Need, as presented, is hereby approved.  

 
The motion passed unanimously.  

 
 
V. Oral Reports  
 

a. Executive Director’s Report 
 

i. Graduation Plans and End of Year Activities Update  
 

Dr. Savage advised the Board of the school’s planning for the upcoming high school graduation 
ceremonies and encouraged Board members to attend.   

 
ii. State Testing Update 

 
Dr. Savage provided the Board with an update on recent state testing, including continuing efforts 
by staff members to wrap up this year’s testing season. 

 
iii. CSU/UC A-G Course Update  

 
Dr. Savage provided the Board with an update on the online science courses recent UC A-G 
approval of removing the wet lab requirement.   

 
iv. Potential New Charter School Update  

 
Dr. Savage provided the Board with an update on the upcoming meetings with the various 
California school districts regarding potential new charter schools.  He further reviewed the 
preparations for opening the new schools for the 2019-2020 school year. 

 
 

b. Site Administrator’s Reports 
 

i. CalCAN  
 

Mr. Henjum asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written report 
received by Site Administrator, Ms. Dombek, for CalCAN.  There were no questions from the Board 
at this time.   

 
ii. CenCA  

 
Mr. Henjum asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written report 
received by Site Administrator, Mr. White, for CenCA.  There were no questions from the Board at 
this time. 

 
  



 

 5 

iii. CalCAR  
 

Mr. Henjum asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written report 
received by Site Administrator, Ms. Mannix, for CalCAR.  There were no questions from the Board 
at this time. 

 
iv. CapoCA 

 
Mr. Henjum asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written report 
received by Site Administrator, Ms. Tamayo, for CapoCA.  There were no questions from the Board 
at this time. 

 
 

c. CalCA Financial Report  
 

i. Form 990 Update 
 

Dr. Sassin provided the Board with an update on the annual review and filing process for the Form 
990s.  She thanked the Board for their review of the forms as required by law prior to submission to 
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and advised of upcoming additional filings. 

 
ii. Budget Development Update  

 
Dr. Sassin provided the Board with an update on the budget presentation being developed with 
school leadership and slated for consideration at the Board’s June meeting.  She also noted that 
the upcoming budget would be based on the previously approved funded enrollment target. 

 
iii. Consolidated Financial Report  

 
Dr. Sassin reviewed with the Board the consolidated financial report, as included in the Board 
meeting materials.   

 
iv. CalCAN Financial Report 

 
Ms. Pavlich asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written financial 
report received by Business Manager, Dr. Sassin.  There were no questions from the Board at this 
time. 

 
v. CenCA Financial Report 

 
Ms. Pavlich asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written financial 
report received by Business Manager, Dr. Sassin.  There were no questions from the Board at this 
time. 

 
vi. CalCAR Financial Report 

 
Ms. Pavlich asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written financial 
report received by Business Manager, Dr. Sassin.  There were no questions from the Board at this 
time. 

 
vii. CapoCA Financial Report 

 
Ms. Pavlich asked the Board whether they had any questions or comments on the written financial 
report received by Business Manager, Dr. Sassin.  There were no questions from the Board at this 
time. 



 

 6 

 
 
VI. Consent Agenda  
 
These items were considered earlier in the meeting.   
 
 
VII. Action Items 
 

a. Approval of Statement of Agreement (SOA) with Pearson Online & Blended Learning  
 

This item was reviewed earlier in the meeting.   
 
 

b. Approval of CalCA Central Coast Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)  
 

This item was considered earlier in the meeting.   
 
 

c. Approval of Capistrano Connections Academy/CalCA Southern California Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) 

 
This item was considered earlier in the meeting.   

 
 

d. Approval of Merit Increase Target for the 2019-2020 School Year 
 

This item was reviewed earlier in the meeting.   
 
 

e. Approval of Capistrano Connections Academy (CapoCA/CalCA Southern California) Lease 
Renewal 

 
This item was considered earlier in the meeting.   

 
 

f. Approval of Aeries SIS Student Information Database System 
 

This item was considered earlier in the meeting.   
 
 

g. Approval of Educator Declaration of Need 
 

This item was considered earlier in the meeting.   
 
 
VIII. Information Items  
 

a. State & Strategic Client Relations Update 
 

Mr. Ragley introduced Ms. Sigmund to the Board as their new State & Strategic Client Relations 
representative.  Ms. Sigmund reviewed her experience and background with the Board.  Mr. Ragley further 
provided the Board with an update on recent legislative activities in the state, which may impact the school.  
The Board thanked Mr. Ragley for his support and welcomed Ms. Sigmund.   

 



 

 7 

 
b. Partner School Leadership Team (PSLT) Update  

 
Dr. Rosta presented to the Board on behalf of Pearson Online & Blended Learning’s (POBL) Partner School 
Leadership Team. 

 
i. School Leader Performance Review Planning  

 
Dr. Rosta outlined the annual school leader review process with the Board.  He reminded Board 
members that the process includes feedback from the Board through a survey.  Dr. Rosta further 
reminded the Board that Dr. Savage’s final review will take place during the Board’s Annual 
Meeting in June.  He also reiterated the importance of Board member participation in the review 
process. 

 
 

c. Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) Update 
 

Dr. Sassin provided the Board with an update on the two new schools’ Special Education Local Plan Area 
(SELPA) acceptance into the El Dorado Charter SELPA.   

 
[Mr. Rosta left the meeting at 7:56 a.m.] 
 
 

d. Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update  
 

Mr. Romero provided the Board with an update on the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), as 
included in the Board meeting materials.  He further reviewed the continued progress and timeline for the 
Board’s consideration at a future meeting.   

 
 

e. Board Planning for the 2019-2020 School Year  
 

Ms. Coleman discussed the planning for the 2019-2020 school year that POBL has been working on with 
the school. 

 
i. Proposed Meeting Schedule  

 
The Board advised that the consideration of the Board meeting schedule for the 2019-2020 school 
year will be included on the June Annual Meeting agenda and encouraged Board members to 
inform her and the Board Chair of any known meeting conflicts.   

 
ii. Board Composition  

 
Ms. Coleman discussed with the Board the current composition, including board member terms 
that would be up at this year’s annual meeting.  She further encouraged Board members to discuss 
their intentions regarding terms and renewal with herself and Board Chair. 

 
[Mr. Pulsipher left the meeting at 8:00 a.m.] 
 
 

f. Sponsoring District(s) Update  
 

There was no update at this time.   
 
  



 

 8 

 
IX. Adjournment and Confirmation of Annual Meeting on Tuesday, June 18, 2019 at 3:30 p.m. PT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 8:01 a.m.  The annual meeting is 
scheduled for Tuesday, June 18, 2019 at 3:30 p.m. PT. 



























































































 

1 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 2018-2019 

CUYAMA JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SUMMARY 

The 2018-19 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury (Jury) received a request for investigation of the 
Cuyama Joint Unified School District (District), specifically the District Business Office (DBO) 
operations.  The request alleged that inefficiencies in the office operations had led to the 
disappearance of District funds, late payment of bills, payroll errors, and failure to produce teacher 
contracts. Additional concerns were that the DBO employees lacked necessary training and 
oversight. There is an ongoing investigation relating to the missing funds by the Santa Barbara 
County Sheriff’s Office. 

The Jury found that past Boards of Trustees failed to provide proper oversight by not keeping 
Board policies and job descriptions current.  The Jury questioned the frequency of turnover of the 
Superintendent position. 

During the investigation the Jury identified other concerns related to the operation and 
inefficiencies within the DBO, such as out-of-date job descriptions; disparate and unrelated duties 
assigned to the Chief Business Officer; payroll errors; and recurring financial audit findings. 

BACKGROUND 

The 2018-2019 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury (Jury) received a request for investigation of the 
Cuyama Joint Unified School District (District), specifically its Business Office (DBO) operations.  
This request was based on alleged irregularities in the operation of the DBO that resulted in the 
mysterious disappearance or theft of District funds and other financial deficiencies.  

The Jury’s inquiry began while the Santa Barbara County Sheriff’s Office was investigating the 
possible theft of District funds that had occurred at an unspecified date during the Spring of 2018.  
At the time of this report, the Sheriff’s Office investigation is still ongoing.  The Jury, therefore, 
narrowed its investigation to policy and procedural matters, principally those related to the internal 
operations within the Business Office. 

The community of Cuyama, which includes New Cuyama, is in Supervisorial District 1 between 
Santa Maria and Bakersfield, each an hour away along Highway 166, and has a population of 
approximately 650.  Agriculture and oil are the primary industries.1   This remote community has 
minimal basic services available and requires travel of 31 miles to Taft or farther to Santa Maria 
or Bakersfield for subsistence shopping, major purchases and other services, such as banking.   

The District is a small rural Kindergarten through 12 school system with an average enrollment of 
210 students.2  It has two school sites:  Cuyama Elementary/Middle School and Cuyama Valley 

                                                 
1 https://suburbanstats/population.org Suburban Stats, last visited 05/02/19 
2 https://www.cuyamaunified.org CJUSD Website,  last visited 05/02/19 
 



 

2 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 2018-2019 

High School.  The current elementary K-6 student enrollment is 123 and the middle school, grades 
7-8, has 30 students.  The high school currently serves 48 students in grades 9-12.  Sierra Madre 
Continuation High School, contained on the high school site, has no students currently enrolled.  
The Superintendent’s office is at the high school and the business office is at the elementary/middle 
school site, approximately five miles apart.   

METHODOLOGY 

The Jury conducted on-site and telephone interviews with key District officials, other staff 
members and school board members. The Jury also interviewed a School Business Advisory 
Services (SBAS) staff member from the Santa Barbara County Education Office (SBCEO).  The 
Jury reviewed annual audit reports for the current and prior three fiscal years, board minutes, job  

descriptions, and organizational structure, including individual functions of each member of the 
business office.  All those interviewed, administrators, staff and board members, were cooperative 
and forthcoming in answering questions and providing requested documentation during the 
investigative process.   

OBSERVATIONS 

A major role of the five-member elected Board of Trustees is to make policy.  Board members 
interviewed indicated there was an internal indifference to updating Board Policy and 
Administrative Regulations (Policies).  A district official stated that the Policies are out of date 
and a plan has been initiated to revise them.  Each month the Board now reviews updates presented 
by the Superintendent, which, when approved, are incorporated into the Policies. 

During the staff interviews, the Jury was advised that the District has experienced a high rate of 
turnover at the Superintendent position.  The current Superintendent assumed the position on July 
1, 2018.  He was preceded by five superintendents since 2006.  The last three superintendents, two 
of whom were part-time, served a total of four years.3  

The Chief Business Officer (CBO) has served since July 2006.   During the interview process with 
the Business Office staff members, the Jury learned that a calendar of significant events, such as 
key reports and due dates, does not exist.  In one instance, the SBAS administrator reminded the 
District that a report requesting supplemental funding was due and the District risked not receiving 
entitled funds. 

Staff members in the DBO have requested additional training in the use and application of Escape, 
the integrated software program used by SBCEO, and in day-to-day duties.  A SBAS staff member 
has been assigned to provide training on the software program.  

The Jury was informed that there is no cross-training of DBO employees to perform essential 
business office functions due to absences of any duration.  When the Account Clerk (AC) abruptly 

                                                 
 
3 Cuyama Joint Unified School District Personnel Records 



 

3 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 2018-2019 

resigned, the CBO assumed responsibility for the payment of invoices.  The lack of knowledge in 
processing invoices resulted in substantial late fees.  

Job descriptions provided by the District for the CBO and AC were reviewed.  The current CBO 
job description was adopted in 1993, while the current AC job description was adopted in 1992, 
and neither has been updated.  The District also provided the duties currently performed in each 
position.  The Jury found job descriptions out-of-date.  In particular, some current CBO functions 
are unrelated to fiscal responsibilities. 

The Business Office staff members were also asked if annual performance evaluations had been 
performed and provided to them.  Staff members stated they could not recall when their last 
performance reviews were conducted.  A probationary employee in the DBO has not been 
evaluated since starting in July 2018. 

A review of the state-mandated annual financial audits for 2014-2018 revealed that the same 
negative audit findings recurred from year-to-year because they were not corrected.4  Examples 
include lack of proper documentation, not depositing funds on a timely basis, improper coding, 
inaccurate time cards, non-compliance with state mandates, and failure to provide annual teacher 
contracts. 

The staff stated they use the procedures outlined in the ASB Accounting Manual5 for the handling 
of cash from fundraising activities conducted by the Associated Student Body and other school 
site activities.  In order to minimize the risk of future loss of District funds, the Superintendent 
modified the bank deposit process so that deposits occur more frequently. 

CONCLUSION 

The frequent turnover at the Superintendent position has negatively impacted critical functions:  
revisions to Board Policy and Administrative Regulations, job description updates, timely 
reporting, completion of annual employee evaluations and general oversight.   

The community of Cuyama is in a rural and remote area with a small population, resulting in a 
limited pool of candidates available for open positions. 

The lack of comprehensive knowledge of required tasks, of training, and of procedural guides for 
tasks performed by the business office staff, has led to inefficiencies and errors.  Audit reports 
indicate recurring negative findings based on lack of oversight.  They have not been corrected from 
year to year or on a timely basis immediately following noted discrepancies. Recently, District 
staff has received training in the handling of cash raised by ASB fundraising activities and 
demonstrated an understanding of the requirements.  However, audits will continue to identify 
problems if training and oversight are not provided on an ongoing basis. 

                                                 
4 Cuyama Joint Unified School District Annual Audit Reports 2014-2018  
5 Fiscal Crisis Management Assistance Team (FCMAT), 2015 ASB Accounting Manual, Fraud Prevention Guide and 
Desk Reference 



 

4 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 2018-2019 

A significant cause of the inefficiencies in the business office is a direct result of duties assigned 
to the CBO unrelated to fiscal responsibilities.  

Past Boards have been remiss in ensuring that Board Policy and Administrative Regulations and 
job descriptions are kept current.  

The Jury commends the newly hired Superintendent for aggressively implementing a revision plan 
for Board Policy and Administrative Regulations as well as a training program for business office 
employees. 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Finding 1 
The frequent turnover in the Superintendent position has created inefficiencies.  

Recommendation 1 
That the Cuyama Joint Unified School District Board of Trustees, within six months, identify the 
reasons for frequent turnover at the Superintendent position and develop a corrective action plan.  
 
Finding 2 
The Board of Trustees has not kept the Board Policies and Administrative Regulations current.  
 
Recommendation 2 
That the Board of Trustees, within six months, develop and adopt a plan to annually review and 
revise Board Policies and Administrative Regulations to ensure they are kept current. 
 
Finding 3 
The Business Office staff relies routinely on the County Education Office School Business 
Advisory Service staff to provide notice of key events and dates. 

Recommendation 3 
That the Board of Trustees direct the Superintendent to ensure a district calendar, which includes 
required reports, budget, and payroll deadlines, is developed within 90 days and annually 
adopted by the Board.   

Finding 4 
Neither procedural guides nor cross-training for critical tasks exist in the District Business 
Office, creating disruptions when there are unexpected or extended absences. 

Recommendation 4 
That the Board of Trustees direct the Superintendent to develop procedural guides and a training 
program for critical tasks in the District Business Office within 90 days. 

 
 
 



 

5 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 2018-2019 

Finding 5 
The District Business Office staff requires ongoing training on the specialized Escape software 
program and day-to-day duties. 

Recommendation 5 
That the Board of Trustees direct the Superintendent to develop and implement an ongoing 
training plan for each position within the District Business Office within six months. 

Finding 6 
The appropriate responsibilities of the District Business Office are not accurately reflected in the 
current job descriptions. 
 
Recommendation 6 
That the Board of Trustees direct the Superintendent to evaluate the District Business Office 
positions and develop job descriptions for the staff within 30 days. 

Finding 7 
Due to a lack of oversight and timely correction, multiple negative audit report findings recurred 
in succeeding years. 

Recommendation 7 
That the Board of Trustees and Superintendent ensure that negative findings identified in the audit 
report are corrected on a timely basis. 

Finding 8 
The District Business Office staff members have not received annual performance reports. 

Recommendation 8 
That the Board of Trustees and Superintendent ensure the District Business Office staff receives 
annual performance reports that identify strengths, weaknesses and performance goals.  

REQUEST FOR RESPONSE 

Pursuant to California Penal Code §933 and §933.05, the Grand Jury requests each entity or 
individual named below to respond to the enumerated Findings and Recommendations within the 
specified statutory time limit:  

Responses to Findings shall be either:  
• Agree 
• Disagree Wholly with an explanation 
• Disagree Partially with an explanation  

Responses to Recommendations shall be one of the following: 
• Has been implemented, with a brief summary of the implemented actions 
• Will be implemented, with an implementation schedule 



 

6 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 2018-2019 

• Requires Further Analysis, with an explanation of the scope and parameters of an    
analysis or study and a completion date of less than 6 months after the issuance of this 
report 

• Will not be implemented because it is not warranted or reasonable, with an explanation  

 

CUYAMA JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES - 90 Days  

Findings:  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 
Recommendations:  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8  

 





















DRAFT

LEA Name:

Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)
Federal Addendum Template

Cuyama Joint Unified School District

CDS code:

Link to the LCAP:

42750100000000

Title I, Part A    Title II, Part A

(In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections
for the corresponding programs.)

For which ESSA programs
will your LEA apply?
Choose from:
TITLE I, PART A
Improving Basic Programs Operated by
State and Local Educational Agencies
TITLE I, PART D
Prevention and Intervention Programs for
Children and Youth Who Are Neglected,
Delinquent, or At-Risk
TITLE II, PART A
Supporting Effective Instruction
TITLE III, PART A
Language Instruction for English Learners
and Immigrant Students
TITLE IV, PART A
Student Support and Academic
Enrichment Grants

(NOTE: This list only includes ESSA
programs with LEA plan requirements;
not all ESSA programs.)

1 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
Instructions

The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to
supplement the LCAP to ensure that
eligible LEAs have the opportunity to meet
the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan
provisions of the ESSA.
The LCAP Federal Addendum Template
must be completed and submitted to the
California Department of Education
(CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs
are encouraged to review the LCAP
Federal Addendum annually with their
LCAP, as ESSA funding should be
considered in yearly strategic planning.
The LEA must address the Strategy and
Alignment prompts provided on the
following page.
Each provision for each program must
be addressed, unless the provision is not
applicable to the LEA.
In addressing these provisions, LEAs must
provide a narrative that addresses the
provision within the LCAP Federal
Addendum Template.
Under State Priority Alignment, state
priority numbers are provided to
demonstrate where an ESSA provision
aligns with state priorities. This is meant to
assist LEAs in determining where ESSA
provisions may already be addressed in the
LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s
efforts to support the state priorities.
The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP
Federal Addendum should not drive
LCAP development. ESSA funds are
supplemental to state funds, just as the
LCAP Federal Addendum supplements
your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged to
integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP
development as much as possible to

promote strategic planning of all resources;
however, this is not a requirement. In
reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum,
staff will evaluate the LEA’s responses to
the ESSA plan provisions. There is no
standard length for the responses. LEAs
will be asked to clarify insufficient
responses during the review process.

2 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal
resources in support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs
with the opportunity to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in
support of underserved students.
The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their
federally-funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF).
LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of
students in order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning
process supports continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.
Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for
making the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local
programs as described in the LEA’s LCAP.

Strategy
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or
initiatives funded with state funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the
rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal funds within the context of the LEA’s broader
strategy reflected in the LCAP.
CJUSD's strategy for using federal funds is to engage in proven strategies that will increase the performance of low
income and EL students as measured on  state assessments and other local measures.  Specifically the district will be
engaged in:
- 01.01: Purchase additional materials for classrooms instruction including paper based materials and computer based
services.  The focus will be purchasing on CASS-aligned science and social science curriculum.
- 01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for college prep
courses or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to online college prep courses, equipment for career tech classes)
- 05.01: Staff all classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers in all subject areas, and
appropriate to the students they are teaching.
- 05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support positions including the library/media technician.
- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,  Assessment Program, ASES
program.
- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional
strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at end of
each year)
- 03.01: Continue to develop the MTSS tiered intervention system for all students (K-12) in need of strategic or intensive
academic, behavioral (PBIS), and social emotional interventions.  The academic interventions will include both ELA and
Math and will comply with SBE time recommendations.
- 01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for college prep
courses or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to online college prep courses, equipment for career tech classes)
- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional
strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at end of
each year)
- 04.01: Provide annual parent conferences that focus on educating parents on student progress as well as strategies
parents can use to support student learning.  Make this event more alike a parent night.
- 05.02: Staff additional classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers to prevent combo classes
at the ES and additional intervention sections at the HS in  ELA, ELD, and Math designed to provide support for
unduplicated students.

3 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
Alignment
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state
and local funds and, as applicable, across different federal grant programs.
The goals in the district’s LCAP are aligned to state priorities and are aligned to the governing board's goals. Data and
the LCAP metrics help to identify targeted areas in need of supplemental support.  CJUSD currently uses LCFF
supplemental and concentration funds, to provide services that support the unduplicated studente populations gand are
complementary to the services funded using federal funds.

CJUSD uses federal funds to support instructional activities in classrooms. Federal funding use is consistent with the
rules attached to the funding source. In most cases, if the categorical funding was not available, the district would
probably not support the activity.

4 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those
goals, for each of the LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the
descriptions of the goals, actions, and services how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA
provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state accountability system.

TITLE I, PART A

Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic
Standards

The following actions from the LCAP are the main services the district will provide to monitor students progress in
meeting challenging state academic standards.
- 01.01: Purchase additional materials for classrooms instruction including paper based materials and computer
based services.  The focus will be purchasing on CASS-aligned science and social science curriculum.
- 01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for college prep
courses or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to online college prep courses, equipment for career tech classes)
- 05.01: Staff all classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers in all subject areas, and
appropriate to the students they are teaching.
- 05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support positions including the library/media technician.
- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,  Assessment Program,
ASES program.

The following actions from the LCAP are the main services the district will provide to reduse the overuse of
discipline practices that remove students from the classroom.

Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic
standards by:

(A)developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic
needs of all students;

(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure;

(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school
determines need help in meeting the challenging State academic standards; and

(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen
academic programs and improve school conditions for student learning.

Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove
students from the classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of
discipline, disaggregated by each of the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2).

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT
1112(b)(1) (A-D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable)

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT
1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable)

Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom

5 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional
strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at
end of each year)
- 03.01: Continue to develop the MTSS tiered intervention system for all students (K-12) in need of strategic or
intensive academic, behavioral (PBIS), and social emotional interventions.  The academic interventions will include
both ELA and Math and will comply with SBE time recommendations.

The following actions from the LCAP are the main services the district will provide to assist students in acquiring
career and technical education sills and work based learning opportunities.
- 01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for college prep
courses or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to online college prep courses, equipment for career tech classes)

The following actions from the LCAP are the main services the district will provide to support effective instruction
- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional
strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at
end of each year)

If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that
coordinate and integrate:

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional
strategies, that may incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills
attainment important to in-demand occupations or industries in the State; and

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry
professionals and, if appropriate, academic credit.

TITLE II, PART A

Title II, Part A Activities

Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these
activities will be aligned with challenging State academic standards.

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT
1112(b)(12)(A-B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable)

Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT
2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable)

TITLE III, PART A

Parent, Family, and Community Engagement

6 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT

The following actions from the LCAP are the main services the district provide to promote parent, family, and
community engagement in the education of ELs
- 04.01: Provide annual parent conferences that focus on educating parents on student progress as well as
strategies parents can use to support student learning.  Make this event more alike a parent night.

1112(b)(4) N/A

Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the
education of English learners.

ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application
and Reporting System
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the
Consolidated Application and Reporting System (CARS).

TITLE I, PART A

Poverty Criteria

Poverty criteria is not used to determine school attendance areas in the district. There is only one school for grades
K-8 and one school for grades 9-12.

Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113.

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT
1112(b)(4) N/A

7 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP

For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities.
Each provision for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless
the provision is not applicable to the LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a
narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum.

As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP
development. ESSA funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum
supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP
development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all resources; however, this is not
a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s responses to
the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to
clarify insufficient responses during the review process.

District data shows that 66.2% of all students are either low income, english learner, or both.  The district has only one
teachers per grade level, as a result all students in a particular grade level are assigned the same teacher.  The district
looked at low-income, and minority students across grade levels over several years and found that all grades have
roughly the same proportion of low-income and minority students.  Low income and minority students are not taught by
ineffective, inexperienced, or out of field teachers at a higher rate because the one teachers per grade level fact would
make it impossible to to do so.

The main equity concern of the district is to ensure that all teachers are adequately prepared for the student population
that they have in their classrooms.  This includes being trained in the curriculum and the current content standards,
being effective at delivering tier I academic, behavioral, and social-emotional interventions, and being highly effective at
the use of multiple instructional strategies.  All teachers receive continual training in these areas.

  •  The school district will put into operation programs, activities, and procedures for the engagement of parents and

TITLE I, PART A
Educator Equity
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2)

Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in
Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being
taught at higher rates than other students by ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Parent and Family Engagement
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(3) and 1112(b)(7)

Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under
Section 1116.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

8 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
family members in all of its schools with Title I, Part A programs. These programs, activities, and procedures will be
planned and operated with meaningful consultation with parents and family members of participating children.
  •  Consistent with Section 1116, the district will worked with its various stakeholders, including parents, to ensure that
the required school-level parent and family engagement policies meet the requirements of Section 1116(6) of the ESSA,
and that they include a school-parent compact consistent with Section 1116(d) of the ESEA.
  •  In carrying out the Title I, Part A parent and family engagement requirements to the extent practicable, the school
district and its schools will provide full opportunities for the participation of parents with limited English proficiency, limited
literacy, disabilities, of migratory children, who are economically disadvantaged, or are of any racial or ethnic minority
background, including providing information and school reports required under Section 1111 of the ESSA in an
understandable and uniform format including alternative formats upon request and, to the extent practicable, in a
language parents understand.
  •  If the LEA plan for Title I, Part A, developed under Section 1112 of the ESEA, is not satisfactory to the parents of
participating children, the school district will submit any parent comments with the plan when the school district submits
the plan to the state Department of Education.
  •  The school district will be governed by the following definition of parental involvement and expects that its Title I
schools will carry out programs, activities, and procedures in accordance with this definition in Section 8101 of the
ESSA:

Parental involvement means the participation of parents in regular, two-way, and meaningful communication involving
student academic learning and other school activities, including ensuring:
(A) Parents play an integral role in assisting their child's learning
(B) Parents are encouraged to be actively involved in their child's education at school

The district will consult with officials from any local institutions for neglected and delinquent children that attend district
schools.  These consultations will be to determine the type of services needed to provide for the students success,
including conducting a needs assessment. Documentation will remain on file in the district Title I office that demonstrates
institution officials are being consulted in a timely, on going manner. The following are some of the services the district
will provide depending on needs:
  •  Tutors to work with students in addition to the assistance being provided to children who are attending public schools
and receiving Title I services.
  •  Counseling/peer mediation services to help children in the transition from the institution to school.
  •  Computers and software to assist children with homework, reinforce concepts, etc.
  •  Books and materials such as encyclopedias, dictionaries and high interest/low vocabulary books to provide students
with additional assistance. The books and materials cannot be religiously affiliated.

Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected
or Delinquent Children

ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9)
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under
sections 1114 and 1115 and, where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for
children living in local institutions for neglected or delinquent children, and for neglected and
delinquent children in community day school programs.

Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators,
paraprofessionals, and specialized instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted
assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify the eligible children most in need of
services under this part.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Homeless Children and Youth Services
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6)

9 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT

The following actions/services will be provided to homeless students on an individualized basis depending on their
needs.
  •  Use Title I funds to meet basic needs of students experiencing homelessness (transportation to school, clothing,
supplies, health) so that they may participate more fully in school.
  •  Hire special teachers, aides, and tutors to provide supplemental instruction to students at risk of school failure in
reading and math as a supplement to regular classroom instruction.
  •  Make a special effort to reach out to parents in homeless situations for participation in parent engagement activities.
  •  Ensure that homeless students are accommodated so that they can participate in after school and/or summer
programs.
  •  Collect data on students experiencing homelessness as part of the overall district-wide data collection system.

Preschool to Elementary School
  •  Initiate conversations and collaborate with preschool teachers, planning ahead to meet specific student needs.
  •  Invite preschool students to visit on a school day and see what kindergarten is like. This could also include their
parents.
  •  Invite parents to a series of introductory meetings. Have open discussions about expectations and philosophy.
Overview services available. Tour the school.
  •  Invite parents to visit a kindergarten class during the day.
  •  Provide quality parent engagement activities to help them become engaged in the school quickly.

Elementary School to Middle School
  •  Collaborate with middle school staff to discuss academic and social expectations as well as student needs
  •  Invite middle school staff to talk to students prior to the transition
  •  Schedule a field trip to tour the middle school
  •  Invite current middle school students to come back and talk to elementary students about their transition experiences

Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided
with funds reserved under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success
of homeless children and youths, in coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States Code 11301 et seq.).

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Student Transitions
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8) and 1112(b)(10) (A–B)

Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under
this part with early childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including
plans for the transition of participants in such programs to local elementary school programs.

Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for
students from middle grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education
including:

(A) through coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners;
and

(B) through increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment
opportunities, or career counseling to identify student interests and skills.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

10 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
  •  Host student and parent meetings to talk about the differences and similarities between elementary and middle
school

Middle School to High School
  •  Host visits to students from ninth grade counselors
  •  Provide time for eighth grade teachers and students to visit the high school
  •  Invite high school students for a panel discussion, allowing eighth grade students to ask questions
  •  Invite ninth grade teachers and counselors to meet with eighth grade teachers
  •  Inform parents about all transition activities available and encourage them to get involved

Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B)

Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this
part, and that the LEA determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will:

(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an

opportunity to develop digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:
The LEA will use the following data to identify gifted and talented students from the different cultural, economic, and
linguistic groups within the LEA.
  •  School, class, and individual pupil records
  •  Individual tests including classroom formative and summative assessments
  •  Evaluation by a school psychologist
  •  Group tests
  •  Interviews and questionnaires of teachers, parents, and others

The LEA will use the following categories to identify gifted and talented students from the different cultural, economic,
and linguistic groups within the LEA.:
  •  Intellectual Ability.
  •  Creative Ability including critical thinking, problem solving, overcoming obstacle, etc.
  •  Specific Academic Ability or excellence in particular subject areas.
  •  Leadership Ability
  •  High Achievement on summative achievement tests.
  •  Visual and Performing Arts Talent: A pupil originates, performs, produces, or responds at extraordinarily high levels in
the arts.

The LEA will use some combination of the following programs to provide advanced educational opportunities to gifted
and talented students:
  •  Part time groupings
  •  Cluster groupings
  •  Independent study
  •  Acceleration
  •  Postsecondary education
  •  Enrichment

11 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT

The LEA will continue to use Title II, Part A funds and other funds, to flexibly implement evidence based actions for the
professional growth and improvement of the teaching and administrative staff as well as other school leaders.  These
actions the district will take include:

For Teachers:
-  Recruit effective teachers through competitive compensation, a collaborative work environment, and proactive
recruitment efforts such as attending job fairs, effective online postings, and other outreach.
-  Retain effective teachers, through competitive compensation, a collaborative work environment, and development of
an enjoyable rewarding school culture.
-  Address issues related to school conditions for student learning, such as safety, peer interaction, drug and alcohol
abuse, and chronic absenteeism;
-  Provide PD and coaching support through the MTSS to increase the ability of teachers to effectively teach children
with disabilities, including children with significant cognitive disabilities.
-  Support instructional services by providing effective school library programs.
-  Utilize an efficient feedback system to enable continuous improvement of working conditions.
-  Provide resources for teachers to attend off-site professional development opportunities in areas of need.
-  Provide induction services to beginning teachers.
-  Provide instructional coaches to partner teach, share strategies, demonstrate lessons, co-plan lessons, provide
feedback, and share ideas and resources.
-  Utilize or improve a rigorous, transparent, and fair evaluation and support system for teachers, principals, or other
school leaders that is based in part on evidence of student achievement and shall include multiple measures of educator
performance and provide clear, timely, and useful feedback to teachers, principals, or other school leaders.

The district only has two schools, an elementary (K-8) and a high school (9-12).  Because of this situation no school will
be prioritized because of either comprehensive or targeted support and improvement activities.

TITLE II, PART A
Professional Growth and Improvement
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B)

Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as
induction for teachers, principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity
of teachers and opportunities to develop meaningful teacher leadership.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Prioritizing Funding
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C)

Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are
implementing comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and
improvement activities under Section 1111(d) and have the highest percentage of children counted
under Section 1124(c).

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement
12 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT

To evaluate Title II activities the district uses multiple sources of data.  Among these data are SmarterBalanced results
and other CA School Dashboard data such as the Chronic Absenteeism rate and Suspension Rate as well as formative
assessments administraterd by the district.  In addition, teachers are consulted regularly during monthly staff meetings,
grade level and subject level collaboration meetings, and through annual professional development days where time is
taken to gather teacher input on a variety of district matters including teacher preparation and effective instructional
practices.

In addition to the regular teacher meetings listed above the district conducts annual stakeholder meetings mid way
through the school year with teachers and their local bargaining unit, principals and other school leaders,
paraprofessionals and their local bargaining unit, specialized instructional support personnel, parents, and community
partners, and other partners and organizations.  The district also holds other formal meetings at least once a quarter with
representatives of all these groups.

In addition to the regular teacher meetings listed above the district conducts annual stakeholder meetings mid way
through the school year with teachers and their local bargaining unit, principals and other school leaders,
paraprofessionals and their local bargaining unit, specialized instructional support personnel, parents, and community
partners, and other partners and organizations.  The district also holds other formal meetings at least once a quarter with
representatives of all these groups.

The LEA uses services funded from Title II, Part A to support the goals of the district's LCAP, particularly the following
goals:
01. Student achievement as measured by state and local targets and by participation  in College & Career Ready (CCR)
classes will increase.

N/A

ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D)

Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section
2102(b)(3) to continually update and improve activities supported under this part.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Title III Professional Development
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2)

Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom
teachers, principals and other school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based
organizational personnel.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Enhanced Instructional Opportunities
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116

Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant
children and youth.

Title 3 Part A (02)

13 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT

N/A

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

Title III Programs and Activities
ESSA SECTION 3116(b)(1)

Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs,
proposed to be developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English
learners increase their English language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic
standards.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:
N/A

English Proficiency and Academic Achievement
ESSA SECTION 3116(b)(2)(A-B)

Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving
funds under Subpart 1 assist English learners in:

(A) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment
under Section 1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in
Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and

(B) meeting the challenging State academic standards.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:

TITLE IV, PART A

Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1)

Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out
under Subpart 1, including a description of:

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization,
community-based organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of
success in implementing activities under this subpart;

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education
under Section 4107;

(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy
students under Section 4108;

14 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT
(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of

technology in schools under Section 4109; and
(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the

LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the
activities carried out under this section based on such objectives and outcomes.

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW:
N/A

15 CJUSD-2019, 6/7/2019, 1:33:42 PM



DRAFT

Dr. Stephen B Bluestein

Superintendent

LEA Name

Local Control
Accountability Plan
and Annual Update
(LCAP) Template

2019-20 Plan Summary
The Story

LCAP Highlights

Contact Name and Title
Cuyama Joint Unified School District sbluestein@cuyamaunified.org

(661) 766-2482

Email and Phone

The Cuyama Joint Unified School District is a unified district in Santa Barbara county serving a rural community
in grades TK-12.  The district has 2 schools.  The current enrollment is 201 students of which 74 are ELs, 133
are socio-economically disadvantaged, 35 are white, 158 are hispanic, 26 are students with disabilities and the
district has 2 foster youth.

CJUSD offers an athletic program at the high school level for both genders. The district has six boys and six girls
athletic teams that are supported by the local community. The high school is on a modified A-B block schedule
that offers a wide variety of classes from online college courses to vocational education and remedial
education.

The elementary school has one teacher per grade level along with a rigorous after school program. The high
school has the Future Leaders of America and the California Scholastic Federation
as on campus organizations.

Every spring the district sponsors an antique car show that draws participants from all over California. Proceeds
from this show go to the high school's ASB and post secondary scholarship fund

The 2019-20 LCAP has the following goals as top priorities:
01. Student achievement as measured by state and local targets and by participation  in College & Career Ready
(CCR) classes will increase.
03. The schools' social-emotional environment will be safe, welcoming, and conducive to student learning
causing student connectedness with the district to increase.

To measure this progress the LCAP calls for the following expected outcomes:
· Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA from 26% to 40%
· Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math from 12% to 18%
· Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating from 61 to 70

The following actions are designed to assist in meeting the highlighted goals: 01.05, 03.01 and 05.02  Provide

Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20)

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: [Note: this text will be hyperlinked to the
LCFF Evaluation Rubric web page when it becomes available.]:
Essential data to support completion of this LCAP. Please analyze
the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the rubrics are also
provided within the template.

2019-20

1 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

GREATEST PROGRESS

GREATEST NEEDS

PERFORMANCE GAPS

PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS instructional strategies and MTSS while
continuing to develop a MTSS tiered intervention system for all students (K-12) and using funds to limit the
number of combo classes at the ES.

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other
information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that
success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met”
or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need
significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is
the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

The LEA is most proud of the progress on the following state and local indicators.

· 8.4% increase in the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA
· 4.7% increase in the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math

The LEA has included the following actions in the LCAP to assist in maintaining and building upon this progress:
01.05, 03.01 and 05.02  These actions include providing additional PD to teachers and paraprofessionals on
some of the following: CASS instructional strategies and  MTSS, continuing to develop the MTSS intervention
system for all students (K-12), and reducing class sizes to avoid as many combo classes as possible.

There were no state indicators on the 2018-2019 school year CA School Dashboard in which any student group
was Red or Orange.

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning
to take to address these performance gaps?

There were no state indicators on the 2018-2019 school year CA School Dashboard in which any student group
was two or more performance levels below the all student performance.

SCHOOLS IDENTIFIED

No schools in CSI.

An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts.

SUPPORT FOR IDENTIFIED SCHOOLS

COMPREHENSIVE SUPPORT AND IMPROVEMENT

Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

2 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan.

No schools in CSI.

Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support
student and school improvement.

No schools in CSI.

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness

3 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



Annual Update
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as
needed.

DRAFT
LCAP Year Reviewed:   2018-19

01. Student achievement as measured by state and local targets and by participation  in College & Career Ready (CCR) classes will increase.

Annual Measureable Outcomes

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:8

Local

State

________________________________

ACTIONS / SERVICES

ActualExpected

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

88%
100%
34.4%
16.7%
71%

0
21.4%
21.4%

N/D
100%

90%
90%
36%
16%
33%
35%
22%
22%

94.0%
82%

1.B.1: Maintain the % of students with CASS aligned core curriculum above
1.B.2: Increase the % of ELs with CASS aligned ELD curriculum to
4.A.1: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA to
4.A.2: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math to
4.C: Increase the % of students successfully completing A-G requirements to
4.D: Maintain the % of students passing AP exams above
4.E: Increase the % of students CCR based on EAP (CA Dashboard, Status) to
4.F:  % of ELs reclassified (Reclassification Rate)
4.G: Increase the % of English Learner Progress (CA Dashboard, Status) to
8.A: Increase the % of students completing 2 formative local assessments to

4, 8

82%
100%
26%
12%
4%
N/A
N/A

17.9%
2

79%

Baseline

Goal 1

4 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

01.01: Purchase and fully implement (using
all support resources including digital
resources) the most recent SBE approved,
CASS-aligned science and social science
curriculum at all grade levels for all
teachers including special ed teachers and
intervention if appropriate materials are
found.

01.01: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  New materials purchased for K
-8  were supplemental and aligned to
CASS. The district is still looking for
appropriate  CASS core materials in
science.  The district also piloted a social
science curriculum for grades K-12 and
plans to purchase in the 19-20 school year.
Teachers said that the supplemental
materials have been useful in providing
better instruction, but they are still anxious
to get a core science curriculum and to
implement one of the piloted social science
curriculums. (40%, 25%)

$6,150
$11,863
$18,013

Lottery
Ltry Prp 20

4000
4000

$2,000
$6,868
$8,868

Lottery
Ltry Prp 20

4000
4000

Action 1 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

01.02: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

01.02: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 2 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

01.03: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

01.03: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 3 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

5 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

01.04: All students (grades 3-11) will
complete the district approved common
formative assessments in RLA and Math
and ELD 3/year.  (PD Plan)

01.04: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  In K-5, all students complete 3
benchmarks in RLA.  The district does not
have a systematic formative assessment
program in math or ELD.  At the HS, the
student complete weekly assessments to
determine needs in math. The HS is also
screening all students in RLA
comprehension and fluency.  The
assessments have been highly effective in
K-5 in identifying needs and measuring
progress.  The RLA assessments are
effective at both sites.  A screening
assessment is needed at both sites in math
and ELD. (60%, 40%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 4 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

01.05: Provide PD for teachers and
paraprofessionals on some of the following:
CASS and CASS instructional strategies,
MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL
Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be
determined based on needs at end of each
year)  (PD Plan)

01.05: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  Teachers have been receiving
PD throughout the school year, with a
focus on the new CASS ELA curriculum,
the ELD Frameworks, and the NGSS.
Training is occurring in MTSS.  The new
ELA curriculum has been implemented in
all classrooms, with increasing
effectiveness as teachers continue to
receive further PD.  More EL students are
being redesignated with the new criteria.
(70%, 65%)

$10,239
$500
$10,739

Title II
Title II

5000
4000

$1,862
$2,500
$12,000
$16,362

Title II
Title II
MTSS Grnt

5000
4000
5000

Action 5 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

6 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

01.06: Provide a path for students to
acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including
more opportunities for college prep courses
or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to online
college prep courses, equipment for career
tech classes)

01.06: 90% of CTE courses meet A-G
requirements and will be 100% by the end
of summer.  Students have access to a
number of college prep, A-G courses
through both traditional and online courses.
More A-G classes are offered this year
than previously.  75% of CTE courses meet
A-G requirements.  An increased
percentage of students are enrolled in
community college classes as well.  The
number of students who are A-G eligible
has increased and more students are
enrolled in college prep courses. (90%,
78%)

$11,353
$8,386
$15,000
$1,991
$250
$5,064
$24,697
$66,741

LCFF
LCFF
CTEIG
Ag CTE
Ag CTE
Ag CTE
Title I

4000
5000
4000
4000
5000
6000
5000

$7,729
$5,318
$2,164
$121,496
$2,573

$173,821

CTEIG
CTEIG
CTEIG
CTEIG
CTEIG
CTEIG

1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000

Action 6 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

01.07: Continue the enriched in-school and
after-school CCR programs at the E.S. (i.e.
school visual and performing arts, digital
media, assemblies, local artists etc.)

01.07: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  Performing artists continue to
be brought in through UCSB Arts and
Lectures.  M.S. students have had the
opportunity to take art and drama electives
this year.  Students perform and show their
work to the community.  This participation
in the enrichment program has led to
greater connectedness to the school and
more self confidence for studnets. (100%,
80%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 7 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

7 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

01.08: Implement the writing program that
comes with the ELA curriculum as a district
approved writing curriculum.

01.08: We do not have a district writing
program.  The writing program is utilized
solely in RLA. Social studies, science and
electives should have a uniform system to
help establish basic norms through out the
district tat are used horizontally and
vertically.  There is very limited data at this
time but progress seems minimal.  The
district does not have internal assessments
to track the effectiveness of this actions,
but CAASP ELA scores have gone up
8.4% points. (0%, 0%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 8 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

01.09: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

01.09: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 9 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

01.10: Provide supplies for additional
elective classes such as music or the
culinary arts class.

01.10: Completed  Additional elective
classes are  available, including drama,
foreign language, and a CTE pathway in
agriculture.  Greater opportunity is
available through elective online learning
opportunities.  The effectiveness of this
action is shown by strong enrollment in the
elective classes including Ag, Spanish and
Drama. (100%, 100%)

$1,596
$1,596

LCFF 4000 $2,134
$2,134

LCFF 4000

Action 10 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

8 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

01.11: Completed in Yr 1. 01.11: This action was completed in Yr 1.
Because this action was not part of the
LCAP for the LCAP previous year the
progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(0%, 0%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 11 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

9 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
ANALYSIS

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.  Use actual
annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.
As part of the process mentioned above the LCAP Committee along with other stakeholders was asked to score the effectiveness of each action in the LCAP in
meeting the action's associated goal on a scale of 0% - 100%, 0% meaning the action was completely ineffective and 100% meaning the action was as effective

As part of the Annual Update meetings the LCAP Committee along with other stakeholders was asked to rate the implementation progress of each action in the
LCAP on a scale of 0% - 100%, 0% meaning nothing was accomplished on the particular action and 100% meaning the action was completed. The 11 actions
in this goal were determined to have an overall implementation / progress rating of 76% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the process used to
determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

The following 4 actions were determined to be completed or nearly completed.

- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL
Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at end of each year)
- 01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for college prep courses or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to
online college prep courses, equipment for career tech classes)
- 01.07: Continue the enriched in-school and after-school CCR programs at the E.S. (i.e. school visual and performing arts, digital media, assemblies, local
artists etc.)
- 01.10: Provide supplies for additional elective classes such as music or the culinary arts class.

The following 2 actions were challenging to implement and the district made minimal progress toward completion.

- 01.01: Purchase and fully implement (using all support resources including digital resources) the most recent SBE approved, CASS-aligned science and social
science curriculum at all grade levels for all teachers including special ed teachers and intervention if appropriate materials are found.
- 01.08: Implement the writing program that comes with the ELA curriculum as a district approved writing curriculum.

For more information on implementation progress, for this and all other goals, refer to the Actual Actions/Services box for each action.  This box contains
information about the progress made on each action.

The overall implementation of actions in goal 1 was successful for the following reasons:  The district has performing artists routinely brought in through UCSB
Arts and Lectures to grades.  The students and parents love this program and regularly  express appreciation for the opportunity.  MS students had the
opportunity to take art and drama electives this year.  Students in this class perform and show their work to the community.  Additional elective classes are
available, including drama, foreign language, and a CTE pathway in agriculture.  Greater opportunity is available through elective online learning opportunities.

10 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

The following 3 actions had significant differences between the budgeted and the actual expenditures:

- 01.01: Purchase and fully implement (using all support resources including digital resources) the most recent SBE approved, CASS-aligned science and social
science curriculum at all grade levels for all teachers including special ed teachers and intervention if appropriate materials are found.
- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL
Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at end of each year)
- 01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for college prep courses or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to
online college prep courses, equipment for career tech classes)

Reasons for the difference in budgeted and actual expenditures are:

- 01.01: The district piloted new social science curriculum and could not find a core science curriculum; therefore, the cost was lower than budgeted.
- 01.05: The district received an MTSS grant and subsequently spent more on MTSS training than originally expected.
- 01.06: After approval of last year's LCAP the district learned that it had more CTEIG money than originally thought, and that this money needed to be spent
during the 18-19 school year.

This goal remains unchanged in next year's LCAP.

as possible. The 11 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall effectiveness rating of 69% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the
process used to determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

The following 3 actions were determined to be highly effective at meeting their associated goal.

- 01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for college prep courses or instruction at the H.S. (licenses to
online college prep courses, equipment for career tech classes)
- 01.07: Continue the enriched in-school and after-school CCR programs at the E.S. (i.e. school visual and performing arts, digital media, assemblies, local
artists etc.)
- 01.10: Provide supplies for additional elective classes such as music or the culinary arts class.

For more information on effectiveness, for this and all other goals, refer to the Actual Actions/Services box for each action.  This box contains information about
the progress made on each action.

The actions under goal 1 were effective in helping the district achieve the goal for some of the following reasons:  The number of students who are A-G eligible
has increased from a baseline of 4% to 71% and more students are enrolled in college prep courses which has also led to an increase in the CAASPP ELA
percent proficient from 26% to 34.4%.  This increased participation in the enrichment program has led to greater connectedness to the school and more self
confidence for students.  The effectiveness of this action is shown by strong enrollment in the elective classes including Ag, Spanish and Drama.

11 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
No metrics in this goal were added as new or deleted in next year's LCAP.

The following are lists of actions that were added, deleted, modified, deleted and combined, or completed in next year's LCAP. These changes were a direct
result of meetings with stakeholder groups.

- 01.01: Purchase and fully implement (using all support resources including digital resources) the most recent SBE approved, CASS-aligned science and social
science curriculum at all grade levels for all teachers including special ed teachers and intervention if appropriate materials are found. - Modified, to read 01.01:
Purchase additional materials for classrooms instruction including paper based materials and computer based services.  The focus will be purchasing on CASS-
aligned science and social science curriculum.
- 01.08: Implement the writing program that comes with the ELA curriculum as a district approved writing curriculum. - Modified, to read 01.08: Provide teachers
PD to assist in developing a better writing program throughout the district that uses consistent norms across grade levels and across subjects.

12 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

02. School environment will be well maintained, sustainable, safe, welcoming and used by the community.

Annual Measureable Outcomes

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:8

Local

State

________________________________

ACTIONS / SERVICES

ActualExpected

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

111 97.7%100%1.C: Increase the # of the Facilities Inspection Tool overall rating to

1

96.9%

Baseline

Goal 2

02.01: Reprioritize and implement year 3
actions in the Facilities Assessment and
Cost Analysis Plan with priority given to the
highest highest facility needs across the
district.

02.01: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  At the HS the district completed
flooring replacement, ceiling tile
replacement, asbestos abatement, pool
pump house repair, and other
modernization improvements.  At the ES
the new monument sign was finished,  The
new parking lot surface is a significant
improvement in making the school
welcoming to the community.  The other
improvements are still in progress and the
effectiveness will have to be evaluated
upon completion. (30%, 30%)

$186,408
$30,000
$14,574
$230,982

Bond
Bond
Prop-39

5000
7000
7000

$400,000
$400,000

Bond 5000

Action 1 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

13 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

02.02: Provide tech support at both
campuses.

02.02: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  Remote assistance is provided
by LiMotta services.  The district provides
on-site part-time support.  Overall,
computers and other technological devices
are well maintained. Some challenges still
exist. Of concern is the internet bandwidth,
IT support, and hardware and infrastructure
improvements.   The greater access to
technology is giving students greater
connectedness to school as evidenced by
74% of students stating they feel
connected to school. (50%, 50%)

$70,000
$12,000
$16,387
$98,387

LCFF
LCFF
LCFF

5000
1000
2000

$81,360
$81,360

LCFF 5000

Action 2 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

02.03: Completed in Yr 1. 02.03: This action was completed in Yr 1.
Because this action was not part of the
LCAP for the LCAP previous year the
progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(0%, 0%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 3 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

14 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
ANALYSIS

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.  Use actual
annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.
The 3 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall effectiveness rating of 40% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the process used to
determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

No actions in this goal were determined to be highly effective at the time that this LCAP was approved.

For more information on effectiveness, for this and all other goals, refer to the Actual Actions/Services box for each action.  This box contains information about
the progress made on each action.

The 3 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall implementation / progress rating of 40% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the
process used to determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

No actions in this goal were completed or near completion at the time that this LCAP was approved.

The following action was challenging to implement and the district made minimal progress toward completion.

- 02.01: Reprioritize and implement year 3 actions in the Facilities Assessment and Cost Analysis Plan with priority given to the highest highest facility needs
across the district.

The overall implementation of actions in goal 2 was successful in that many improvement projectswere either begun or completed.  At the HS the district
completed flooring replacement, ceiling tile replacement, asbestos abatement, pool pump house repair, and other modernization improvements, which was
good.  At the ES the new monument sign was finished.  All of these projects will create a long term physical environment that is more welcoming and conducive
to learning.

The overall implementation of tech support still remains deficient in some ways.  Remote assistance is provided by LiMotta services.  The district provides on-
site part-time support.  Overall, computers and other technological devices are well maintained, but teachers report that there are still issues with technology
that does not work and an inabilty to service this technology.  Of continued concern is the internet bandwidth, IT support, and hardware and infrastructure
improvements.

15 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

The following 2 actions had significant differences between the budgeted and the actual expenditures:

- 02.01: Reprioritize and implement year 3 actions in the Facilities Assessment and Cost Analysis Plan with priority given to the highest highest facility needs
across the district.
- 02.02: Provide tech support at both campuses.

Reasons for the difference in budgeted and actual expenditures are:

- 02.01: The improvement projects under this action all cost more than expected due to increasing vendor costs in the local market.
- 02.02: There has been less on-site tech support provided this year than in past years.  In addition, the new internet service allowed the district to cancel
service on several T-1 lines.

This goal remains unchanged in next year's LCAP.

No metrics in this goal were added as new or deleted in next year's LCAP.

No actions in this goal were added, changed, completed, deleted or deleted and combined in next year's LCAP.

The actions under goal 2 were effective in helping the district achieve the goal for some of the following reasons:

The new parking lot surface, monument sign, flooring, and other improvements have made the schools more welcoming to the community.  This is evidenced by
the continued score of 97.7% on the FIT Tool.

16 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

03. The schools' social-emotional environment will be safe, welcoming, and conducive to student learning causing student connectedness with the district to
increase.

Annual Measureable Outcomes

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:8

Local

State

________________________________

ACTIONS / SERVICES

ActualExpected

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

92.4%
13.5%

0%
0%

92.9%
2.3%
0%
72.7

96.0%
9.6%
0%
4%

96%
5.25%

0%
67

5.A: Maintain the School attendance rate above
5.B: Maintain the Chronic absenteeism rate (CA Dashboard, Status) below
5.C: Maintain the Middle school dropout rate at
5.D: Maintain the High school dropout rate below
5.E: Maintain the High school graduation rate above
6.A: Decrease the Suspension rate (CA Dashboard, Status) to
6.B: Maintain the Expulsion rate at
6.C: Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating to

5, 6

96.1%
14.9%

0%
4%

95.6%
5.7%
0%
61

Baseline

Goal 3

03.01: Develop a MTSS tiered intervention
system for all students (K-12) in need of
strategic or intensive academic, behavioral
(PBIS), and social emotional interventions.
The academic interventions will include
both ELA and Math and will comply with
SBE time recommendations.  (PD Plan)

03.01: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  At the ES the academic (RTI)
and behavioral intervention components of
MTSS have been prioritized so far.  The
MS has a strong behavioral intervention
system in place.  There is still not much
MTSS at the HS.  Behavioral issues have
been reduced significantly district-wide.
(70%, 75%)

$1,800
$460
$2,260

LCFF
LCFF

5000
5000

$2,340
$2,340

MTSS 5000

Action 1 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

17 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES
program to support student academic
achievement and social-emotional success
including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation.

03.02: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  ASES continues to attract and
support more students each school year.
Students receive targeted instruction,
enrichment opportunities, including
league athletics and field trips.  Students
are better prepared and progressing in their
learning due to the effectiveness of the
ASES program.  The program supports
over 30% of the K-8 students.  The school
connectedness rose from 44% to 70% for
this group of students. (95%, 100%)

$7,575
$21,718
$9,233
$1,888
$9,967
$50,381

ASES
ASES
ASES
ASES
ASES

1000
2000
3000
4000
5000

$8,898
$34,685
$9,029
$545
$482
$53,639

ASES
ASES
ASES
ASES
ASES

1000
2000
3000
4000
5000

Action 2 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

03.03: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

03.03: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(0%, 0%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 3 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

03.04: Completed in Yr 1. 03.04: This action was completed in Yr 1.
Because this action was not part of the
LCAP for the LCAP previous year the
progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(0%, 0%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 4 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

18 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

03.05: Completed in Yr 1. 03.05: This action was completed in Yr 1.
Because this action was not part of the
LCAP for the LCAP previous year the
progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(0%, 0%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 5 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

03.06: Provide funding for athletic
programs. (transportation, fees, equipment,
uniforms, coaches and A.D. stipends, etc.)

03.06: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  The district provides funding for
athletic programs for three sports for both
boys and girls.  This year due to academic
ineligibility only fielded football and
volleyball teams.  Students who participate
in sports report a higher connectedness
with the school due to the sports programs.
Most students participate in at least one
sport throughout the school year. Lack of
quality outdoor facilities limits participation
and interest in baseball and softball. (50%,
50%)

$5,207
$706
$1,150
$12,089
$1,157
$20,309

LCFF
LCFF
Lottery
LCFF
LCFF

4000
5000
5000
2000
3000

$2,344
$1,404
$1,190
$8,338
$1,018
$14,294

LCFF
LCFF
Lottery
LCFF
LCFF

4000
5000
5000
2000
3000

Action 6 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

19 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
ANALYSIS

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.  Use actual
annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.
The 6 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall effectiveness rating of 75% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the process used to
determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

The following action was determined to be highly effective at meeting their associated goal

- 03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES program to support student academic achievement and social-emotional success including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation.

For more information on effectiveness, for this and all other goals, refer to the Actual Actions/Services box for each action.  This box contains information about
the progress made on each action.

The 6 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall implementation / progress rating of 72% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the
process used to determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

The following 2 actions were determined to be completed or nearly completed.

- 03.01: Develop a MTSS tiered intervention system for all students (K-12) in need of strategic or intensive academic, behavioral (PBIS), and social emotional
interventions.  The academic interventions will include both ELA and Math and will comply with SBE time recommendations.
- 03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES program to support student academic achievement and social-emotional success including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation.

No actions in this goal posed significant challenges to implement.

The overall implementation of actions in goal 3 was successful for the following reasons:  At the ES the academic (RTI) and behavioral intervention components
of MTSS have been prioritized so far and significant progress has been made developing these systems.  At the MS a strong behavioral intervention system has
been put in place.  In addition, the district has a been implementing a strong after-school program including; ASES which continues to attract and support more
students each school year, targeted instruction for students in need of intervention, enrichment opportunities, league athletics and field trips.  The
implementation of goal 3 was hampered by the lack of progress developing an MTSS at the HS.

20 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

The following action had significant differences between the budgeted and the actual expenditures:

- 03.06: Provide funding for athletic programs. (transportation, fees, equipment, uniforms, coaches and A.D. stipends, etc.)

The reasons for the difference in budgeted and actual expenditures is:

- 03.06: Due to academic ineligibility of too many students, the district did not field any of the following: boys basketball, girls basketball, softball, baseball.  This
saved on athletic costs.

This goal remains unchanged in next year's LCAP.

No metrics in this goal were added as new or deleted in next year's LCAP.

The following are lists of actions that were added, deleted, modified, deleted and combined, or completed in next year's LCAP. These changes were a direct
result of meetings with stakeholder groups.

- 03.01: Develop a MTSS tiered intervention system for all students (K-12) in need of strategic or intensive academic, behavioral (PBIS), and social emotional
interventions.  The academic interventions will include both ELA and Math and will comply with SBE time recommendations.  (PD Plan) - Modified, to read
03.01: Continue to develop the MTSS tiered intervention system for all students (K-12) in need of strategic or intensive academic, behavioral (PBIS), and social
emotional interventions.  The academic interventions will include both ELA and Math and will comply with SBE time recommendations.   (PD Plan)

The actions under goal 3 were effective in helping the district achieve the goal for some of the following reasons:
Teachers reported that at-risk students are progressing farther in their learning due to the effectiveness of the ASES program.  The program supports over 30%
of the K-8 students.  Partly because of the after school programs like ASES, enrihment, and athletics, the school connectedness rose from 44% to 70% on the
CHKS.

Chronic absenteeism went from 14.9% in the baseline to 13.5% while the school attendance rate went from 96.1% to 92.4%.  More needs to be done to
increase attendance at the schools.

21 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

04. Parent and community participation in and connectedness with the schools will increase.

Annual Measureable Outcomes

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:8

Local

State

________________________________

ACTIONS / SERVICES

ActualExpected

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

43%

19
3

.80

8
8

3.A: Maintain the % on the District Parent Survey agreeing that district seeks parent input ( Question 24 ) above

3.B:  # of unduplicated student parents participating in school programs
3.C:  # of exceptional needs students parents participating in school programs

3

79

15
14

Baseline

Goal 4

04.01: Provide annual parent conferences
that focus on educating parents on student
progress as well as strategies parents can
use to support student learning.  Make this
event more alike a parent night.  (PD Plan)

04.01: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  Parent conferences are offered
at the ES for all students and at the HS for
struggling students.  A District Advisory
Committee (20% parents) meets monthly to
advise the district about parent concerns.
A Promotores Committee was initiated to
engage mothers of Hispanic students.
Parent conferences have high participation
rates and parents report a greater
connectedness and engagement with the
district. (75%, 90%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 1 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

22 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents
in supporting their children academically,
learning at home strategies, parenting,
21st Century Skills, health and wellness
and understanding the CA educational
system.  (PD Plan)

04.02: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  The district offers an ESL class
for parents.  The class is taught by the
superintendent.  There has been one class
to assist parents with their children's
academics.  The ESL class parents report
a greater connectedness with the district
and as a result the participation of these
parents has increased.  These parents
have been participating in more school
activities as a result. (30%, 50%)

$10,000
$10,000

LCFF 5000 $0
$0

LCFF 5000

Action 2 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

23 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
ANALYSIS

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.  Use actual
annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.
The 2 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall effectiveness rating of 70% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the process used to
determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

No actions in this goal were determined to be highly effective at the time that this LCAP was approved.

For more information on effectiveness, for this and all other goals, refer to the Actual Actions/Services box for each action.  This box contains information about
the progress made on each action.

The actions under goal 4 were effective in helping the district achieve the goal for based on some of the following reasons:  Parent conferences had high

The 2 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall implementation / progress rating of 53% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the
process used to determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

The following action was determined to be completed or nearly completed.

- 04.01: Provide annual parent conferences that focus on educating parents on student progress as well as strategies parents can use to support student
learning.  Make this event more alike a parent night.

The following action was challenging to implement and the district made minimal progress toward completion.

- 04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents in supporting their children academically, learning at home strategies, parenting,  21st Century Skills, health and
wellness and understanding the CA educational system.

The overall implementation of actions in goal 4 was successful for some of the following reasons:  Parent conferences were offered at the ES for all students
and at the HS for struggling students.  The district als convenese a District Advisory Committee (20% parents) that meets monthly to advise the district about
parent concerns.  Along these lines a Promotores Committee was initiated to engage mothers of Hispanic students.  The district also offers an ESL class for
parents.  The class is taught by the superintendent.  There has been one class to assist parents with their children's academics.

24 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

The following action had significant differences between the budgeted and the actual expenditures:

- 04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents in supporting their children academically, learning at home strategies, parenting,  21st Century Skills, health and
wellness and understanding the CA educational system.

The reasons for the difference in budgeted and actual expenditures is:

- 04.02: The district was able to coordinate with outside partners to fund this action.  There was no cost to the district.

This goal remains unchanged in next year's LCAP.

No metrics in this goal were added as new or deleted in next year's LCAP.

No actions in this goal were added, changed, completed, deleted or deleted and combined in next year's LCAP.

participation rates and parents report a greater connectedness and engagement with the district.  78% of parents report that the district makes significant efforts
to communicate with parents.  The parents who attend the ESL class a greater connectedness with the district and as a result the participation of these parents
has increased.  These parents have been participating in more school activities as a result.

25 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

05. Staff all certificated and classified positions with appropriately skilled and credentialed people and provide all basic services needed to run the district.

Annual Measureable Outcomes

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:8

Local

State

________________________________

ACTIONS / SERVICES

ActualExpected

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

100%

91%
85%

100%
100%

100%

100%

80%
100%
100%
100%

100%

1.A: Maintain the % of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the
pupils they are teaching at
2.A: Increase the % Implementation of CASS for all students to
2.B: Maintain the % Implementation of SBE adopted ELD standards for all ELs at
7.A: Maintain the % of students enrolled in required courses of study at
7.B: Maintain the % of unduplicated students participating in programs or services for unduplicated students at

7.C: Maintain the % of exceptional needs students participating in programs or services for students with exceptional
needs at

1, 2, 7

100%

74%
89%

100%
N/A

N/A

Baseline

Goal 5

05.01: Staff all classrooms with
appropriately assigned, and fully
credentialed teachers in all subject areas,
and appropriate to the students they are
teaching. ( 9.78 FTE @ $92,299 / FTE )

05.01: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  All classrooms are staffed with
appropriately assigned, fully credentialed
teachers in all subject areas.  c (100%,
100%)

$278,115
$167,487
$348,907
$83,029
$17,287
$4,941
$2,400
$484
$902,651

LCFF
LCFF
LCFF, EPA
LCFF, EPA
CTEIG
CTEIG
Ag CTE
Ag CTE

1000
3000
1000
3000
1000
3000
1000
3000

$770,118
$82,852
$12,508
$2,152
$867,630

LCFF
LCFF
CTEIG
CTEIG

1000
3000
1000
3000

Action 1 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

26 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

05.02: Staff additional classrooms with
appropriately assigned, and fully
credentialed teachers to prevent combo
classes at the ES and additional
intervention sections at the HS in  ELA,
ELD, and Math designed to provide support
for unduplicated students. ( 4.22 FTE @
$92,299 / FTE )

05.02: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  Additional classrooms are
staffed with appropriately assigned, fully-
credentialed teachers in all subject areas.
The ability of students to have a teacher
that only teachers their grade level (not
combo classes) has had a positive effect
on student performance. (100%, 80%)

$285,516
$104,025
$389,541

LCFF, S&C
LCFF, S&C

1000
3000

$310,502
$63,822
$374,324

LCFF, S&C
LCFF, S&C

1000
3000

Action 2 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional
support positions including the
library/media technician. ( 3.26 FTE @
$34,242 / FTE )

05.03: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  All instructional support
positions are appropriately staffed.
Unduplicated students receive needed
support from instructional staff.  This is one
action leading to the increase in CAASPP
scores of 8.4%. (100%, 75%)

$28,312
$22,655
$47,178
$13,485
$111,630

LCFF
LCFF
Title I
Title I

2000
3000
2000
3000

$57,244
$16,363
$37,403
$10,691
$121,701

LCFF
LCFF
Title I
Title I

2000
3000
2000
3000

Action 3 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.04: Staff MOT at appropriate levels to
maintain safe, clean, and inviting facilities
and provide appropriate transportation. ( 6
FTE @ $55,362 / FTE )

05.04: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  All positions are staffed
appropriately.  Transportation is provided to
all students.  Facilities are safe, clean, and
inviting, as reflected in the Williams Report.
Transportation provided results in higher
attendance and student success. (100%,
50%)

$240,744
$91,428
$332,172

LCFF
LCFF

2000
3000

$259,084
$124,057
$383,141

LCFF
LCFF

2000
3000

Action 4 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

27 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position
that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,
Assessment Program, ASES program. ( 1
FTE @ $92,299 / FTE )

05.05: Staff position is filled with a
credentialed teacher.  The program
coordinator is highly effective in ensuring
the assessment program and the RTI
program continue to support the most at-
risk students in their academic growth. She
is also very good at communicating with
the teachers about the students.    While
focus groups and formative data suggest
this action is improving student outcomes
the main indicator is the EL  Progress
Dashboard indicator.  Unfortunately, CDE
did not produce this indicator for the 18-19
school year. (100%, 80%)

$64,928
$24,113
$2,723
$535
$92,299

LCFF, S&C
LCFF, S&C
ASES
ASES

1000
3000
1000
3000

$38,638
$17,960
$8,898
$1,833
$67,329

LCFF, S&C
LCFF, S&C
ASES
ASES

1000
3000
1000
3000

Action 5 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.06: Staff administrators and confidential
employees to oversee and run the schools
and district central office.  (1 FTE
superintendent, 1 FTE principals) ( 3 FTE
@ $130,129 / FTE )

05.06: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  All positions are staffed
appropriately. The superintendent/ high
school principal is now a full-time position.
There is a full-time principal at the
elementary school.   The full-time presence
of the principal on campus has increased
the effectiveness of basic services
especially discipline with 65% of parents
saying that the administrators are helpful.
(100%, 85%)

$229,013
$66,000
$95,374
$390,387

LCFF
LCFF
LCFF

1000
2000
3000

$228,523
$74,722
$97,451
$400,696

LCFF
LCFF
LCFF

1000
2000
3000

Action 6 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

28 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

05.07: Staff all office support positions and
account clerk. ( 3 FTE @ $49,413 / FTE )

05.07: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  All positions are staffed
appropriately with needed personnel who
are well trained at their jobs.  On the parent
survey 83% of parents agreed with the
statement that the school's office staff is
friendly and helpful.  (100%, 25%)

$99,237
$49,002
$148,239

LCFF
LCFF

2000
3000

$98,500
$58,155
$156,655

LCFF
LCFF

2000
3000

Action 7 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.08: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

05.08: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 8 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.09: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

05.09: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 9 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

29 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

05.10: Other books and supplies  (4000
-4999) not listed in other actions including
upgrading classroom technology.

05.10: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  This action is a general action
covering all other books and supplies not
detailed in the LCAP.  Additional books and
supplies were procured.  These books and
supplies varied in their effectiveness, but
as a whole the LCAP Committee
determined their purchases to be effective.
(20%, 20%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 10 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.11: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

05.11: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 11 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.12: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

05.12: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 12 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

30 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

05.13: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.

05.13: This action is no longer tracked as
part of the LCAP.  Because this action was
not part of the LCAP for the LCAP previous
year the progress is not recorded.  The
effectiveness has not been recorded either.
(100%, 100%)

$0 -- -- $0
$0

-- --

Action 13 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

05.14: Other books and supplies (4000
-4999), other services and operating
expenditures (5000-5999), other capital
outlays (6000-6999), and other outgo (7000
-7499) not listed in other actions.

05.14: The actual actions/services did not
change from the action/service identified in
the LCAP.  This action is a general action
covering all other books and supplies not
detailed in the LCAP.  Additional books and
supplies were procured.  These books and
supplies, operating expenses, and capital
outlays varied in their effectiveness, but as
a whole the LCAP Committee determined
their purchases to be effective. (100%,
100%)

$109,328
$1,065
$21,159
$2,637
$19,967
$278,417
$2,715
$39,100
$262,205
$736,593

LCFF
Other State
LCFF
TUPE
SRSA
LCFF
Other
Federal
Mandated
Cost
Other Local

4000
4000
5000
5000
4000
7000
4000
4000
5000

$109,328
$1,065
$21,159
$2,637
$19,967
$
$2,715
$278,417
$262,205
$736,593

LCFF
Other State
LCFF
TUPE
SRSA
LCFF
Other
Federal
Mandated
Cost
Other Local

4000
4000
5000
5000
4000
7000
4000
4000
5000

Action 14 Planned
Actions / Services

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Actions / Services

Estimated
Actual Annual Expenditures

31 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
ANALYSIS

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.  Use actual
annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.
The 14 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall effectiveness rating of 80% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the process used
to determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

The 14 actions in this goal were determined to have an overall implementation / progress rating of 94% on a scale of 0% - 100%. For more description on the
process used to determine these rating please refer to the Explanatory Page in the Appendix.

The following 8 actions were determined to be completed or nearly completed.

- 05.01: Staff all classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers in all subject areas, and appropriate to the students they are teaching.
- 05.02: Staff additional classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and additional intervention
sections at the HS in  ELA, ELD, and Math designed to provide support for unduplicated students.
- 05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support positions including the library/media technician.
- 05.04: Staff MOT at appropriate levels to maintain safe, clean, and inviting facilities and provide appropriate transportation.
- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,  Assessment Program, ASES program.
- 05.06: Staff administrators and confidential employees to oversee and run the schools and district central office.  (1 FTE superintendent, 1 FTE principals)
- 05.07: Staff all office support positions and account clerk.
- 05.14: Other books and supplies (4000-4999), other services and operating expenditures (5000-5999), other capital outlays (6000-6999), and other outgo
(7000-7499) not listed in other actions.

The following action was challenging to implement and the district made minimal progress toward completion.

- 05.10: Other books and supplies  (4000-4999) not listed in other actions including upgrading classroom technology.

The overall implementation of actions in goal 5 was successful for some of the following reasons:
All classrooms were staffed with appropriately assigned, fully credentialed teachers in all subject areas.  This can sometimes be difficult for CJUSD becuase it is
in such an isolated geographic locations.

In addition to the teaching positions, the superintendent/ HS principal is now a full-time position alog with the full-time principal at the ES.

32 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.
The following 2 actions had significant differences between the budgeted and the actual expenditures:

- 05.04: Staff MOT at appropriate levels to maintain safe, clean, and inviting facilities and provide appropriate transportation.
- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,  Assessment Program, ASES program.

Reasons for the difference in budgeted and actual expenditures are:

- 05.04: This action was not budgeted for properly in the 18-19 LCAP.
- 05.05: The budget for this position was based on the average FTE costs of a certificated staff member.  The person who filled this position cost less than that
amount.

The following 8 actions were determined to be highly effective at meeting their associated goal.

- 05.01: Staff all classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers in all subject areas, and appropriate to the students they are teaching.
- 05.02: Staff additional classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and additional intervention
sections at the HS in  ELA, ELD, and Math designed to provide support for unduplicated students.
- 05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support positions including the library/media technician.
- 05.04: Staff MOT at appropriate levels to maintain safe, clean, and inviting facilities and provide appropriate transportation.
- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,  Assessment Program, ASES program.
- 05.06: Staff administrators and confidential employees to oversee and run the schools and district central office.  (1 FTE superintendent, 1 FTE principals)
- 05.07: Staff all office support positions and account clerk.
- 05.14: Other books and supplies (4000-4999), other services and operating expenditures (5000-5999), other capital outlays (6000-6999), and other outgo
(7000-7499) not listed in other actions.

For more information on effectiveness, for this and all other goals, refer to the Actual Actions/Services box for each action.  This box contains information about
the progress made on each action.

The actions under goal 5 were effective in helping the district achieve the goal for some of the following reasons:
The high quality of teachers is having a positive impact of the student learning.  Teachers report an increased amount of their instruction being rigorously
aligned to the CASS (91%).

The staffing of the MOT department results in facilities that are safe, clean, and inviting, as reflected on the FIT Tool.

The program coordinator is highly effective in ensuring the assessment program and the RTI program continue to support the most at-risk students in their
academic growth. She is also very good at communicating with the teachers about the students.  Staff has commented on how crucial that position is to moving
the mot at-risk students forward.

The effectiveness of basic services has increased with the presence of full-time administrators on both campuses.  On the parent survey 65% of parents report
that the administrators are helpful and 83% of parents agreed with the statement that the school's office staff is friendly and helpful.

33 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.
This goal remains unchanged in next year's LCAP.

No metrics in this goal were added as new or deleted in next year's LCAP.

The following are lists of actions that were added, deleted, modified, deleted and combined, or completed in next year's LCAP. These changes were a direct
result of meetings with stakeholder groups.

- 05.14: Other books and supplies (4000-4999), other services and operating expenditures (5000-5999), other capital outlays (6000-6999), and other outgo
(7000-7499) not listed in other actions. - Modified, to read 05.14: This action is no longer tracked as part of the LCAP.

34 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFTStakeholder Engagement
BaselineLCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20): 2019-20

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

The board was informed about the LCAP progress, LCFF and progress towards the LCAP metrics during board meetings on  and .
The CJUSD administration team met to discuss both current year and next year's LCFF, LCAP, and progress towards completion of LCAP Actions on 2/4/2019.
and 3/4/2019.  During these meetings the admin team discussed all five sections of the LCAP and how all goals and the eight state priorities are covered by
various actions in the plan. The group specifically discussed progress on last year's LCAP (Annual Update) and began initial planning for the coming year's
LCAP. Administration input into the LCAP was informed by the following factors: discussions with teachers, classroom observations, daily professional
experiences, professional judgment, and student achievement data.
CJUSD conducted a focus group with certificated staff local bargaining unit members on 3/4/2019.  During the focus group a facilitator reviewed: the LCFF, the
LCAP’s purpose, the district’s current LCAP including the district's goals, metric data, and key actions.  Once the review was complete the focus group was
tasked with identifying actions that would assist the district in support of the LCAP's goals and the eight state priorities.  These actions were discussed in small
groups and then prioritized using a brainstorm activity.  After the prioritization activity each staff member was able to have their priorities recorded.  These were
then aggregated and used to modify the district's goals as well as identify new actions for the LCAP.  An identical focus group process was used for the classified
staff, student and parent / community stakeholder groups.
CJUSD conducted a focus group with the classified staff local bargaining unit members on 3/4/2019.  A process similar to that used with the certificated focus
group was used with the classified staff.
CJUSD conducted a focus group with the student stakeholder group on 3/4/2019.  A process similar to that used with the certificated focus group was used with
the student group.
CJUSD conducted a focus group with the parent / community stakeholder group on 3/4/2019.  A process similar to that used with the certificated focus group
was used with the parent / community group.
CJUSD 's LCAP Committee met on 3/26/2019 and 5/9/2019.  The committee consists of parents of low income students, English learners, and students with
special needs.  This body serves as the district's Parent Advisory Committee.  During this meeting the committee reviewed the purpose of the LCAP and the eight
state priorities.  Once these topics were covered the committee began a review of both the progress on the current LCAP (Annual Update), and the coming year's
Draft LCAP. All five sections of the Draft LCAP were reviewed. The committee members were asked for any concerns about or comments to the draft. The
members were also asked if anyone wanted to submit written questions to be answered by the superintendent.
CJUSD 's DELAC met on 3/26/2019 and 5/9/2019.  During this meeting the DELAC reviewed the purpose of the LCAP and the eight state priorities.  A process
similar to that used with the LCAP Committee meetings was followed in the DELAC meetings.
CJUSD 's leaderrship team met with the SELPA on 8/7/2019, 10/15/2019, 1/24/2019, 5/21/2019 to determine any specific actions for individuals with
exceptional needs that need to be included in the LCAP.
The Draft LCAP was posted on CJUSD s' website for review on 5/31/2019.

35 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
A group of certificated staff, classified staff, parents, and students served as the primary group used to conduct the Annual Update. This group consisted of
parents of; low income students, english learners, and student with special needs along with certificated and classified bargaining unit members, administrators,
and students. This committee met on 10/8/2018 and 4/8/2019 to review the progress made on the current year LCAP. The committee was tasked with
determining the percentage of each action that had been completed along with creating a brief narrative describing the progress made on each action. To
facilitate the process the committee was briefed on the state purposes and guidelines for LCFF and LCAP, as well as the district's current year LCAP.
Participants were given a very brief overview of the metrics that are used to measure LCAP progress.

36 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?
DRAFT

The administration team's impact was primarily to discuss how to implement the LCAP and what specific priorities from the various stakeholder groups were more
readily achievable.
The certificated staff focus group listed the following five actions as top priorities. All of these are in the plan unless denoted by an asterisk.
1 - 9.94% - Provide tech support at both campuses. - 02.02
2 - 7.18% - Increase compensation for teachers and classified staff to recruit and sustain good teachers and staff. - 05.01
3 - 4.97% - Increase the budget for teacher classroom supplies. *
4 - 4.97% - Provide a keyboarding program for all grades. *
5 - 4.97% - Develop a MTSS tiered intervention system for all students (K-12) in need of strategic or intensive academic, behavioral (PBIS), and social emotional
interventions.  The academic interventions will include both ELA and Math and will comply with SBE time recommendations. - 03.01
The classified staff focus group listed the following five actions as top priorities. All of these are in the plan unless denoted by an asterisk.
1 - 8.43% - Add safety measures to the high school such as fencing and cameras. - 02.01
2 - 8.43% - Provide supplies for additional elective classes such as music or the culinary arts class. - 01.10
3 - 7.23% - Ensure the teachers provide positive support to students regardless of how they feel about the student. - 03.01
4 - 6.02% - Provide more sports. - 03.06
5 - 4.82% - Provide tech support at both campuses. - 02.02
The student focus group listed the following five actions as top priorities.  All of these are in the plan unless denoted by an asterisk.
1 - 10% - Ensure the teachers provide positive support to students regardless of how they feel about the student. - 03.01
2 - 7.14% - Provide a student Wi-Fi network. *
3 - 5.71% - Provide more sports. - 03.06
4 - 5.71% - Install a central HVAC system at the high school. - 02.01
5 - 5.71% - Provide funding for athletic programs. (transportation, fees, equipment, uniforms, coaches and A.D. stipends, etc.) - 03.06
The parent / community focus group listed the following five actions as top priorities.  All of these are in the plan unless denoted by an asterisk.
1 - 8.45% - Implement the writing program that comes with the ELA curriculum as a district approved writing curriculum. - 01.08
2 - 5.63% - Increase compensation for teachers and classified staff to recruit and sustain good teachers and staff. - 05.01
3 - 5.63% - Provide tech support at both campuses. - 02.02
4 - 4.23% - Provide more sports. - 03.06
5 - 4.23% - Provide more hands-on work in class and less lectures. *
The LCAP Committee is serving as the advisory body to the superintendent with regards to edit and revisions of the LCAP. Any suggestions given by this
committee were taken under advisement and if possible were incorporated into the Final LCAP.
The DELAC had several questions which were answered and a few comments for the plan. Any suggestions given by the DELAC were taken under advisement
and if possible were incorporated into the Final LCAP.
The feedback of the LCAP Committee was helpful in determining areas of the plan that needed modification and in spotlighting areas of success. The LCAP
Committee determined that the third year of the plan was good and that few changes needed to be made.  The LCAP Committee did recommend that changes
be made to actions 01.01 and 01.08.  The Committee also discussed the need to do something about the decreasing graduation rate and the decreasing school
attendance rate.  Action 03.01 is part of the district's plan  to address this issue as is action 03.06.

37 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.

DRAFT

8Unchanged

1.B.1: Maintain the % of students with CASS aligned core curriculum above

1.B.2: Increase the % of ELs with CASS aligned ELD curriculum to
4.A.1: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA to
4.A.2: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math to

4.C: Increase the % of students successfully completing A-G requirements to

4.D: Maintain the % of students passing AP exams above
4.E: Increase the % of students CCR based on EAP (CA Dashboard, Status) to

4.F:  % of ELs reclassified (Reclassification Rate)
4.G: Increase the % of English Learner Progress (CA Dashboard, Status) to

8.A: Increase the % of students completing 2 formative local assessments to

1.B.1: Maintain the % of students with CASS aligned core curriculum above

1.B.2: Increase the % of ELs with CASS aligned ELD curriculum to
4.A.1: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA to
4.A.2: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math to

4.C: Increase the % of students successfully completing A-G requirements to

4.D: Maintain the % of students passing AP exams above
4.E: Increase the % of students CCR based on EAP (CA Dashboard, Status) to

4.F:  % of ELs reclassified (Reclassification Rate)
4.G: Increase the % of English Learner Progress (CA Dashboard, Status) to

8.A: Increase the % of students completing 2 formative local assessments to

1.B.1: Maintain the % of students with CASS aligned core curriculum above

1.B.2: Increase the % of ELs with CASS aligned ELD curriculum to
4.A.1: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA to
4.A.2: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math to

4.C: Increase the % of students successfully completing A-G requirements to

4.D: Maintain the % of students passing AP exams above
4.E: Increase the % of students CCR based on EAP (CA Dashboard, Status) to

4.F:  % of ELs reclassified (Reclassification Rate)
4.G: Increase the % of English Learner Progress (CA Dashboard, Status) to

8.A: Increase the % of students completing 2 formative local assessments to

1.B.1: Maintain the % of students with CASS aligned core curriculum above

1.B.2: Increase the % of ELs with CASS aligned ELD curriculum to
4.A.1: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA to
4.A.2: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math to

4.C: Increase the % of students successfully completing A-G requirements to

4.D: Maintain the % of students passing AP exams above
4.E: Increase the % of students CCR based on EAP (CA Dashboard, Status) to

4.F:  % of ELs reclassified (Reclassification Rate)
4.G: Increase the % of English Learner Progress (CA Dashboard, Status) to

8.A: Increase the % of students completing 2 formative local assessments to

1

1
1
1
1

1
1

1
1

1

1.B.1: Maintain the % of students with CASS aligned core curriculum above

1.B.2: Increase the % of ELs with CASS aligned ELD curriculum to
4.A.1: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA to
4.A.2: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math to

4.C: Increase the % of students successfully completing A-G requirements to

4.D: Maintain the % of students passing AP exams above
4.E: Increase the % of students CCR based on EAP (CA Dashboard, Status) to

4.F:  % of ELs reclassified (Reclassification Rate)
4.G: Increase the % of English Learner Progress (CA Dashboard, Status) to

8.A: Increase the % of students completing 2 formative local assessments to

8

01. Student achievement as measured by state and local targets and by participation  in College & Career Ready (CCR) classes will increase.

Increased % of students who demonstrate academic growth and proficiencies needed to ensure they leave the TK-12 system ready for college and career.  The
district primarily used CAASPP ELA and Math to determine this need.

Local

DRAFT

Expected Annual Measureable Outcomes
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

90%

90%
36%
16%
33%

35%
22%

22%
94.0%

82%

90%

100%
40%
18%
36%

36%
24%

24%
96.0%

85%

82%

100%
26%
12%
4%

N/A
N/A

17.9%
2

79%

90%

85%
34%
14%
30%

34%
20%

20%
92.0%

80%

1.B.1: Maintain the % of students with CASS aligned core curriculum above

1.B.2: Increase the % of ELs with CASS aligned ELD curriculum to
4.A.1: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP ELA to
4.A.2: Increase the % meeting standard on CAASPP Math to
4.C: Increase the % of students successfully completing A-G requirements to

4.D: Maintain the % of students passing AP exams above
4.E: Increase the % of students CCR based on EAP (CA Dashboard, Status) to

4.F:  % of ELs reclassified (Reclassification Rate)
4.G: Increase the % of English Learner Progress (CA Dashboard, Status) to

8.A: Increase the % of students completing 2 formative local assessments to

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:State

________________________________

Identified Need

Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal

4, 8

Goal 1

38 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.01: Purchase and fully implement (using all
support resources including digital resources) the
most recent SBE approved, CASS-aligned science
curriculum at all grade levels for all teachers
including special ed teachers and intervention.

01.01: Purchase additional materials for
classrooms instruction including paper based
materials and computer based services.  The focus
will be purchasing on CASS-aligned science and
social science curriculum.

01.01: Purchase and fully implement (using all
support resources including digital resources) the
most recent SBE approved, CASS-aligned science
and social science curriculum at all grade levels for
all teachers including special ed teachers and
intervention if appropriate materials are found.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 1

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Planned Actions / Services
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

888Unchanged Modified Modified

All LEA-wide All Schools

$26,042
$11,863
$15,000
$52,905

$6,150
$11,863
$18,013

$28,665
$10,335
$39,000

8 8 8Ltry/Instr Mtrl, Ltry Prp 20, LCFF Lottery, Ltry Prp 20 Lottery, Ltry Prp 20

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

39 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



Budget Reference 8 884000, 4000, 4000 4000, 4000 4000, 4000

8 8All Schools, Specific Grade Spans:_________________ (K-8)All

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.02: Provide a tiered intervention system for all
students (K-8) in need of strategic or intensive
intervention in ELA and Math, to include universal
screening.  Interventions will comply with SBE
required time.

01.02: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

01.02: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 2

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide

$0 $0 $0

8 8 8-- -- --

8 88-- -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

40 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8Specific Grade Spans: (9-12)All

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.03: Provide ongoing ELA, ELD, and Math
interventions at the high school for students in
need of these interventions.

01.03: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

01.03: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 3

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide

$0 $0 $0

8 8 8-- -- --

8 88-- -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

41 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All Schools, Specific Grade Spans:_________________ (3-11)All

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.04: All students (grades 3-11) will complete the
district approved common formative assessments
in RLA and Math and ELD 3/year.  (PD Plan)

01.04: All students (grades 3-11) will complete the
district approved common formative assessments
in RLA and Math and ELD 3/year.  (PD Plan)

01.04: All students (grades 3-11) will complete the
district approved common formative assessments
in RLA and Math and ELD 3/year.  (PD Plan)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 4

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Unchanged Unchanged

All LEA-wide

$2,500
$2,500

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 885000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

42 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsEnglish Learners, Low Income

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.05: Provide PD for teachers and
paraprofessionals on some of the following: New
ELA curriculum intervention resources, ELD
Standards, EL instructional strategies focusing on
NGSS,   (PD Plan)

01.05: Provide PD for teachers and
paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS
and CASS instructional strategies, MTSS, PBIS,
ELD Standards, EL Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus
to be determined based on needs at end of each
year)  (PD Plan)

01.05: Provide PD for teachers and
paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS
and CASS instructional strategies, MTSS, PBIS,
ELD Standards, EL Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus
to be determined based on needs at end of each
year)  (PD Plan)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 5

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

English Learners, Low Income LEA-wide All Schools

$13,894
$10,597
$13,578
$38,069

$10,239
$500
$10,739

$9,422
$3,000
$12,422

8 8 8LCFF, S&C, Title II, Title III Title II, Title II Title II, MTSS Grant

8 885000, 5000, 5000 5000, 4000 5000, 5000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

43 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8Specific Grade Spans: (9-12)All

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR
skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for
college prep courses or instruction at the H.S.
(licenses to online college prep courses)

01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR
skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for
college prep courses or instruction at the H.S.
(licenses to online college prep courses, equipment
for career tech classes)

01.06: Provide a path for students to acquire CCR
skills at the H.S. including more opportunities for
college prep courses or instruction at the H.S.
(licenses to online college prep courses, equipment
for career tech classes)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 6

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide

$10,000
$10,000

$11,353
$8,386
$15,000
$1,991
$250
$5,064
$24,697
$66,741

$11,353
$8,386
$3,711
$23,450

8
8

8
8

8
8

LCFF LCFF, LCFF, CTEIG, Ag CTE, Ag CTE, Ag
CTE, Title I

LCFF, LCFF, Title I

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

44 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



Budget Reference 8 885000 4000, 5000, 4000, 4000, 5000, 6000, 5000 4000, 5000, 5000

8 8Specific Grade Spans: (TK-8)All

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.07: Continue the enriched in-school and after-
school CCR programs at the E.S. (i.e. school visual
and performing arts, digital media, assemblies,
local artists etc.)

01.07: Continue the enriched in-school and after-
school CCR programs at the E.S. (i.e. school visual
and performing arts, digital media, assemblies,
local artists etc.)

01.07: Continue the enriched in-school and after-
school CCR programs at the E.S. (i.e. school visual
and performing arts, digital media, assemblies,
local artists etc.)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 7

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Unchanged Unchanged

All LEA-wide

$5,000
$5,000

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 885000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

45 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.08: Purchase and implement a district approved
writing program.

01.08: Provide teachers PD to assist in developing
a better writing program throughout the district that
uses consistent norms across grade levels and
across subjects.

01.08: Implement the writing program that comes
with the ELA curriculum as a district approved
writing curriculum.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 8

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Modified

All LEA-wide All Schools

$13,314
$13,314

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 884000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

46 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsFoster Youth

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.09: Provide PD for teachers, invited guest
teacher and paraprofessionals on effective
strategies and understanding of the unique
challenges of foster youth.

01.09: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

01.09: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 9

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

Foster Youth LEA-wide All Schools

$2,000
$2,000

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 885000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

47 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.10: Add additional elective classes such as: a
music program, a home economics (culinary
arts/fashion design) program, additional foreign
language options, and a drama class.

01.10: Provide supplies for additional elective
classes such as music or the culinary arts class.

01.10: Provide supplies for additional elective
classes such as music or the culinary arts class.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 10

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$2,000
$2,000

$1,596
$1,596

$1,643
$1,643

8 8 8LCFF LCFF LCFF

8 884000 4000 4000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

48 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

01.11: Provide upgraded computers that work in
the computer labs and other classroom technology
in designated classrooms i.e. yearbook and new
teacher computers.

01.11: Completed in Yr 1.01.11: Completed in Yr 1.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 11

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$19,967
$19,967

$0 $0

8 8 8SRSA -- --

8 884000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

49 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8Unchanged

1.C: Increase the # of the Facilities Inspection Tool overall rating to1.C: Increase the # of the Facilities Inspection Tool overall rating to1.C: Increase the # of the Facilities Inspection Tool overall rating to1.C: Increase the # of the Facilities Inspection Tool overall rating to1 1.C: Increase the # of the Facilities Inspection Tool overall rating to

8

02. School environment will be well maintained, sustainable, safe, welcoming and used by the community.

Ensure that facilities are safe and appropriate to foster academic achievement.  Parent, staff, and student survey and focus group data demonstrated the need for
this goal.

Local

DRAFT

Expected Annual Measureable Outcomes
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

100% 100%96.9% 100%1.C: Increase the # of the Facilities Inspection Tool overall rating to

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:State

________________________________

Identified Need

Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal

1

Goal 2

50 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

02.01: Reprioritize and implement year 2 actions in
the Facilities Assessment and Cost Analysis Plan
with priority given to the highest highest facility
needs across the district.

02.01: Reprioritize and implement year 4 actions in
the Facilities Assessment and Cost Analysis Plan
with priority given to the highest highest facility
needs across the district.

02.01: Reprioritize and implement year 3 actions in
the Facilities Assessment and Cost Analysis Plan
with priority given to the highest highest facility
needs across the district.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 1

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Unchanged Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$750,000
$250,000
$1,000,000

$186,408
$30,000
$14,574
$230,982

$400,000
$400,000

8 8 8Bond, Bond Bond, Bond, Prop-39 Bond

8 886000, 5000 5000, 7000, 7000 6000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

51 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

02.02: Provide tech support at both campuses. 02.02: Provide tech support at both campuses.02.02: Provide tech support at both campuses.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 2

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$10,000
$10,000

$70,000
$12,000
$16,387
$98,387

$72,100
$12,180
$13,390
$97,670

8 8 8LCFF LCFF, LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF, LCFF

8 885000 5000, 1000, 2000 5000, 1000, 2000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

52 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

02.03: Ensure that all classrooms have at minimum
a mounted projector, TV or other visual device, a
document camera, a wide pull-down screen.

02.03: Completed in Yr 1.02.03: Completed in Yr 1.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 3

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$35,000
$35,000

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 884000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

53 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8Unchanged

5.A: Maintain the School attendance rate above

5.B: Maintain the Chronic absenteeism rate (CA Dashboard, Status) below

5.C: Maintain the Middle school dropout rate at
5.D: Maintain the High school dropout rate below

5.E: Maintain the High school graduation rate above
6.A: Decrease the Suspension rate (CA Dashboard, Status) to

6.B: Maintain the Expulsion rate at
6.C: Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating to

5.A: Maintain the School attendance rate above

5.B: Maintain the Chronic absenteeism rate (CA Dashboard, Status) below

5.C: Maintain the Middle school dropout rate at
5.D: Maintain the High school dropout rate below

5.E: Maintain the High school graduation rate above
6.A: Decrease the Suspension rate (CA Dashboard, Status) to

6.B: Maintain the Expulsion rate at
6.C: Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating to

5.A: Maintain the School attendance rate above

5.B: Maintain the Chronic absenteeism rate (CA Dashboard, Status) below

5.C: Maintain the Middle school dropout rate at
5.D: Maintain the High school dropout rate below

5.E: Maintain the High school graduation rate above
6.A: Decrease the Suspension rate (CA Dashboard, Status) to

6.B: Maintain the Expulsion rate at
6.C: Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating to

5.A: Maintain the School attendance rate above

5.B: Maintain the Chronic absenteeism rate (CA Dashboard, Status) below

5.C: Maintain the Middle school dropout rate at
5.D: Maintain the High school dropout rate below

5.E: Maintain the High school graduation rate above
6.A: Decrease the Suspension rate (CA Dashboard, Status) to

6.B: Maintain the Expulsion rate at
6.C: Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating to

1

1

1
1
1
1
1
1

5.A: Maintain the School attendance rate above

5.B: Maintain the Chronic absenteeism rate (CA Dashboard, Status) below

5.C: Maintain the Middle school dropout rate at
5.D: Maintain the High school dropout rate below

5.E: Maintain the High school graduation rate above
6.A: Decrease the Suspension rate (CA Dashboard, Status) to

6.B: Maintain the Expulsion rate at
6.C: Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating to

8

03. The schools' social-emotional environment will be safe, welcoming, and conducive to student learning causing student connectedness with the district to
increase.

Access to systems for health and wellness, social-emotional and family supports.Parent, staff, and student survey and focus group data demonstrated the need
for this goal along with suspension rate, chronic absenteeism rate, etc.

Local

DRAFT

Expected Annual Measureable Outcomes
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

96.0%

9.6%

0%
4%

96%
5.25%

0%
67

96.0%

9.2%

0%
4%

96%
5.0%
0%
70

96.1%

14.9%

0%
4%

95.6%
5.7%
0%
61

96.0%

10.0%

0%
4%

96%
5.5%
0%
65

5.A: Maintain the School attendance rate above

5.B: Maintain the Chronic absenteeism rate (CA Dashboard, Status) below

5.C: Maintain the Middle school dropout rate at
5.D: Maintain the High school dropout rate below
5.E: Maintain the High school graduation rate above
6.A: Decrease the Suspension rate (CA Dashboard, Status) to
6.B: Maintain the Expulsion rate at
6.C: Increase the # on the District School Climate Survey overall index rating to

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:State

________________________________

Identified Need

Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal

5, 6

Goal 3

54 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

03.01: Continue to implement and improve the
tiered PBIS program.  (PD Plan)

03.01: Continue to develop the MTSS tiered
intervention system for all students (K-12) in need
of strategic or intensive academic, behavioral
(PBIS), and social emotional interventions.  The
academic interventions will include both ELA and
Math and will comply with SBE time
recommendations.   (PD Plan)

03.01: Develop a MTSS tiered intervention system
for all students (K-12) in need of strategic or
intensive academic, behavioral (PBIS), and social
emotional interventions.  The academic
interventions will include both ELA and Math and
will comply with SBE time recommendations.  (PD
Plan)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 1

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Modified

All LEA-wide All Schools

$2,000
$2,000

$1,800
$460
$2,260

$2,260
$2,260

8 8 8LCFF LCFF, LCFF MTSS Grant

8 885000 5000, 5000 5000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

55 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All Schools (TK-9)English Learners, Foster Youth, Low Income

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES program to
support student academic achievement and social-
emotional success including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation. ()

03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES program to
support student academic achievement and social-
emotional success including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation.

03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES program to
support student academic achievement and social-
emotional success including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 2

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

English Learners, Foster Youth, Low Income LEA-wide All Schools (TK-9)

$16,194
$5,171
$1,888
$19,021
$42,274

$7,575
$21,718
$9,233
$1,888
$9,967
$50,381

$3,559
$27,736
$12,646
$1,553
$8,145
$53,639

8 8 8ASES, ASES, ASES, ASES ASES, ASES, ASES, ASES, ASES ASES, ASES, ASES, ASES, ASES

8 882000, 3000, 4000, 5000 1000, 2000, 3000, 4000, 5000 1000, 2000, 3000, 4000, 5000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

56 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsFoster Youth

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

03.03: Continue to identify and to monitor foster
youth and to provide ongoing support for their
academic and social-emotional success.

03.03: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

03.03: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 3

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

Foster Youth LEA-wide All Schools

$0 $0 $0

8 8 8-- -- --

8 88-- -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

57 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsStudents with Disabilities

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

03.04: Provide PD for teachers to support SWD
who have autism, physical disability, behavioral
handicaps, etc.

03.04: Completed in Yr 1.03.04: Completed in Yr 1.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 4

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

Students with Disabilities LEA-wide All Schools

$2,000
$2,000

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 885000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

58 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

03.05: Provide support for a school-wide discipline
plan. (Student responsibility)

03.05: Completed in Yr 1.03.05: Completed in Yr 1.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 5

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$0 $0 $0

8 8 8-- -- --

8 88-- -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

59 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

03.06: Provide funding for athletic programs.
(transportation, fees, equipment, uniforms, etc.)

03.06: Provide funding for athletic programs.
(transportation, fees, equipment, uniforms, coaches
and A.D. stipends, etc.)

03.06: Provide funding for athletic programs.
(transportation, fees, equipment, uniforms, coaches
and A.D. stipends, etc.)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 6

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$5,000
$5,000

$5,207
$706
$1,150
$12,089
$1,157
$20,309

$5,207
$706
$780
$9,089
$1,159
$16,941

8 8 8LCFF LCFF, LCFF, Lottery, LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF, Lottery, LCFF, LCFF

8 884000 4000, 5000, 5000, 2000, 3000 4000, 5000, 5000, 2000, 3000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

60 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8Unchanged

3.A: Maintain the % on the District Parent Survey agreeing that district seeks
parent input ( Question 24 ) above

3.B:  # of unduplicated student parents participating in school programs

3.C:  # of exceptional needs students parents participating in school programs

3.A: Maintain the % on the District Parent Survey agreeing that district seeks
parent input ( Question 24 ) above

3.B:  # of unduplicated student parents participating in school programs

3.C:  # of exceptional needs students parents participating in school programs

3.A: Maintain the % on the District Parent Survey agreeing that district seeks
parent input ( Question 24 ) above

3.B:  # of unduplicated student parents participating in school programs

3.C:  # of exceptional needs students parents participating in school programs

3.A: Maintain the % on the District Parent Survey agreeing that district seeks
parent input ( Question 24 ) above

3.B:  # of unduplicated student parents participating in school programs

3.C:  # of exceptional needs students parents participating in school programs

1
1
1

1

3.A: Maintain the % on the District Parent Survey agreeing that district seeks
parent input ( Question 24 ) above

3.B:  # of unduplicated student parents participating in school programs

3.C:  # of exceptional needs students parents participating in school programs

8

04. Parent and community participation in and connectedness with the schools will increase.

Increased engagement and support of parents as stakeholders and decision makers.  The data used to arrive at this need was school parent surveys and
stakeholder focus groups.

Local

DRAFT

Expected Annual Measureable Outcomes
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

.80

8

8

.80

10

10

79

15

14

.80

4

4

3.A: Maintain the % on the District Parent Survey agreeing that district seeks
parent input ( Question 24 ) above
3.B:  # of unduplicated student parents participating in school programs

3.C:  # of exceptional needs students parents participating in school programs

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:State

________________________________

Identified Need

Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal

3

Goal 4

61 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

04.01: Provide annual parent conferences that
focus on educating parents on student progress as
well as strategies parents can use to support
student learning.  Make this event more alike a
parent night.  (PD Plan)

04.01: Provide annual parent conferences that
focus on educating parents on student progress as
well as strategies parents can use to support
student learning.  Make this event more alike a
parent night.  (PD Plan)

04.01: Provide annual parent conferences that
focus on educating parents on student progress as
well as strategies parents can use to support
student learning.  Make this event more alike a
parent night.  (PD Plan)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 1

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Unchanged Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$0 $0 $0

8 8 8-- -- --

8 88-- -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

62 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsEnglish Learners, Low Income

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents in
supporting their children academically, learning at
home strategies, parenting,  21st Century Skills,
health and wellness and understanding the CA
educational system.  (PD Plan)

04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents in
supporting their children academically, learning at
home strategies, parenting,  21st Century Skills,
health and wellness and understanding the CA
educational system.  (PD Plan)

04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents in
supporting their children academically, learning at
home strategies, parenting,  21st Century Skills,
health and wellness and understanding the CA
educational system.  (PD Plan)

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 2

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Unchanged Unchanged

English Learners, Low Income LEA-wide All Schools

$20,000
$20,000

$10,000
$10,000

$0

8 8 8LCFF LCFF LCFF

8 885000 5000 5000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

63 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8Unchanged

1.A: Maintain the % of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching at

2.A: Increase the % Implementation of CASS for all students to
2.B: Maintain the % Implementation of SBE adopted ELD standards for all ELs

at
7.A: Maintain the % of students enrolled in required courses of study at

7.B: Maintain the % of unduplicated students participating in programs or
services for unduplicated students at

7.C: Maintain the % of exceptional needs students participating in programs or
services for students with exceptional needs at

1.A: Maintain the % of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching at

2.A: Increase the % Implementation of CASS for all students to
2.B: Maintain the % Implementation of SBE adopted ELD standards for all ELs

at
7.A: Maintain the % of students enrolled in required courses of study at

7.B: Maintain the % of unduplicated students participating in programs or
services for unduplicated students at

7.C: Maintain the % of exceptional needs students participating in programs or
services for students with exceptional needs at

1.A: Maintain the % of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching at

2.A: Increase the % Implementation of CASS for all students to
2.B: Maintain the % Implementation of SBE adopted ELD standards for all ELs

at
7.A: Maintain the % of students enrolled in required courses of study at

7.B: Maintain the % of unduplicated students participating in programs or
services for unduplicated students at

7.C: Maintain the % of exceptional needs students participating in programs or
services for students with exceptional needs at

1.A: Maintain the % of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching at

2.A: Increase the % Implementation of CASS for all students to
2.B: Maintain the % Implementation of SBE adopted ELD standards for all ELs

at
7.A: Maintain the % of students enrolled in required courses of study at

7.B: Maintain the % of unduplicated students participating in programs or
services for unduplicated students at

7.C: Maintain the % of exceptional needs students participating in programs or
services for students with exceptional needs at

1
1
1
1

1

1
1
1
1

1.A: Maintain the % of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching at

2.A: Increase the % Implementation of CASS for all students to
2.B: Maintain the % Implementation of SBE adopted ELD standards for all ELs

at
7.A: Maintain the % of students enrolled in required courses of study at

7.B: Maintain the % of unduplicated students participating in programs or
services for unduplicated students at

7.C: Maintain the % of exceptional needs students participating in programs or
services for students with exceptional needs at

8

05. Staff all certificated and classified positions with appropriately skilled and credentialed people and provide all basic services needed to run the district.

Students receive instruction and support from qualified and highly skilled staff and effective basic services are provided.  The data used to arrive at this need was
surveys and stakeholder focus groups.

Local

DRAFT

Expected Annual Measureable Outcomes
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

100%

80%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

74%
89%

100%

N/A

N/A

100%

75%
100%

100%

100%

100%

1.A: Maintain the % of teachers who are appropriately assigned and fully
credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching at
2.A: Increase the % Implementation of CASS for all students to
2.B: Maintain the % Implementation of SBE adopted ELD standards for all ELs
at
7.A: Maintain the % of students enrolled in required courses of study at

7.B: Maintain the % of unduplicated students participating in programs or
services for unduplicated students at
7.C: Maintain the % of exceptional needs students participating in programs or
services for students with exceptional needs at

State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this
goal:State

________________________________

Identified Need

Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal

1, 2, 7

Goal 5

64 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.01: Staff all classrooms with appropriately
assigned, and fully credentialed teachers in all
subject areas, and appropriate to the students they
are teaching. ( 13.5 FTE @ $73,273 / FTE )

05.01: Staff all classrooms with appropriately
assigned, and fully credentialed teachers in all
subject areas, and appropriate to the students they
are teaching. ( 8.75 FTE @ $95,067 / FTE )

05.01: Staff all classrooms with appropriately
assigned, and fully credentialed teachers in all
subject areas, and appropriate to the students they
are teaching. ( 9.78 FTE @ $92,299 / FTE )

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 1

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Unchanged Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$309,555
$144,938
$325,000
$71,327
$20,240
$9,201
$880,261

$278,115
$167,487
$348,907
$83,029
$17,287
$4,941
$2,400
$484
$902,651

$567,878
$261,075
$2,400
$483
$831,836

8 8 8LCFF, LCFF, LCFF, EPA, LCFF, EPA, LCFF, LCFF, LCFF, EPA, LCFF, EPA, LCFF, LCFF, Ag CTE, Ag CTE

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

65 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



Budget Reference

8 8 8CTEIG, CTEIG CTEIG, CTEIG, Ag CTE, Ag CTE

8
8

8
8

8
8
1000, 3000, 1000, 3000, 1000, 3000 1000, 3000, 1000, 3000, 1000, 3000, 1000,

3000
1000, 3000, 1000, 3000

66 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsEnglish Learners, Low Income

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.02: Staff additional classrooms with
appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed
teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and
additional intervention sections at the HS designed
to provide  support for unduplicated students.
( 13.5 FTE @ $73,273 / FTE )

05.02: Staff additional classrooms with
appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed
teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and
additional intervention sections at the HS in  ELA,
ELD, and Math designed to provide support for
unduplicated students. ( 4.58 FTE @ $95,067 /
FTE )

05.02: Staff additional classrooms with
appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed
teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and
additional intervention sections at the HS in  ELA,
ELD, and Math designed to provide support for
unduplicated students. ( 4.22 FTE @ $92,299 /
FTE )

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 2

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

English Learners, Low Income LEA-wide All Schools

$163,006
$71,220
$234,226

$285,516
$104,025
$389,541

$302,972
$110,245
$17,795
$4,562
$435,574

8 8 8LCFF, S&C, LCFF, S&C LCFF, S&C, LCFF, S&C LCFF, S&C, LCFF, S&C, Title I, Title I

8 881000, 3000 1000, 3000 1000, 3000, 1000, 3000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

67 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support
positions including the library/media technician.
( 6.2 FTE @ $28,568 / FTE )

05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support
positions including the library/media technician.
( 2.63 FTE @ $35,269 / FTE )

05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support
positions including the library/media technician.
( 3.26 FTE @ $34,242 / FTE )

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 3

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$56,073
$16,685
$12,179
$19,124
$17,000
$121,061

$28,312
$22,655
$47,178
$13,485
$111,630

$22,076
$19,092
$36,560
$13,276
$91,004

8 8 8Title I, Title I, LCFF, LCFF, CTEIG LCFF, LCFF, Title I, Title I LCFF, LCFF, Title I, Title I

8 882000, 3000, 2000, 3000, 2000 2000, 3000, 2000, 3000 2000, 3000, 2000, 3000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

68 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.04: Staff MOT at appropriate levels to maintain
safe, clean, and inviting facilities and provide
appropriate transportation. ( 5 FTE @ $71,397 /
FTE )

05.04: Staff MOT at appropriate levels to maintain
safe, clean, and inviting facilities and provide
appropriate transportation. ( 6 FTE @ $62,782 /
FTE )

05.04: Staff MOT at appropriate levels to maintain
safe, clean, and inviting facilities and provide
appropriate transportation. ( 6 FTE @ $55,362 /
FTE )

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 4

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$279,868
$123,816
$403,684

$240,744
$91,428
$332,172

$282,522
$94,170
$376,692

8 8 8LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF

8 882000, 3000 2000, 3000 2000, 3000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

69 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsEnglish Learners, Low Income

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that
will run the: EL Program, RTI program,
Assessment Program, ASES program. ( 1 FTE @
$73,273 / FTE )

05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that
will run the: EL Program, RTI program,
Assessment Program, ASES program. ( 1 FTE @
$95,067 / FTE )

05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that
will run the: EL Program, RTI program,
Assessment Program, ASES program. ( 1 FTE @
$92,299 / FTE )

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 5

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Unchanged Unchanged

English Learners, Low Income LEA-wide All Schools

$27,243
$9,202
$29,450
$9,947
$8,110
$83,952

$64,928
$24,113
$2,723
$535
$92,299

$69,013
$26,054
$95,067

8 8 8LCFF, S&C, LCFF, S&C, LCFF, LCFF,
ASES

LCFF, S&C, LCFF, S&C, ASES, ASES LCFF, S&C, LCFF, S&C

8 881000, 3000, 1000, 3000, 1000 1000, 3000, 1000, 3000 1000, 3000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

70 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.06: Staff administrators and confidential
employees to oversee and run the schools and
district central office. ( 1.75 FTE @ $104,660 /
FTE )

05.06: Staff administrators and confidential
employees to oversee and run the schools and
district central office.  (1 FTE superintendent, 1
FTE principals) ( 2 FTE @ $133,738 / FTE )

05.06: Staff administrators and confidential
employees to oversee and run the schools and
district central office.  (1 FTE superintendent, 1
FTE principals) ( 3 FTE @ $130,129 / FTE )

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 6

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Modified Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$143,501
$127,570
$138,587
$409,659

$229,013
$66,000
$95,374
$390,387

$190,739
$76,738
$267,477

8 8 8LCFF, LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF

8 881000, 2000, 3000 1000, 2000, 3000 1000, 3000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

71 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.07: Staff all office support positions. ( 2 FTE @
$43,966 / FTE )

05.07: Staff all office support positions and account
clerk. ( 3 FTE @ $50,895 / FTE )

05.07: Staff all office support positions and account
clerk. ( 3 FTE @ $49,413 / FTE )

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 7

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$40,690
$33,842
$74,532

$99,237
$49,002
$148,239

$102,213
$50,472
$152,685

8 8 8LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF LCFF, LCFF

8 882000, 3000 2000, 3000 2000, 3000

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

72 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.08: Staff a 6.75 hr / day Media Technician. ( 0
FTE @ $30,000 / FTE )

05.08: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

05.08: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 8

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$19,632
$10,000
$29,632

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF, LCFF -- --

8 882000, 3000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

73 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.09: Provide PD to board members, faculty, staff
and the administration on the LCAP and review
LCAP progress at least twice each year.

05.09: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

05.09: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 9

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$15,000
$15,000

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 885000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

74 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.10: Other books and supplies  (4000-4999) not
listed in other actions including upgrading
classroom technology.

05.10: Other books and supplies  (4000-4999) not
listed in other actions including upgrading
classroom technology.

05.10: Other books and supplies  (4000-4999) not
listed in other actions including upgrading
classroom technology.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 10

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$53,511
$15,000
$68,511

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF, CTEIG -- --

8 884000, 4000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

75 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.11: Other services and operating expenditures
(5000-5999) not listed in other actions.

05.11: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

05.11: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 11

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$241,507
$244,144

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF, -- --

8 885000, -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

76 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.12: Other Capital Outlays (6000-6999) not listed
in other actions.

05.12: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

05.12: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 12

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$20,000
$20,000

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 886000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

77 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.13: Other Outgo (7000-7499) not listed in other
actions including payments to COE and debt
service.

05.13: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

05.13: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 13

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

Budget Reference

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Unchanged

All LEA-wide All Schools

$220,545
$220,545

$0 $0

8 8 8LCFF -- --

8 887000 -- --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

78 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



8 8All SchoolsAll

888

Students to be Served Locations (s)

Students to be Served Locations (s)Scope of Services

Actions / Services

OR

Budgeted
Expenditures

05.14: Other books and supplies  (4000-4999) not
listed in other actions including upgrading
classroom technology.

05.14: This action is no longer tracked as part of
the LCAP.

05.14: Other books and supplies (4000-4999),
other services and operating expenditures (5000
-5999), other capital outlays (6000-6999), and
other outgo (7000-7499) not listed in other actions.

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

Action 14

(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups): (Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, and/or
Low Income):

(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or
Specific Grade Spans):

(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to
Unduplicated Student Groups):

2017-18 Actions / Services 2018-19 Actions / Services 2019-20 Actions / Services

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2017
-18

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2018
-19

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged for 2019
-20

Year

Amount

Source

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

888Unchanged Modified Modified

All LEA-wide All Schools

$53,511
$15,000
$68,511

$109,328
$1,065
$21,159
$2,637
$19,967
$278,417
$2,715
$39,100
$262,205
$736,593

$0

8 8 8LCFF, CTEIG LCFF, Other State, LCFF, TUPE, SRSA, --

8For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

79 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



Budget Reference

8 8 8LCFF, Other Federal, Mandated Cost,
Other Local

8
8

8
8

8
8
4000, 4000 4000, 4000, 5000, 5000, 4000, 7000, 4000,

4000, 5000
--

80 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT

Baseline

Increased or Improved Services: Currently, in Cuyama Joint Unified School District the percentage of unduplicated students is 84.1% and the increase in
proportionality for English Learners, Low income, and Foster Youth (unduplicated) students is 24.79% for the 2019-2020 school year. This is the percentage by
which services for unduplicated students must be increased or improved over services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

The following actions are services that are being increased or improved services, but are not being funded district-wide.  These actions and services are
principally directed to and effective at assisting unduplicated students in meeting the LCAP goals.  Each action is followed by a description of how the service is
being increase or improved for the LCAP year.

- 05.03: Staff all appropriate instructional support positions including the library/media technician. - These additional instructional aide positions are principally
targeted towards improving the academic proficiency of English Learner students.

- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,  Assessment Program, ASES program. - The RTI Program, and the EL
Program along with the after school program primarily support the EL, LI, and FY student groups.  These programs are additional programs above and beyond
the core program.  Additionally the direction and assistance this position gives provides for a significantly improved delivery of service to the EL and LI
populations.

The following actions are being funded and provided on a school-wide or LEA-wide basis.  These actions and services are principally directed to and effective at
assisting unduplicated students in meeting the LCAP goals.  Each action is followed by a description of how the service is being increased or improved for the
LCAP year along with a description supporting the school-wide or LEA-wide use of funds for each particular service.

- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL
Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at end of each year) - Approximately 35% of the PD delivered in this action will be additional PD
above and beyond core program PD that teachers receive.  This additional PD will be principally directed towards the needs of the unduplicated student
population. Not only will this service provide additional PD, but it will also improve the EL and intervention programs at both sites through an improved and
expanded MTSS program.  This service will be district-wide because all teachers teach service the EL population.

- 05.02: Staff additional classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and additional intervention
sections at the HS in  ELA, ELD, and Math designed to provide support for unduplicated students. - The district's base program would provide for 7.95 FTE

LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20): 2019-20

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or quantitatively,
as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: Percentage to Increase or Improve Services:

$508,284 24.79%

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils

81 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



DRAFT
teachers which would provide a student to teacher ratio of 25:1; however, because of the small nature of the district this would create combo classes for every
grade TK-8 and limit the elective and CCR offerings at the HS.  The district will use S&C funds to reduce class sizes preventing combo classes in grades TK, 1, 2,
3, 6, 7 and 8 and also providing 3 additional support periods at the HS for intervention.  With an unduplicated population at 79.4% of the district this is an effective
way to improve services to the unduplicated population.

82 CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM



Baseline

Increased or Improved Services: Currently, in Cuyama Joint Unified School District the percentage of unduplicated students is 79.4% and the increase in
proportionality for English Learners, Low income, and Foster Youth (unduplicated) students is 23.96% for the 2018-2019 school year. This is the percentage by
which services for unduplicated students must be increased or improved over services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

The following actions are services that are being increased or improved services, but are not being funded district-wide.  These actions and services are
principally directed to and effective at assisting unduplicated students in meeting the LCAP goals.  Each action is followed by a description of how the service is
being increase or improved for the LCAP year.

- 03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES program to support student academic achievement and social-emotional success including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation. - The ASES program primarily serves the EL, LI, and FY student groups with additional support after school.

- 03.03: This action is no longer tracked as part of the LCAP. -

- 04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents in supporting their children academically, learning at home strategies, parenting,  21st Century Skills, health and
wellness and understanding the CA educational system. - These workshops are designed to support parents of EL, LI, FY, and SWD students to assist parents
with strategies particular to these students.

- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program,  Assessment Program, ASES program. - The RTI Program, and the EL
Program along with the after school program primarily support the EL, LI, and FY student groups.  These programs are additional programs above and beyond
the core program.  Additionally the direction and assistance this position gives provides for a significantly improved delivery of service to the EL and LI
populations.

The following actions are being funded and provided on a school-wide or LEA-wide basis.  These actions and services are principally directed to and effective at
assisting unduplicated students in meeting the LCAP goals.  Each action is followed by a description of how the service is being increased or improved for the
LCAP year along with a description supporting the school-wide or LEA-wide use of funds for each particular service.

- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: CASS and CASS instructional strategies, MTSS, PBIS, ELD Standards, EL
Redesignation, ELPAC. (focus to be determined based on needs at end of each year) - Approximately 35% of the PD delivered in this action will be additional PD
above and beyond core program PD that teachers receive.  This additional PD will be principally directed towards the needs of the EL unduplicated student

LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20): 2018-19

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or quantitatively,
as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: Percentage to Increase or Improve Services:

$478,582 23.96%

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils

CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM83



population. Not only will this service provide additional PD,but it will also improve the EL program at both sites.  This service will be district-wide because all
teachers teach service the EL population.

- 05.02: Staff additional classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and additional intervention
sections at the HS in  ELA, ELD, and Math designed to provide support for unduplicated students. - The district's base program would provide for 10.82 FTE
teachers which would provide a student to teacher ratio of 21.8; however because of the small nature of the district this would create combo classes for every
grade TK-5.  The district will use S&C funds to reduce class sizes preventing combo classes in grades TK-5 and also providing 3 additional support periods at the
HS for intervention.    With an unduplicated population at 79.4% of the district this is an effective way to improve services to the unduplicated population.

CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM84



DRAFT

Increased or Improved Services: Currently, in Cuyama Joint Unified School District the percentage of unduplicated students is 83.3% and the increase in
proportionality for English Learners, Low income, and Foster Youth (unduplicated) students is 12.01% for 2017-2018. This is the percentage by which services for
unduplicated students must be increased or improved over services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

Specific increased or improved services for unduplicated students are listed below along with a description of how these actions / services are principally directed
to and effective in meeting the LCAP goals for unduplicated students.

- 01.05: Provide PD for teachers and paraprofessionals on some of the following: New ELA curriculum intervention resources, ELD Standards, EL instructional
strategies focusing on NGSS, Description: Approximately 35% of the PD delivered in this action will be additional PD above and beyond core program PD that
teachers receive. This additional PD will be principally directed towards the needs of the EL unduplicated student population. Not only will this service provide
additional PD,but it will also improve the EL program at both sites. This service will be district-wide because all teachers teach service the EL population.
- 01.09: Provide PD for teachers, invited guest teacher and paraprofessionals on effective strategies and understanding of the unique challenges of foster youth.
Description: The PD described in this action is specifically for FY student group support. While principally directed toward the FY all teachers will receive the
training and will learn strategies that should assist with other at-risk students.
- 03.02: Provide funding to run the ASES program to support student academic achievement and social-emotional success including, tutors, supplies, and
transportation. Description: The ASES program primarily serves the EL, LI, and FY student groups with additional support after school.
- 04.02: Provide workshops to assist parents in supporting their children academically, learning at home strategies, parenting, 21st Century Skills, health and
wellness and understanding the CA educational system. Description: These workshops are designed to support parents of EL, LI, FY, and SWD students to assist
parents with strategies particular to these students.
- 05.02: Staff additional classrooms with appropriately assigned, and fully credentialed teachers to prevent combo classes at the ES and additional intervention
sections at the HS designed to provide support for unduplicated students. Description: The district's base program would provide for 10.52 FTE teachers which
would provide a student to teacher ratio of 21.8; however because of the small nature of the district this would create combo classes for every grade TK-5. The
district will use S&C funds to reduce class sizes preventing combo classes in grades TK-5 and also providing 3 additional support periods at the HS for
intervention. With an unduplicated population at 83.3% of the district this is an effective way to improve services to the unduplicated population.
- 05.05: Staff a Program Coordinator position that will run the: EL Program, RTI program, Assessment Program, ASES program. Description: The RTI Program,
and the EL Program along with the after school program primarily support the EL, LI, and FY student groups. These programs are additional programs above and
beyond the core program. Additionally the direction and assistance this position gives provides for a significantly improved delivery of service to the EL and LI

LCAP Year
(select from

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or quantitatively,
as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: Percentage to Increase or Improve
Services:$284,565 23.96%

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils

CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM85



DRAFT
populations.

CJUSD-2019, 6/10/2019, 4:36:20 PM86



DRAFT

LCAP, State Priority Coverage

State Priority 01 18
State Priority 02 1
State Priority 03 2
State Priority 04 10
State Priority 05 3
State Priority 06 3
State Priority 07 2
State Priority 08 1
State Priority 09 0
State Priority 10 0

Low Income 5
English Learner 0

R-FEP 0
Foster Youth 3

All 30

Action Count By State Priority Action Count By Pupil Groups

Goal Count 01

Goal Count 02

Goal Count 03

Goal Count 04

Goal Count 05

Goal Count 06

Goal Count 07

Goal Count 08

Goal Count 09

Goal Count 10

Action Count By Plan Goals

18

1

2

10

3

3

2

1

0

0

38 38

38

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP87



DRAFT

LCAP, Metrics

01. Student achievement as measured by state and local targets and by
participation  in College & Career Ready (CCR) classes will increase.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Actions

Metrics

02. School environment will be well maintained, sustainable, safe, welcoming
and used by the community.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Actions

Metrics

03. The schools' social-emotional environment will be safe, welcoming, and
conducive to student learning causing student connectedness with the district to
increase.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Actions

Metrics

04. Parent and community participation in and connectedness with the schools
will increase.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Actions

Metrics

05. Staff all certificated and classified positions with appropriately skilled and
credentialed people and provide all basic services needed to run the district.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Actions

Metrics

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Actions

Metrics

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP88



DRAFT

Acronym Page

ADA, Average Daily Attendance
ALD, Achievement Level Descriptor
API, Academic Performance Index
ASES, After School Education Safety
AVID, Advancement Via Individualized
Determination
AYP, Adequate Yearly Progress
BB, Below Basic
BL, Baseline
CAASPP, California Assessment of Student
Performance and Progress
CASS, California State Standards
CBO, Chief Business Officer
CCCSS, California Common Core State
Standards
CCR, College & Career Ready
CCSS, Common Core State Standards
CELDT, California English Learner
Development Test
CHKS, California Healthy Kids Survey
CSR, Class Size Reduction

CST, California Standards Test
CTE, Career Technical Education
EAP, Early Assessment Program
EL, English Learner
ELA, English Language Arts
ELD, English Language Development
ES, Elementary School
ESE, Education Systems Engineers
FBB, Far Below Basic
FTE, Full Time Equivalent
FY, Foster Youth
HS, High School
IA, Instructional Assistant
IS, Independent Study
ISSC, In School Suspension Classroom
LCAP, Local Control Accountability Plan
LCFF, Local Control Funding Formula

LEA, Local Education Agency
MOT, Maintenance, Operations and
Transportation
MS, Middle School
MTSS, Multi-Tiered Systems of Support
PD, Professional Development
RLA, Reading Language Arts
RTI, Response To Intervention
SBE, State Board of Education
SDAIE, Specially Designed Academic
Instruction in English
SR SpEd, State Restricted Special Education
STEAM, Science, Technology, Engineering,
Arts and Math
SWD, Students with Disabilities
TECALS, Transitional Employment College
Readiness and Life Skills
TOSA, Teacher on Special Assignment
VOIP, Voice Over Internet Protocol

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP89



DRAFT

Numbering System:CJUSD-2019
Each action in this LCAP has a unigue four digit Action ID.  For example an action may have the Action ID 04.02.  This would mean that this particular
action is listed under goal 4 and it is action 2 in that year and for that goal.  In this manner each individual action can be identified in stakeholder update
discussions.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
Annual Outcomes Baseline Metrics:CJUSD-2019
Each Goal's Annual Outcomes Metrics lists a baseline denoted by the acronum BL.  The baseline is the data that has been most recently reported to CDE
when that is available; otherwise, it is the most recent data the district has available.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
Action Without Expenditures:CJUSD-2019
If an action does not have an associated expenditure a "$0" is placed in the Budget Amount column and a '--' is placed in both the Source field and the
Reference field.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
LCFF and LCFF Supplemental and Concentration:CJUSD-2019
If an expenditure is budgeted with supplemental and concentration funds it will have a 'LCFF, S&C' in the Source field.  If the expenditure is budgeted with
Base funds it will have only 'LCFF' in the Source field.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
Annual Update Actual Actions and Services:CJUSD-2019
In the Annual Update fields titled Actual Actions and Services: there are two numbers at the end of the explanation.  These two numbers represent a
numeric estimate of the 1. progress towards completion and 2. effectiveness of the action towards meeting the goal.  The number is a percentage
between 0% and 100%.  The numbers represent a best consensus of the LCAP committee.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
Stakeholder Engagement Rank Percentages:CJUSD-2019
In the Stakeholder Engagement, Impact on LCAP sections there is a rank list of the top five actions requested by each stakeholder focus group. Each
participant in the group had 12 votes they could use to identify their priorities.  The percentage represents the percentage of all votes that the particular
action received.  For example in the Stakeholder Engagement, Impact on LCAP, Certificated Staff section there were 307 votes cast.  The highest voted
action recieved 27 votes or 8.79% of the total votes.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
Metric 2.A: Implementation of SBE adopted standards for all students:CJUSD-2019
This shall be calculated by the following, the denominator = ( # of students enrolled in an ELA Class ) + ( # of students enrolled in an Math Class ) + ( # of
students enrolled in an Social Studies Class ) + ( # of students enrolled in an Science Class ).  The numerator = ( # of students whose ELA instruction is
aligned to current SBE standards ) + ( # of students whose Math instruction is aligned to current SBE standards ) + ( # of students whose Social Studies
instruction is aligned to current SBE standards ) + ( # of students whose Science instruction is aligned to current SBE standards ).CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
Metric 2.B: Implementation of SBE adopted EL standards for all ELs:CJUSD-2019
This shall be calculated in the same manner as 2.1 above except only EL students will be counted and instruction will be aligned to EL Standards.CJUSD
-2019

LCAP Explanatory Page

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP90



DRAFT

CJUSD-2019
Metric 6.C: District School Climate Survey overall index rating:CJUSD-2019
This is an annual survey that the district administers at least every other school year.  All sub-groups: certificated staff, classified staff, parents/community,
and students are surveyed.  The survey measures impressions of both school safety and the schools' social-emotional environment.  An index score of
80% or higher is be deemed as satisfactory.  The survey is a combination of the ESE Parent survey and the CHKS.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019
Metrics that are N/A (Not Applicable):CJUSD-2019
Metrics that have an "N/A" were deemed to be inapplicable because either the mobility rate is too great or the sample size of the student population is too
small respectively to make this data valid for year over year comparisons,or the district was unable to collect data in a given year.CJUSD-2019
CJUSD-2019

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP91



DRAFT
LCAP, Staffing Count Summary Page

Certificated

2019-20202018-2019Allocation 2017-2018

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

15.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

14.33

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 15.00 14.33

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Certificated

Avg Salary Avg Benefits

IA

MOT

Secretarial

Counselor

Administrator

IT

Cafeteria

Confidential

Other Cert

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

Other Class $0

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP92



DRAFT
Expenditures by Resource

Budget
2019-2020

$(53,511)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$26,042

$0

$(44,586)

$(17,117)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$3,180,296

$(216,218)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$(216,218)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$3,092,459

$(264,326)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$(267,209)

$0

$0

$0

$0

$(2,883)

DifferenceBudget
2018-2019

DifferenceBudget
2017-2018

Difference

$3,065,121

LCFF

Title I

LCFF, S&C

Title II

SRSA

Title III

Other Federal

Lottery

Title IV

ASES

Other State

TUPE

Ag CTE

Mandated Cost

CTEIG

$2,117,079

$10,597

$72,758

$284,565

$13,578

$19,967

$26,042

$50,384

$59,324

$2,637

$1,711,194

$10,739

$85,360

$478,582

$0

$19,967

$2,715

$7,300

$53,639

$37,228

$39,100

$2,637

$10,190

$1,065

$2,195,311

$9,422

$75,904

$508,284

$0

$4,127

$29,445

$53,639

$7,309

$2,883

$99,026

$1,927,412

$478,582

In LCAP

$85,360

$10,739

$0

$19,967

$2,715

$0

$7,300

$53,639

$37,228

$39,100

$2,637

$10,190

$1,065

$2,170,590

$284,565

$72,758

$10,597

$13,578

$19,967

$0

$0

$0

$50,384

$76,441

$0

$2,637

$0

$0

$2,459,637

$508,284

$75,904

$9,422

$0

$0

$0

$4,127

$29,445

$53,639

$0

$7,309

$0

$2,883

$101,909

In LCAPIn LCAP

$3,109,707 $3,396,514 $3,359,668

$(44,586) $(216,218) $(267,209)

$2,837,931
$118,781
$177,597
$262,205

$2,621,713
$118,781
$177,597
$262,205

Allocation In Plan
$2,621,713

$118,781
$171,574
$262,205

SACS 01

$(3,109,707) $(3,396,514) $(3,359,668)

Other Local

Prop-39

LCFF, EPA

Ltry Prp 20

$396,327

$11,863

$262,205

$14,575

$431,937

$11,863

$96,774

$10,335

$0

$0

$396,327

$11,863

$0

$262,205

$14,575

$431,937

$11,863

$0

$96,774

$0

$0

$10,335

$0

$0

$0

$0

-$11,863

$11,863

$0

$0

$0

-$11,863

$11,863

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$2,967,921
$89,453

$205,520
$96,774

$2,703,595
$89,453

$202,637
$96,774

Allocation In Plan
$2,703,595

$89,453
$202,637

$96,774

SACS 01
LCFF Srcs $2,851,482

Federal $116,900

Other State $141,325

Other Local $0

2797971
$116,900
$150,250

Allocation In PlanSACS 01

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP93



DRAFT

$1,248,464

$531,665

1000 $1,026,106

$569,207

$1,166,536

$493,586

$3,135,750

2019-20202018-20192017-2018

$1,028,507

$569,207

$3,261,560 $125,810

$2,401

-$0

$1,248,464

$531,665

$1,220,917

$559,030

SACS 1 DifferenceIn LCAP
$0

$0

$54,381

$65,444

SACS 1 DifferenceIn LCAP SACS 1 DifferenceIn LCAP

3000

2000

6000

5000

4000

7000

$666,949

$227,724

$663,061

$267,096

$669,972

$58,757

$663,574

$199,263

$513

-$67,834

$666,949

$227,724

$769,202

$176,114

$0

$0

$99,230

$117,357

$423,656

$5,064

$369,734

$20,000

$108,510

$0

$385,634

$25,064

$15,900

$5,064

$423,656

$5,064

$441,004

$0

$0

$0

$332,494

$0

$292,992

$0

$220,546

$0

$0

$0

$390,313 $169,767

$0

$292,992 $317,826$0

$0

$317,826

$317,826

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$3,396,514$3,396,514 $0 $2,497,361$3,484,093 $986,732

Expenditures by Object Code

© www.edsystems.net CJUSD-2019-LCAP94
































































































































































































































































	Action Item - C California Connections.pdf
	CalOPS - CalCA Central Coast and CJUSD MOU_as approved by CalOPS_final for CJUSD
	California Online Public Schools
	CalOPS-Draft Minutes 190531

	ACTION ITEM B 19-20 Provisional Stipend list.pdf
	XTRA DUTY




